
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              July 5, 2022 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 
224 North Edwards 

Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

July 5, 2022 - 8:30 A.M. 

  
  

1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) (Comments may be time-
limited) 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 – Name of case: 
Inyo County v. Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, Kern County Superior 
Court Case Nos. BCV-18-101260-TSC, BCV-18-101261-TSC, and BCV-18-101262-
TSC. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
  

 

  5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. 
Individual Board members may participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meeting law 
requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public 
Health orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(CalOSHA).  

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be 
accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 
205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general public comment or 
a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in 
writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call 
on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a 
part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              July 5, 2022 

  6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; approval 
recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
  

7. Board of Supervisors - Request Board cancel the regular Board of Supervisors 
meeting scheduled for July 26, 2022. 

  
  

8. Clerk of the Board - Request Board reappoint Ms. Suzanne Butler, Mr. Scott 
Marcellin, and Mr. Michael Holland to the Bishop Rural Fire Protection District Board 
of Commissioners. (Notice of Vacancy resulted in requests for reappointment from 
Ms. Butler, Mr. Marcellin, and Mr. Holland.) 

  
  

9. Clerk-Recorder - Request Board approve payment to DFM Associates in an amount 
of $15,720.00 for the annual DFM Associates software License Maintenance and 
Support Fee, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the 2022-2023 annual budget. 

  
  

10. Coroner - Request Board ratify and approve prior year payment to Southern Inyo 
Hospital in the amount of $16,526.15. 

  
  

11. County Administrator - Advertising County Resources - Request Board ratify and 
approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Chris 
Langley for provision of Film Commissioner services, extending the term to 
September 30, 2022 at a total amount not to exceed $12,700, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

12. County Administrator - Personnel - Request Board approve the contract between 
the County of Inyo and Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo for the provision of 
Legal Services-General Labor and Employment Advice, in the amount of $320,000 
for the term of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s 
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign 
the contract and HIPPA Business Associate Agreement, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

13. Health & Human Services - First 5 - Request Board approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the County of Inyo and Altrusa International Foundation of 
Eastern Sierra, Inc. of Bishop, CA for the provision of Dolly Parton Imagination 
Library program in an amount not to exceed $4,538 for the period of July 5, 2022 
through July 6, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the First 5 Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
  

14. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board ratify and approve 
the contract between the County of Inyo and Sabrina Enterprises, Inc., dba Dwayne's 
Friendly Pharmacy of Bishop, CA, for the provision of pharmaceutical services in an 
amount not to exceed $650,000.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2027, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              July 5, 2022 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

  
15. Treasurer-Tax Collector - Request Board approve the contract between the County 

of Inyo and Carolynn Phillips for the provision of professional services as the 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector at Range 84, Step C, $8,012 per month, effective 
July 7, 2022, and authorize the County Administrator to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

16. Water Department - Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to  the “Agreement 
Between the County of Inyo and City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River Project," and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

17. Public Works - Request Board: A) approve the modified job description for the 
Engineering Technician I/II; and B) change the Authorized Strength in the Public 
Works Department by deleting one (1) Planning Technician at Range 63 ($4,184 - 
$5,091) and adding one (1) Engineering Technician I at Range 61 ($3,997 - $4,885) 
or Engineering Technician II at Range 66 ($4,489 - $5,464); and C) reclass a current 
Lead Equipment Operator to the Engineering Technician I, step E, effective July 7, 
2022. 

  
  

18. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of June 28, 2022. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

10:30 A.M. 19. County Counsel - Request Board receive presentation regarding proposed updates 
to the Inyo County Purchasing Policy and provide direction to staff regarding the 
proposed updates.  

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  20. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 



County of Inyo

Board of Supervisors
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Cancellation of July 26 Board of Supervisors Meeting
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board cancel the regular Board of Supervisors meeting scheduled for July 26, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Members of the Board who will be attending the National Association of Counties annual conference in Colorado 
later this month have noted that their travel arrangements conflict with the July 26 Board meeting, and have asked 
that it be cancelled. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could decide not to cancel the meeting, however there could be challenges putting together a quorum 
on that date.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/28/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/28/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/28/2022
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 6/30/2022



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Reappointments to Bishop Rural Fire Protection District Board of Commissioners
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board reappoint Ms. Suzanne Butler, Mr. Scott Marcellin, and Mr. Michael Holland to the Bishop Rural 
Fire Protection District Board of Commissioners. (Notice of Vacancy resulted in requests for reappointment from 
Ms. Butler, Mr. Marcellin, and Mr. Holland.)
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board has appointing authority for the Bishop Rural Fire Protection District Board of Commissioners. Three 
terms were set to expire July 1 and the vacancies were publicly noticed in accordance with State law and Board 
policy. Three responses were received - from Ms. Suzanne Butler, Mr. Scott Marcelln, and Mr. Michael Holland 
all requesting reappointment.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose to not make the appointments and direct staff to open a new recruitment period. This is 
not recommended, as the individuals requesting appointment are experienced fire commissioners and comprise 
the majority of the board.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Michael Holland Request for Reappointment 06.24.22
2. Scott Marcellin Request for Reappointment 06.24.22
3. Suzanne Butler Request for Reappointment 06.19.22



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/27/2022
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 6/27/2022



MICHAELJ. HOLLAND, CPA

Y'

KEVIN E. ALLRED, CPA

Holland €r Allred
Certifie d Public Accoun tnnts

324 GROVE STREET r Bi$HOP, CA 93514
Tele: (750)873.3508. Faxr (760)873-3509

hollandallred@verizon.net

June 23,2422

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
PO Drawer N
Independence, CA 93526

IFCEIVED

JUif | 4?s22

Hvtf61-;1ffitgl'-

tttgr

Dear Members of the Board:

I hereby submit my letter of interest to be considered for reappointment to
the Board of Commissioners of the Bishop Fire Protection District.

I have been serving as a member of the board since my appointment in
January, 2009. I loolc forward to the opportunity to continue my service to
the Bishop F'ire Department in this role of managerial support.

I respectfully request your consideration for reappointrnent for an additional
four year term to begin July 1 ,2022.

Holland

Cc: dellis@inyocounty.us



RCCETVED

06/24/2022

lr'- o L a.rng
To the lnyo County Board of Supervisors

Regarding the posting of the Bishop Rural Fire District openings coming up on July 1't.
I am currently a board member of the Bishop Rural Fire District and would like to remain on the board.
We have a lot of projects we are moving forward with at this time, and I would like to see them through
I realize I am running for District 3 Supervisor, but that will have to be delt with when or if l'm elected in
November. I am currently on the Joint Powers Agreement Board and am asking to be appointed to the
ADHOCK committee to work on the Joint Powers Authority Board. lf l'm not elected, I want to stay and
do my part as a commissioner. lf I am elected, I want to do my part as a lnyo County Supervisor.

Thank you for your consideration

Scott E Marcellin

JUN 2 4?g2l

*'%mTYm5"?5n'



Darcy Ellis

From:
Sent:
To:
Subiect: ,%

Sue Butler <sueslife4T@gmail.com>

Sunday, June 19, 2022 5:44 PM

Darcy Ellis

Fwd: BRFPD Board of Commissioners

>> June 79,2022

>> Ms Darcy Ellis,

>>MynameisSuzanneButler. lhaveservedontheBishopRural FireProtectionDistrictBoardofCommissionerssince
my appointment on 1O/9/2O18. My term is up on 7 /I/2O22 and I am interested in continuing in my position if appointed
by the lnyo County Board of Supervisors.

>> I have learned a great deal during my term about the scope of the fire district responsibilities in Northern lnyo

County. Chief Joe Dell has worked with the commission to budget and plan for the future as we have seen an increase in

thenumberandtypesoffireresponses. ThishasincludedworkingwithcurrentEMSsystemstoprovidebackupforthe
increasing number of calls when Symons Ambulance has not been available.

>> While I did not have previous fire protection experience I have served on several volunteer boards in the area over
the last 30 years. I was a nurse in lnyo County Public Health for 15 years prior to my retirement in 2011. ln my capacity

as a nurse manager for public health our department worked collaboratively with emergency services throughout lnyo

County including with the various fire departments. I believe this experience has allowed me to contribute effectively
on the commission.

>> I appreciate the possible consideration to reappointment to this 4year position.

>> Sincerely,

>> Suzanne Butler
>> 2523 Sunrise Drive
>> Bishop, California 93514
>> 760 937-8178
>> sueslife4T@gma il.com



County of Inyo

Clerk-Recorder
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Danielle Sexton
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of annual payment to DFM for Software License Maintenance and Support Fee
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve payment to DFM Associates in an amount of $15,720.00 for the annual DFM Associates 
software License Maintenance and Support Fee, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the 2022-2023 annual 
budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On April 24, 2007 the Inyo County Board of Supervisors declared DFM Associates as the sole source provider for 
voter registration software and approved a contract between the County of Inyo and DFM Associates for use of 
their EMS voter registration system.  Per the Board approved contract, the initial term of the lease was "Sixty (60) 
months from the installation of the EIMS and continuing thereafter until the next June 30th.  The entire amount to 
fulfill the financial obligations under the initial lease terms of the contract was encumbered in the 2007-2008 fiscal 
year.  Payments were made to DFM Associates monthly from July 1, 2007 to June 30, June 30, 2012.
 
 According to Article 9 of the contract, "After the expiration of the initial term, this Agreement will automatically 
continue with respect to such Specified DFM Software or such Specified Consulting Services on a year to year 
basis, unless either party gives the other written notice..."
 
This request is to authorize an annual payment in the amount of $15,720.00 to continue the lease with DFM 
Associates for the term of July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
On April 24, 2007, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors declared DFM Associates as the sole source provider 
for voter registration software and approved a contract between the County of Inyo and DFM Associates for use 
of their EMS voter registration system and has continued annually to approve DFM as a sole source provider.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The DFM software system is used to electronically manage voter registration and election administration in Inyo 
County. The Board can deny the approval of this payment, which would result in the discontinuation of the use of 
the EIMS Voter Registration and Elections Management System and the inability to electronically manage 
election related services as required by State and Federal law.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
This annual payment will be made from the Elections Budget - General Operating Expenses (011000-5311), 
contingent upon the adoption of the 2022-2023 budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. DFM Annual Invoice 2022-2023
2. DFM Master Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Danielle Sexton Created/Initiated - 6/27/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/27/2022
Danielle Sexton Approved - 6/28/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/28/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/28/2022



DFM Associates
10 Chrysler, Suite A

lnvoice
o

DFMAssociates 949-859-8700
949-859-9512 Fax#

Date lnvoice #

71112022 4't766

BillTo

County of Inyo
Danielle Sexton, County-Clerk-Recorder
P.O. Drawer F
Independence, CA93526

Ship To

P.O. Number Terms Ship S.O. No.

Contract 4127107 Net 30

Quantity Item Code Description U/M Price Each Amount

t2 CA - Inyo EIMS Lease

Per increase letter dated Apil 1,2022

Annual Invoice:
For the months of luly 2022 - Iune2023
Non Taxable Sales

I ,3 10.00

0.00%

15,720.00

0.00

Total $ r5,720.00

www. DFMAssociates. com



.l

DFM ASSOCIATES

MASTER AGREEMENT

INYO COUNTY

RECITALS

A' DFM is willing to do any or att of the following at thc requcst of the county:
(l)Toprchase and rcset compute,r Hardwarc to the county;

(2)To lcase or licenso DEM softrrare to the co,nty;

(3) To lcase or subricpnse Thlrd paffy software to thc county; and/or

(4) To provide Consulting Services to the County,

B' Thc purpose of this AECcment is to generally describe thc various productsand serviccs D$'Mis wiuing to-f*ilar-i-"-lnrb{.,iii'irand whcn rha county ehooscs toutilizc thenn' and to establisi'theTasic confracfual rc** and conditions undcr which thoseproducrs and/or serviccs will bept""ic*, rdi;tol;frion4 tcnns andpmvisions sct forthin a separate Adden.dum which ilili 
ryeriry tlr* grouu*t or-service and thc particular tsrmsand provisions applicable rheieto:'h- ;d;il?iil*u-m wir! bccome a parr of thisAgreement' if and when it h*s been signeo an urhatioiiotl, *re county and DFM. NeitherDFM nor the cor? is obrigarcd"i" ,rt. 

91r,r, ,rgl;iiq *, of the products or servicesgenerally describ€d !*io ttittt* and until, ani ri* 
",i-ry 

to *, *nJiiilir, the specific
l|?lftffiTjce 

is identinea on aiparate Addend'm utrut *u t., r*to and signed cm behalf



TERMS AND CONDITION$

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agl.ee as follows:

ARTICLE 1.

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of ttris Agreernent, the following terms shall have the following

definitions, which incorporate b! referencc the standard definitions ofthe computer industry

established by tade usagc or custom to the extent such standard definitions dc not contradict

specific definitions set forth herein:

s,ddqndumlfu!.$enc|arefer$toanyaddendumsignedbytheparties|''"!oatanytime
or from tirne to ti** ffig to this Agreement whictr-specifrcally identifies the product or

senrice to be provided Uy ilfU to tfi" County and the price, payment terms and other

applicable information related thereto.

Mrefers to any computer, whether a main frame, mini.computer,

personal computer * frl*.*er, and related cornputer peripheral equipment and accessories'

compqtc.r l"latd,w4lg*vegdo*r refers to the corporation or other entity which

manufactures or supplies the Computer Hardware'

consrlldrrg services refers t0 any or all of the services which RrM is capable of and

*itting@unfy, includiog.onrultation with the counfy regarding ie data

processing and information systems.

PfM.s-gfusrBrefbrstoandincludesanyorallsoftrvaresystemsdevelopedbyDFM'
which DFM is witling to provide to the County'

I?ilp MaifltenaFce refers to the ability to update a database.

InifiAl-Inqtgllation FSe refers to the fee to be paid by the County to DFM for the initial

in*tullotion of tny Spttifi*d DFM Softrrare and/or any $pecified Computer Hardwnre'

I*sp+s T;p,nn refers to the term of the lease between the county and DFM regarding the

Countyt righl io ** any DFM Software and/or to utilize any Consulting Services" The

initial tease Term will be set forth on the Addendum and will be extended automatically

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

2



3

Exhibit'.A"

On April 24,200'l the Inyo County Boatd of Supervisols declared DFM Associates as the sole sourcs
provider tbr voter regisfration software and approved a contract between the County of Inyc a1d DFtvl
Associates for use of their EMS voter registration system. Perthe Board approved contract, the initial term of
the lease rvas "Sixfy (60) months from the installation of the EIMS and continuing thereafter unti! the next
following June 30rh.

According to the Article 9 of the contLact, "After the expiration of the initial term, this Agreement will
automatically continue with respect to such Specified DFM Softivare or such Speclfied Consulting Services
on a year to year basis, unless either party gives the other written notice... " Sole-source is justitied for rhis
software for the following reasons:

I. A 'substantial amount of funds, timc and crlergy has been invested in training to use the system.
There would be a significant oost assosiated with training staff on a ,lew sysi.m to perfoim a
niajority of functions within the Department.

2. DFM is one of only two voter registration systems certified for use with VoteCal - the California
stntewide database, which we are cuffently in the process of fully inplementing,

3. The cr.trreut soflware systeru works well fbr the department, has excelle nt supporl and is well suitecl
to our needs.

06/12



Matlqgb refers to any documents, reports, instnrctions or writings, and any
annotations thereto, that explain or depict, generally or in detail, any aspeat of any particular
DFM Software, including but not limited to, all procedures and workings thereoi and the
Manuals may be on any format, including hard copy, on disk or on CD-ROM or any other
media.

Mge$-ly*[ss refers to the monthly charge by DFM to the County for the right of the
County to use any Specified DFM Software or to utilize any Specified Consulting Service.

Prograrns refers to all programs, sets of instructions and statements to be used directly
or indirectly on the Cornputer Hardware to facilitate, directly or indirectly, the use(sj,
maintenance or enhancemcnt of any particular DFM software.

$eft\Y,arp n$h$'npgnen[ refers to the addition of a new nFM Softrvare Subsystem or
the revision of any cxisting $ubsystcrn for any particular DFM software.

So.ftWarc.lybinseannpg refcrs to the maintenance ofthe Programs and the resolution of
any problems with respect to any Programs conceming internal coding and operation thereof.
The term Softrrare Maintenance is meant to include those modificationi, additions and

revisions of any particular DFM Software mandated by new legislative enactments.

$"p,frrvqlplqlpars refcrs to &emostrecentrcvision ofanyparticularDFM Software.

Spppi$q,sl.#qn$.ql.tigg $"p"rvjpsrefers to any particularConsutting Senice identified on
an Addendum attached hereto and signed on behalf of thc County and DFM.

$pecifiqd DFM gofuvsqe refers to any particular DFM $oftware identified on an
Addendum attached hereto and signed on behalf of the county and DFM.

$p*I:ifiqd {)gerating $Jfstsu.$oftwarq refers to the operating system softrvare provided
by a third pefty vendor for the Computer Hardware used by the County on *hich the
Specified DFM Software will operate.

Sub**ggm refers to any portion of any particular DFM Software which is related to a
specific fwctional area within the departrrrent of the County whic.h is using the Specified
DFM Softrvare pursuant to this Agreement.

Ibird Pa$y $rnftwq$l refers to any software, the rights of which are owned orheld by
an corporation or entity other than DFM.

3



EIMS ior Wlndourr
Hardwen Confgurrllon

Hardware Addendum

P.ft tlutnb*

*12923di

tt$T*Ftc-o01el
rdnPRcol0
22tn1C7t

bcptdtt

DFt#LTlrr
P^Alzn

L231}wnp

g.rcttf'do{l

tt*g toaWrttU"rr. gra rnd lppllcrdon Srrvrr

l*,o*o* *o t*Fl8 gt$l Ca{r J{srrfte s'oo*rl;tt Et 2"i6llr

ffi;;;;;;, "t'rru.*o 
2[43 Sorvat' $landafs sttitlo$ 

"'ilh 
5 CB'flt

Llo..nfi
il&* **o (1xnl$rBl' sitrol' Rrntad olMt'"lr

2 x t€e€g 7-2K RPM SATA HOO

NoFhPfY Ortt/6

ornl O$go.td NlCr

4sX IOECS'RIVOVS

i *o*r" g t. tur!4'ldor'l 200il git\tnf(Strnd8rd o' Entafx{m)

t**O *"-nto$ofi rnd Op'nMtnl{a CO Xlt

Bl.b Supfort

OG SaL sYr 2$s std Ed

SOL S.tr H.dh
OC SOL Slt 20of CAI
t\#,..l T.ndn l Svt CAL 2t3 8fi0 OLp Nt t-sc

tJ*. Ooi.at ct th' R"ort'v10 st'nd"d

fdoUt frrobrt l.O Sbtrdrfit ' Wttdot'il Ed[on

E[aE tu wl.rdffi tc'll3t*{olll
O*pnt cto Xft{To"ot lnl& P*ttlurrto 4 Froctoios

USA C.blo

Sc.tt*nc 8{fi*lt! uodltr (LcdT@b' Rqu}

Fulttu at{oo Sclnn r

Elld$ fo.wltrd€'sr ptltltltr I Elrcodt Bfidon

t l*fngtA L'id Sc.ilt r{S,'sd€ R'sdoo

q/tno L.btvtlttr 4oo Turna U$B

Au$ttY

t

1

Ptl€

1,76t.04

68.2G

189.?6

fiu.3e

1,1 15.00

Lt2
600.0o

tJ0o.N0

sge,00

120,99

1.75%

En Prbr

{,?E7.00

1

I

I
1

1

t
I
1

T

10

10

1

{

1

1

t
I

642.00

r89.26

3lxi.$

1,1'16.00

0.12

600.m

9lee.fi)

1,707.00

3t0.07

13,t12.03

6,000.00

20,000.00

3,0.16.75

. $n00

3

,

Tohl Hrrd$ntl 3rd PrtV $ofistt Cot!

Hal6rvrr Configuradal' p(*rf"rnmt I l.ilh$dho Fl6 (t'lot'a 3)

Drtr Co.rv.r*orvElMs Sofi tilr! tnd.lhuol{Tillnhe

$dtr T.t(

Tdl
1000.00

llofihly t'.l.. F.o

So.napiot CtrpZP4 Anldo*r SEndatdl2ttlofl $att$6tc (subccdpdon)

XOTEET

(t;;;*t. ** rrt utmstcr baaod on aitr'Id pndng

(2) $ot*s* H*t$^'drs (hubc$"itthosA'/Jlrll1s) ts h€ trppli64 bv ths county

iri ** * i, n* nrar0rd rf tj:a eounv Furchagst hsrd\llare di€d 
'nd

ineulh hld\flara

1 800.00Aonual

{rt,,r

Page 1 of 1



,l

-mjfil-Jgily- $sJbrya{s*}&sdgr refers to any corporation or orher entity which has
autJrorized DFM as a reseller or grants DFM the right to ure and/or sublicense its software or
which licenses.the County directly to use its software.

ARTICLE 2.
COMPUTER HARDWARE

All of the following provisions of this Article 2 shall apply to rhe purchase of any
Computer Hardware by the County through DFM mless expressly rnodified or supplem*t*i
by the Computer Hardware purchase Addendurn.

2.1 co,rnputelHardwaie E-urchase Add.endu,m. DFM agrees to supply to
the County the Computer Hardware identified on a Computer Hardware purchase .dddendum
attached hercto. The County agrees to pay Dfl*4 to the extent DFM is supplying the
Cornputer Hardware, the purchase price therefore and to perform all othcr oUiig;ioo,
required of it herein, all upon the terms and subject to the conditions sst forth on the
Computer Hardware Purchaso Addendum

2'2 $Sle.egnd Use TaXe$. The County shall be responsible forpaying, and
shall pay, all sales and-use tfl(es applicable to any iterns included as part of thi ioriputg1
Hardware which is sold or resold to it by DFM. tittre county advisesbFM that no ,uL, o,
use [axes are due or collectible, then the Counfy shall indemniS, defend protect and hold
DFM harmless from and with respect to any ctai* related to the collectioq payment or
reporting of such sales or usc taxes, including atl penalties and interest thereon or as a result
of the non-payment thcreof or the ht]*: to nte any retum required to be filed anO aoi
attorncys' fees incurred by DFM in enforcing i* indemnity rights hereunder or in defending
any claim to collect or pay such sales or us€ taxes.

2'3 Dellyery g0$ lnsuranqg. The County shall be responsible forpaying and
shall payn all insurance and delivery charges relative to the delivery of the ionfuter
Hardware to its final location et the installation address. DFM agrees to set forth on the
Computer Hardware Addendum the estirnated cost of, or "not to exceed arnounts,, regarding,
insurance and dclivery charges payable by the Counfy.

2'4 Sggtlris liltetggl. The County grants DFM a securiry inreresr in all items
of the Computer Hardware identified on the computer Hardware purchase Addendum as
collateral for the obligation of the County to pay phrvr for the futt purctrase price therefore.
The county agreos to sign, when and whire appiopriate, any financing staternents (i.e., ucc-

4



Ui11 
^'gvv'^I 

>e

,-, W'9
fiar. Not.tnbt lqFl

Roquert lor TaxPeYtr. -
ldrntl{lclfion Humbor rnd Certillcatlafl

Ass0(tfr rEs

Ghe fsnr tc frr
rrqxur. Oo ?rd?

u.rd to d* litl

tjta

$l

FA
t

iI'i
t

Drrt
taa.r! fr Jrrrl tr

&ril*,t lrr:, I

trA.

b6

sd ME

*rp-r*.* d H Corpo?rra.l fi r*vrrt'U fl oa,i I

ln 9fi.

9,...^"#! a a-l|!a lqn b.a*L9
u tfft;'tcntt{itt.y

8oa. Ff.{.ld
io),N

(tf, td.. td
A,l

frtt

rrtlrtrFrir.

rAJ tl

R.qu..tt'r flril )ra

(t g

L.l.l iart-

& ef

F

r Ar h6ddurl vrho b r cl{rat s rrutfn o(ihr Unll.d

a

U.8. rxrnPt Pqr*-'rn i rro,.. n'.m'rilD'+ ffin'lfrllfrHp.,ll*Si-LLS. ncron, t$tr rloci|gbi;i u-.s.iili q ofng5gliiffi%H"*,
wtf$ddin$ br on fuqlon P

corrrclrd hconr,

llml.mw#umffi$nffi1rf "
;rffiehly itni* to &t Fcttrt t'v"l'

Fq trdrnl trx puryfli, l€s lr csnddgrd r poron if yos

$trlst

;*ntmnffi *f liff ftffi J#n#,.*
st ha t r*trd $lrhr' a

*um'mu' litf.u'fi#fi **fiil'*
tofiittr'' 

ilcr tmffi
ffi:'ffiJf,swln' ffigf-o'

.drubi voQf U.9' lldur I

rhrrl of lirtnrtlP hoottts'

;

. n" U,S. ornr d r dlr*rdcd nttty rd *o' lht fitU'

1) r I I

lltrillr

l'rr' ll

Frnr*r rf

lld cd. rro, lGlillX
?gir frrv, t



I forms) and other documents as may be required to perfect the securiry interest ofDFM in
such collateral. DFM agrees to release its ;ecurify interest in the collateral as soon as the
purchase price therefore has becn paid in full.

2'5 EisF o[!oqg. From and afterthe date upon which each item of hardware
is delivered with inside detivery, to the installation addresi, the County shall assume allrisk
of loss and risk of damage with respect thereto,

2'6 frqftSfff of Wrura,ntleq. DFM agr€es to provide on the DFM Computer
Hardware Addendum a statement regarding the duraiion ofthe warranty from the Third irarty
computer Vendor with respect to Jaeh itim of Computer Hardware for which their is a
warranty of at teast one (l) year or more. DFM rgrrer to transfer and assign to the County
all warranties it receivcs or is entitlcd to from any Computer HardwarJ Vendor whose
computer Hardware has been resold by DFM to the county.

2.7 $ite'-Prep,,aratiqn, Etc. The County shall be solely responsible for, and
shell pay all costs associated with, preparation ofthe site where the Cornpuier Hardware is to
be delivered, including all alterations and installations required in order to cornply wittr all
installation, operating and site specifications of the Computer Hardware Vendor. DFM
agrees to deliver tojlre Counp copies ofthe ComputerHardware Vendor's site specifications
for any Computer Hardware ordered by the County pursuant to this Agreement. All site
prsparation shall be completcd on or before the scireduled delivery dai of the Computer
Hardware.

2.8 gqnqgllatlon* gndlor Delays. If the County cancels or terrninares irs
obligatioa to purchasc any Computer Hardwari for any reasorl or if the County is unable to
take delivery of any Computer Hardware on a timely basis, then, and in sulh even! the
County shall be liable for and agrees,to pay on bshalf ofDFM any cancellation charges, Iate
charges, restocking charges, liquidated darnages or any other rort, o, expenses which DfM
iricurs to the Computer Hardware Vendor as a resuli thcreof, Nottring coniaincd rn this
Section is intended to imply that the County has any right to cancel this Afurr*rnt except ss
otherwise expressly provided in this Agreiment.

2.9 lrl*jallation of Ccnlputqr hlardwqre. Unless orherwise stated on rhe
cornputer Hardware Purchase Addendum or on any Consulting Services Addendum, the
County shall be sole ly responsible for, and shall pay all costs associated with, the instaltation
of the Computer Hardware and the installation of any Third paffy soitware and the
integration and conncction of the Computer Hardware with any ^oper computer equipment
andlor software owned, leased, licensed, sublicsnsed, used or opirated by the Counry.

5



ARTICLE 3.
RIGHT TO USE DFM SOFTWARE

AII of the following provisions of this Article 3 shall apply to the lcase of any

Specified DFM Software by the County from DFM unless expressly modified or

supplemented by the DFM Software Addendum.

3.1 [tM,-$pf"tWAfe".*.dde,ftdurn. DFM agrecs to lease to the County, on a non-

exclusive basis, ttre DFM Software identified on aDFM Software Addendurn. The Specified

DFM Software and all prices and payment tcrms with respect thereto shall bc set forth on the

DFM Software Addendum except to the extent any such provisions are covered by Article 3

or elsewheie in this Agreement. The County shall have no right to use any DFM Software

unless and until the DFM Softrvare Addendum has been signed on behalf ofthe County and

DfM, and then, in such event, the County's rights are limited to the use andlor lease of the

Specificd DFM Software on the tenns set forth herein and therein. The County's rights to

use any Specified DFM Software arc governed and reskicted by the terrns ofthis Agreement.

3.2 tnstallalion of..the Sp.9-efi,Qd.F.FM..$$ffi#RrF. On or before the

installation date set forth on the DFM Software Addendum, or 8s soon thereafter as is

reasonablypracticablo, DFM shall insall the DFM Software. TheDFM Software shall be

deemed to have been installed when the Counfy is able to log into the EIMS and perfonn

maintenance and look-up frrnctions on it's core databases.

3.3 M. The initial installation feeforanySpecifiedDFM
Software will be set forth on the nFM $oftrryare Addendum. The County agrees to pay the

initial installation fee to DFM upon installation of the Specified DFM Software,

3.4 MpnthlvJpe. The initial Monthly Fee for the right to use any Specified

DFM Softrvare will be set forttr on the DFM Softrrare Addendum applicable thereto. As
consideration for the non-exclusive right to use the Specified DFM Software, the County
agrees to pay DFMthe Monthly Fee within thirty (30) days after receipt of a correct invoice.

Unless othenryiss provided on the DFM Software Addendum, the Monthly Fee for the first
ful! month of any Lease Term shall be paid at the time any Specified DFM Software has been

installed. If any rental payment date falls on a day of the month other than the first day of
such month, or if any rental payment is for a period which is $hortcr than one month, the
rental for any fractional month shall accrue on a daily basis for the period from the date such

payment is due to the end of such calendar month or to the end of the Lease Term at arate
per day whieh is equal to one-thirtieth ( I /30) ofthe then cunent l$fonthly Fee. DFM reserves

the right to increase the Monthly Fee, by an amount not to exceed seven percent (7Yo'1per

6



annum, as of July lst of each year of the Lease Term upon ninety (90) days prior written
notice to thc County.

i;

3.5 . DFM grants to the Countythe nonexclusive right to lease and ur. tt 
- 

sp..in"a6-rut softtuure on fr" t.r* and subjectto the conditions set forth in this Agreement. The county's right to use and lease anySpecified DFM-Software specifically excludes the right to sublicense, assign, sublease orotherwise nansfer the Specified DFM Software andloiany ofthe County,s rights hereunderor therein.

3'6 FIM $-ojhfare Relg"aBes. DFM shall provide the county wirh altsofrware Releases for the $pecified nFtut son**r within one hundred twenty (120) daysafter thc new Softwart Releasc becomes generally available to other DFM customers. Thecost of ttre $oftware Roleascs is includecl in td Monthly Fee. Installation of the DFMSo*ware Releases will be coordinated by DFM and a designated representative of theConnty.

3'7 
4u$q,ntrp$, ,Mglnje.$a,nre. A[ softrvare Maintenance, softrvare

Enhancements and Softrrare neteasei srrart be provided and installsd by employees orauthorized agents ofDFM. ' '

3'8 Post lFslallFlicn, sgrvices. DFM agrees toprovide the county wittr post-
installation services as follows:

(a) DFM agrees to provide maintenance of the Specified DFM Softrvare to correctprogram erors and to use good faith reasonable efforts to corrcct compatibility probleins
113p-s1ch Cornputer Haldwarc, Specified DFM Third party Software *O ml SpecifieaDFM Software, the cost of which is included in the Monthly Fee for such Specified DFM
Software; and

(b)DfM agr8es to provide Softrvare Releases covering applicable legislative
changes and enactmeTt o-fryw laws applicable to such specifisd DFMblftware, the cost ofwhich is included in rhe Monthly Fee.

. 3'9 Trai$nU. DFM agrees to provide the county with the following trainingselices with respect to any Specifiid DFM Software:

(a) DFM will estabtish, with thetrelp ofa designatedr"epresentative ofthe Counfy,
which usen will participate in training and onwhich ru6ryrt.*r.

7



(b)DfM will develop a training schedule with sufficient training to allow the

deparftnent or agency of the County, *'hic[ will have primaty responsibility for using the

Specifred DFM Software to operate it'

(c) DFM will conduct the actual training sessions, ineluding 'ohands on" and

forrnar crassroom *irring, with the initial uaining to be on-site at the countyns facilities'

user Eaining costs for any specified DFM software are incruded in the Initial installation

Fee and the Monthly Fee." There are no additional costs for taining' As subsystems of any
-sp"rin*a 

nFM $ofiware are enhanced or changed to conform to new requirernent" usprs will

fi prouiA"a rainid;ith respeot thereto on aa on-going basis. Training with respect to

enhanced or chungei .uU*yrt**s can be on-site ot.tgionul, depending on the material and

individual needs ofthe users'

3.10 ' Notwithstanding any otherprovision

of this Agreement or obligation to perfonn any software

Maintena$ce or to provide the iounty with any Software Enhancements or Releases' or to

;;irr *ytrui"iniiotfrt Ccuntywithrespectto.any Sp€cinedDFM Software ifthe County

fails or refirses ts utilize the most currsnt revisicn of the $pecified. Operating System

soto** required uy niu; provided, however, in any event, DFM shall give the county at

least one-hundred ni*ty ifi0) days prior written nodle of the need to upgrade or replace the

version of the Specinei Op*r:uting System Software which the County is then using, and

DFM shall consult with the County's user Soup regarding the scheduling of such changes'

ARTICLE 4.
CONSULTING SERVICE$

DFM egrees to provide the Counry with any Specified Consulting Services which are

identified on the consutting Services Addendum, including, without limitation, enhancement

and modification p*p*tilring for the County to meet any unique requirements of the

County, subject to afrUaUility"of DFM technical personnel and agreement regardrng a

mutually acceptable hourly rate for DFM's technical personnel' All terms and pricing forthe

ip".in'Ja Consultint i**ir.r, including the naturJ of the Specified Consulting Service,

hourty rate(s) ctrargJC by DFlvftherefore, the payment terms and any other applicable terms

and conditions related thereto, will be set forth on the Consulting Services Addendum'

ARTICLE 5.

OBLIGATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIFS OF THE COUNTY

8



5.1 Apc-ess to Facijitie$. The County shallprovide DFM and its employees
and authorized agents aicess to the Counfy's facilities, including the Computer Hardware,
and shall provide them with adequate facilities (including a desk, work area and computer),
to enable DFM to perform its obligations under this Agreement in an effective, efficient and
professional manner. Access shall be provided during the County's usual busincss hours
upon reasonable prior notice except in the case of an ernergency when access shall be
provided as soon as is reasonably practicable.

5.2 QglTmercialAc€ess, The County shall limit the commercial accoss to or
use of any Specified DFM Software without the prior written approval of DFM which
approval may be conditioned by DFM upon receipt of an acceptable sublicense agreement
between the County and the proposed corirmercial user and thc payment to DFM by the
County of a reasonable additional license and/or use fee with respcct thereto. The County's
obligation to limit commercial acc€ss or uss is cxpressly restricted to those situations in
which thc County has actual knowledge of such commercial access or uss and the County is
not expressly precluded orprohibitcd by law from enforcing theprovisions of this Seotion
5.2. For purposes hereo{, the term "cornmsrcial access" means flny access to or use of any
Specified DFM Software other than (i) by the County for its own internal usc in order to
fulfill its duties, or (ii) by any person for its non*cornmercial private use; and "non-
cornmercial private use" mcans any use or access by such person who is physically present at
any County premises for which no consideration is paid, charged or receivsd by thc County.
It is contemplated that a business which sells or uses the Coung's Data (as that tcrm is
defined in Section 5.4 below) in a commercial enterprise, such as a title company, can be
included in the cxception described in olause (ii) above to the extent it is physically present at
&e County's facilities when it is accessing or using Ore Specified DFM Software to examine
the County's Data andlor to update its own data base. The t€rm "physically present" is meant
in its literal sense and it is not intended to sover or include off-site access of any kind,
including without limitation, off-site access using modems and other communications
equipment.

5.3 $aepified.,.O*ergline Syelem $gfi{ecE. The county shall be solely
responsible for, and shall pay all costs and expen$es associated with, the purchase or license
of, and the installation and maintenance of;, the appropriate version of the Specified
OperatingSystemsoftwarerequiredbyDFM atany timeorfromtime totime. TheCounfy

, acknowledges and understaflds that upgrading of Computer Hardware and of ttre Speeilied
\ Operating System $oftwars and any ather applicrtians software used in conjunction with ths
DFM Software will be reguired from time to time; provided {gwever, in any event, DFM
shall give the County at least one-hundred twenty (f iOl days priiiwritten notice of the need
to upgrade or replace the version of the Spccified Operating System Software which the

I
1



County is then using, and DFM shall consult with the County's user group regarding the 
scheduling of such changes. 

5.4 Resgonsibility for the County's Data. At all times during the tenn of this

Agreement, the County shall retain all ownership rights in the County's Data ( as that tenn is 
defined below). In addition, notwithstanding any use by the County of any DFM Software in 
connection therewith, the County shall be solely responsible and accowitable for the accuracy 
and completeness of, all data and infonnation stored by it in any database in any format 
(hereafter referred to as the "County's Data"), and for any use, publication or other 
dissemination of the County's Data. If the County uses,publishes or otherwise disseminates, 
or otherwise allows any access to, any portion of the County's Data, whether before or after it 
has been manipulated by the DFM Software, and whether or not it is a commercial or non
commercial use, by doing so the County is representing to DFM that it has accepted, ratified 
and approved the accuracy and completeness of the County's Data and accepts full 
responsibility for it. The County hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and hold DFM 
harmless from and against any claims, liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, which DFM may incur or suffer arising out of the 
accuracy or inaccuracy of (which includes omissions to) the County's Data, including, 
without limitation, claims of any third party who accesses the County's Data using the DFM 
Software. 

ARTICLE 6. 
PROPRIETARY ASPECTS OF THE DFM SOFTWARE; 

CONFIDENTIALITY COVENANTS 

6.1 Protection of Confidentiality of DFM Software. DFM has taken 
reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy and confidentiality of the DFM Software. 
All employees ofDFM and other persons who have designed, developed or programmed all 
or any portion of the DFM Software, ·or any software included therein, or who othenvise have 
knowledge of or access thereto, have been adequately notified that the DFM Software is 
proprietary to DFM and is not to be divulged, used or exploited except as expressly 
authorized by DFM in writing. 

6.2 Confidentiality Covenants of the County. The County acknowledges 
and agrees that the DFM Software, and all constituent parts thereof, is valuable only as long 
as it remains secret and confidential. Accordingly, the County agrees to take all steps 
reasonably necessary to protect and maintain the confidentiality of all DFM Software and to 
prevent 'it from entering the public domain or falling into the hMds of others not bound by 
this Agreement. In furtherance hereof, the County agrees as follows: 

10 



t

(a}TheCountyshalluseitsgoodfaithreasonableet-f'0rtst*restrictaccesstoany

Cornputer UarOwur" running o*upoui*'oi ac"*ssing the DFM $oftware' and to the DFM

software itselr ,o prru*, uriauthoriz.i p.iror*e r frJrn acquiring significant nr confidential

information concerning the DFM Sofuvare'

(b)Totheextentreasonablypracticable,theCountyshallrequireallpersonswho

will have access to any DFM $lftware, to Sign on an annual basis a oonfidentiality

agreenienr, in a roni prJ"ia-a by DFM which is acceptablc to thc county'

{c}TheCountyshallnatduplicaleorre.nrgducc(excepttofhe:r.mreasonably
required ta b*ek-up the Speci$ied nFM $o{lw*re in *ra ardinaqyiourse of business}' in any

merur€r, any DfM boflware, or any ,o*ponrn or constituent parts ttrereof, and agrees not to

disseminate, display or u$e any DFM Softrvare, or any component^or constituent parts

thereof;, of any iniormation o, *otoial conceming any OffU.Softvarg except as is

reasonably necessary for the co*ty-io pororm its functions using any specified DFM

b"n"*t *A t9 comply with the terms of this Agreement'

(dlThe county shall notif DFM immediately of any and all unauthorized

disclosures, or any;tp-.,; unauthorized disclosures of any DfM Software'

6.SBinding.Hffect.Notrvithstandingthefactthatcertainemployees,agenlso
contractors, ,ubroiltffi o, tii"*rrs of the County are not parties to this Agreement' the

rerms and provisi*, or*iu Article 6 shall be binding upon the county and all ofits officers'

employeeq agcnts, contractors, subcon&actors and licensees'

6.4trieggveffg.f.$pqpjfies,,Hr.l$spfwvare.FvLeoalPragess.Ifatany
rirne, a party ro any litigation inuoloinffiffi"s3,nction or depargnents of the County

which uses any Sp;;i?irJbfM Sofrarel seeks by way of litigation or legal process to

discover information in any way related to any Specifiid DFM Software, or requires the

production of any $p".in*O pFM6oft,Hare, or &ny cornponentorconstituentpartthereof' the

County shall prornptly notiry DFM of such matter as soolt as the complaint, subpoena or

discovery request has-been served on the Counfy or its lawyers, but in no event later than ten

( l0) days after service thereof, Prior !o the time specified in the legal document' court order'

subpocna or rnoving papers for the disclosure of information relating to, or the delivery of all

Li *V portion of any Specified DFM Softwaren the Coun$ shall cooperate with DFM so a$

to maintain, to the maximum extent reasonably practicable and permitted by law'.$e

confidentiality and secrecy of all Specified DF1i Software and to request, if requested by

DFM, a protcctivc order oith, court or legal forum to avoid fiXlher disclosure or dirrulgence

of any matters relating to any Specified nFU Softrpare and toassure the continued protection

11



of the confidentialiry thereof. Howevern such action is to occur only in the event that DFM is

unabte to make d;it i;;*ention inro said legal action or proceeding. DFM shall

reirnburse the county-lo.-uil-rr*onaule legal feeJand expenses which it incurs resulting

fto* actions it has taken pursuant to this Section'

AR,TICLE 7.
WARRANTIES AN D LIMITATION$

7.1|dmitedW+rrantx.$pecifiedD[!4sffhilgr-e.DFyw€rrants,forthe
sole benefit of the that the Specified DFM Software

shall be capable ofperfomring the core functions set forth on ttre DFM Software Addendum

related thereto, subject to the limitations set forth in section ?.2 belowand on the specified

DFM Software edden4um. This is DFM's sole express warranty with respect to any

Specified DFM Son*ar"" Any claim !f *r* Counry against DFM for breach of its express

warrd*y must be in writing and must be promptly Oeti"ereC by the County to DFM' In the

event of any breach of DFM's cxpress *.t"tity' the Counfy's sole andexcfusive remedy

against DFM, and DFM's sole and exclusive ranffty to the county, shalt be that DFM at its

sole cost and rxpeore, tn"ff exercise good faith (for all purposes of this Agreemenf the term

.?ood faith. shall have the same meaning as that t**, is defured and used in Califomia

Comrnercial Code Section 2103(1)S)) rea,Jonable efforts to provide adequate programming

services to correcf rurt intt*tini'd"fr.t, as DFM and the county deem necessery or

appropriate. warranty service performed in accordance with this section shall be performed

;ir;d normal *r*t Auy business hgurs, excluding DFM hotidays' With-respect to any

reported errors tirai resutt or wilr resurt in significant intemrption of the county's

piar.ti"lry or don"n time ("Business Impacting Faitur-es"), DFM shatl use its best efforts to

trg* eror concrti"" pr*ta*tt withiniwenty'no* (24) hours after receipt of such report'

with respest to any r-p"ttta etrors th{ do not constitute Business Impacting Failures' DFM

,t uil uu, its good iirith ,*u*ooable efforts to begin errot coffection procedures no later than

seventy-two (?2) trours after receipt of such t"pon. DFIvI's sole and exclusive obligation

under the foregoi"g ;;;t tntn * to exircise its good faith reasoTblt ef,forts to

implement uppropriut* ,11o1. ,orrrctions in response to notices frorn the Counfy of such

errors. In the eventDFM does noremedy the tsusiness ImpactingFailures yi*hin 30 days of

notification by the County, County may terminate lease payments and cease utilizing

software. The County mayelect to continue lease payments and utitize a sixty-day iransition

period as conditioned in Article l0'4'

7 .2 W.Aqrarjy himljplimp .*S,pe*t[ed",RFI'vl $g'ftt4/fltq" Notwithqtanding the

warranty pro'iri*iilEih in s*iion i.'i above, a[ of DFM's obligations with respect to

,"-h;#;ies $hatt be conringent upon the county' use of th*.specified DFM software in

1?



4ccsrdiince \'vith fhis Agreenlent and in accorciance with instructions pruvicled by DFM fielmtirne to time, including ilrose set fortir in rn* rur*;;l-, -r rhe sarne may be amencled,strppicmcntecl or nlodifieel lron time t* tirne. DllM shail-have no warrnng oblignticn:

(a) with respect to any portion of the specified DFM softqrare which has been:

(i) operated by trre county or its 
. 

elnproyees, {gent.s, cCInrraetors,subcontractors or licensees in a manner inconsistent wirh the requirements set rCIfth in theManuals or elsewhere, or that has been modified by any party other than DFM;

DFM; fii) Damaged in any manner by any cause other than any act or omission of

(iii) operated or rnaintained in environmental conditions outside theparametersdesignated by DFM in ttre Manuals or elsewhnre;

(iv) subjected to extreme power surges or erectromagnetic fierd(s);

(vj R*instailed witherut the prinr written consent of DFM; or(vi) Detennined try DFM tu ituu* * .o* o, defect, which fuct is ecnveyecl tothe countytogethu with supplemental instructions on how to avoiel srcircumvent th* erroror defect' and rhe counfy raiit orrefirses to fotlow the supplemental instructions,

{b} As a result eif or in ftny way canneefed with nny enor or defect in the $pecifiedilperafing $ystem soff[urare and/*iany npplication *on***provided by nrry Third partysgftwere vendo6 prCIvidcd, however, ir *u*tr *";;i, DFi; wiu use ier good faith re*sonebleeff<xts to resolvc tlre prohlem to fh; extent that aresolution is reasonably available byreprogrcmming the DFM Softrrare;

(c) As a result of orin anywfty connected with rhe Countyos fhilure or refusal touse fhe specified operating systern soJlware oi io ip,grud, its computar l{ardware asrequested hy DFM; qrr

(d) As a resutt of or in any connected with any of the county,s Data.

7.3
DFM ponsNor

REPRESENT OR WARRJI'NT T}IAT T}M $pncrflsn ilFM SoTTwnne wILL BEFREEFRoM ERRoRsOR TIIAT ALL ERNORS IN ANY $PacIFIrn $IfM $orrw*sr W,;1.1" Bs coRREcl"ED. THgWannnr*ry sTATED tN Sncr.to|,I 7.1 ts rrlf, sor_E AND *XCLI,J$IVE, W*Rn;trurY fiF"FgREp sY
wARIIANl"tgsT}FM" TT{ERE A&E No oTHER

13

rrESPHCTINc THE $PEcIFIED DFM $oRTwaRE,



EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF DES[GN, 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, EVEN IF DFM HAS BEEN 
INFORMED OR rs OTHERWISE MADE AWARE OF SUCH PURPOSE. No AGENT OF DFM IS 
AUTHORIZED TO ALTER OR EXCEED THEW ARRANTY OBLIGATIONS Of DFM SET FORTH lN THIS 
ARTICLE 7. 

7.4 Limitation on Liability and Remedy Specified DFM Software. THE 
COUNTY ACKNOWLEDGES nm COMPLEXITY AND rNTERRELATIONSHIPS OF EACH OF THE 
COMPONENT AND CONSTITUENT PARTS COMPRISING ANY SPECIFIED DFM SOFTWARE. THE 
COUNTY FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT TI-IE MONTI-IL Y FEE WHICH DFM IS 
CHARGING FOR ANY SPECIFIED DFM SOFTWARE DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY CONSIDERATION FOR 
ASSUMPTION BY DFM OF THE RISK OF THE COUNTY'S INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES WHICH MAY ARISE IN CONNECTION WITIJ THE COUNTY'S USE OF ANY SPECIFIED 
DFM SOFTWARE. ACCORDINGLY, TI-IE COUN1Y AGREES THAT DFM SHALL NOT BE 
RESPONSIBLE TO TIIE COUNTY, OR ANY DEPAR1MENT, AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION THEREOF, 
FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF 1llE LICENSrNG, 
LEASING OR USE OF ANY SPECIFIED DFM SOITW ARE; PROVIDED HOWEVER TI-lA T DFM SHALL 
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SUCH INCIDENTAL (BUT NOT CONSEQUENTIAL) COSTS AND EXPENSES 
ARISING IN CONNECTION Wlffi ANY INFRINGEMENT OR ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD 
PARTY PROPRIETARY RIGHTS AS SET FORTH IN ARTICLE 8 BELOW. 

7.5 Warranty and Limitations Computer Hardware. ALL ITEMS OF 

TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERlY, INCLUDING ANY COMPUTER HARDWARE WI-IlCH ARE RESOLD 
BY DFM TO THE COUN1Y, ARE SOLD "AS IS" AND "WITH ALL FAULTS"; PROVIDED, 
HOWEVER, DFM HEREBY ASSIGNS TO TIIE COUNTY ALL OF ITS RIGHTS UNDER ANY 

WARRANTIES IT RECENES FROM THE COMPUTER HARDWARE VENDOR. DFM MAKES NO 
REPRESENTATION OR w ARRANTY AS TO nm TYPE, NATURE OR KIND OF WARRANTY' IF ANY, 
FROM THE COMPUTER HARDWARE VENDOR. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH lN THIS SECTION 7.5, 
THERE ARE NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR OBLIGATIONS OF DFM WITH 
RESPECT TO THE COMPUTER HARDWARE AND ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF DESIGN, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, EVEN IF DFM HAS BEEN INFORMED OR IS OTHER WISE MADE AW ARE OF SUCH 
PURPOSE, ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED. NO AGENT OF DFM IS AUTHORIZED TO ALTER 
OR EXCEED THE WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS OF DFM SET FORTH rN THIS ARTICLE 7. THE 

COUNTY FURTilER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY MARK�UP OR COMMISSION WHICH 
DFM RECEIVES IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF TI-IE COMPUTER HARDWARE DOES NOT 
INCLUDE ANY CONSIDERATION FOR ASSUMPTION BY DFM OF THE RISK OF THE COUNTY'S 
INCfDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHICH MAY ARISE fN CONNECTION WITH THE 

• • • �, • I f _, I,,,.._,

COUNTY'S USE OF THE COMPUTER HARDWARE. ACCORDJNGL Y, THE COUNTY AGREES THAT 
DFM SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO THE COUNTY, OR ANY DEPARTMENT, AGENCY OR 

14 



SU BDIVISION THEREOF, FOR ANY INCTDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISTNC OUTOF
THE PURCHASE OR USE OFANY COMPUTER HARDWARE.

ARTICLE 8.
HOLD HARMLESS _ COPYRIGHTS, PATENTS AND LICEN$HS

8"1 Indsntnification by.QFM. DFM, at its own expense, shall indemniS,
defend, protect and hold the County harmless against any claim which may be brought
against the County or its oflicers, agents or ernployess, to the extent that it is based on a
claim that thc County's use of the Specified DFM Software pursuant to this Agrccmenq or
any of its components or constituent parts leased or licensed hereunder, infringes any patent,
copynght, license or hade secret of any third party, and in such event, DFM shall pay alt of
those costs and damages, including expenses andreasonable attorneys' fees, finally awarded
against the County or any of its officers, agents or employees attributable to sush claim. To
the extent allowed by law, con*ol ofthe defense, including all negotiations and discussions
regarding compromise and settlemen! shall be vested in DFM, but shall be with the advise
and consent of the County. The obligations of DFM set forth in this $ection are conditional
upCIn compliancc by the County with all ofthe provisions set forth in Sections 8.2 through
8.3 below.

8.2 Notice of Claimq. The County covenants and agrees to provide DFM with
written notice ofany actual, threatened or potential infringement claim within thirty (30) days
of notice thereof by or to the County.

8.3 RemFdiAlA$tion. I4intheopinionofDFlvlthe$pecifiedDFMSoftware
or any of its components leased to the County is likely to or has become the subject of a
claim of infringement ofpatents, copyrigbts, licenses or trade secrsts ofanyttrirdparly, thcn,
without diminishing DFM's obligations to sadsry the final award, DFM may, at its option
and expense, either (i) obtain the right fcr the Counff to continue to use ttre Specified DFM
Sofrware and its components leased hereunder, or (ii) substitute for the allegedly infringing
cornponcnts other equally suilable components mutually satisfactoryto the County and DFM.

ARTICLE 9.
TERM

The initial Lease Term for any Specified DFM Software or any Specified Consulting
Serrrice shall be set forth on the Addendum applicable theretoi After the expiration of the
initial term, this Agreement shall aijibmatically continuewith respect to such Specified DFM

15



Software or such Specified Consulting Service on a year to year basis, unless either parfy

gi.4r the other written notice, at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the term, of
its decision not to renew the term hereof with respect tc such Specified DFM Softrvare or

sucir Specified Consulting Service, in which case the term as its reiates to such Specified

Coorulting Service and/oisuch Specified DFM Software shall terminate on the June 30th at

tt * **piriion of its term. Continuance of the term of this agreement may include a

negotiated increase in the Monthly Fee"

ARTICLE 10.

RIGFIT TO TERMINATE OR SUSPEND PERFORMANCH; BREACHF$

10.1 |lon-4p*fop.fiatio::,of Eqnds. The continuationofthis Agreement as it

relates to any Specinea Consuttiag Servicc or to any Specified DFM Software after June

30ttr of the County's fiscal year, is subject to appropriation by the County's Board of
Sulxrvisors forthe necessary funding hereof. Inthe event ofnon-appropri-ati9n of fiutds for

thJ Monthly Fee, or any other consideration payable to DFM hereunder, this Agreernent will
automaticaily and immediately terminate on June 30th of the then-current County fiscal year

end as to any Specified Consulting Service and the Specified DFM Software for which no

appropriation was approved. However, in no event shall this Agreement be tenninated, as

provid.O in this Seciion, for the pu{pose of replacing any Specified Consulting Service

*dlor any Specified DFM Software. fuiy atempt by the County to replace any Specified

Consulting Service and/or any Specified DFM Softrrare prior to the expiration of the term set

forth in the Addendum applicable thereto, shall be deemed to be a material breach by the

County of this Agreemeni and the damages to which DFM will be entitled as a result thereof

shall assume, foi these purposes, that the County had fully appropriated all frmds for the

particular Consulting Service andlor the Specified DFM Software for the full term set forth

in ttre Addenda related thereto. Any permissible termination of this Agreement pursuant to

this Section shall not relieve the County of its obligations set forth in Article 6 above.

fi.z CgU"nty_Sreqgnes, For purposes of this Agreement the term "County

Breach" or "Coungr Breaches" means any one or more of the following events, acts or

ocsurTences:

(a) Any breach by the County, or any of its officers, employees, agents,

contractors, subcontractors or licensees, of any of the provisions of Article 6; provided,

however, instead of terminating the Ageement, DFM, in its sole and absolute discretion,

may give notice to the County of the breaeho demanding adgguate as$ura$ces from *re

Counqr thnt it willpratect the praprietary interest of DFM and rEmedy all prior breaches. In
the svent that thc C*unty fail* tc pravicle such adequate assurances and to remedy such

16



breaches within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of the notice (Suspense Period"), tire
Agreement will automatically terminate as if no demand for adequate assurances had been

made. For purposes of &is Section, the parties agree that the Suspense Period is reasonable

based on the proprietary interest to be protected by DFM and the interest of the County to
continue the right to use any Specified DFM Software.

(b) AnV rnodification of any DFM Software which is accomplished or undertaken
by the County, its employees, or its authorized agents subject to this Agreement other than
DFM or its employces or authorized agents, shall give DFM the right to terminate the

Agreement, or any portion thereof related to the Specified DFM Softrvare which was subject
to the unauthorized modification.

(c) Any breach by the County of any of its monetary obligations to DFM in which
event DFM shall havc the right at any time after thirty (30) days prior written notice, to
suspend its performance under this Agreement and, if the County Breach'continues for an
additional thirty (30) days, then DFM may, at its optiorl terrninate the Agrcement, or any
portion thereofrelated to the Specified Consulting Service or Specified DFM Softrvare which
was involved in such breach.

(d)AnV material breach by the County of any of its other obligations under this
Agreement (other than.thoss obligations described in subparagraphs (a) through (c) above),
which continues for a period of thirty (30) days after written notiae thereof from DFM
speciffing thc nature of the breach and tire curative action, if any, which must be taken, in
which event the provisions of Section 10.4 shall become applicable at the expiration of the
thifiy (30) day period if the breach has not been fully cured at that time,

$ubject to the provisions of Section 10.4 below, the remedies in favor of DFM set forth in
this Section 10.2 are not exclusive and DFM shall have the right to pursue any other remedy
to which it may be entitled.

10.3 Debilitating Svent. Any of the following cvents, which occurs with
respect to DFM, shall be deemed to be a "Debilitating Event" and shall cause ttris Agreement

to be modified immediately upon notice to the Counfy of such Debilitating Event and shall
cause the Agreement to terminate automatically fwo hundred forly (240) days thereafter:

(a) Any assignment by DFM for the benefit of its creditors; or the entry of a court
order appointing a receiver or trustee for all or substantially all of DFM's assets or properties,

which o.gder shall nqf. $e vacated, set aside qr stayed within siaff,(f0) days from the day of
entry of said court order; or the filing by DFM of a petition in banknrptcy or the

17



cor$mencemsnt of any similar proceeding under any law for the relief of debtors by or

against DFM; or

(b) Any permanent cessation by DFM of its business, which is not succeed to by a

successor in interest; or

(c) fuiy voluntary termination or dissolution of DFM pursuant to,which the rights

of DFM under this Agreement have not been hansferred to a successor in interest.

10.4 TranEition PgIgd. Forpurposcs of this Agreernent, lhe term "Transition
period,o ,hull *rrffiffi@?ty p"tiod immediately fotlowing the occurrence of a

co.rory Breach other tha$ a county Breach related to the payment of money to DFM, or two

hundrid forty (240) days following the occurrcnce of a Debilitating Event, whichever is

appticalte. fnir Agreement shail cJntinue, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder shall

reirain, in full forcJand effect duringthe Transition Period subject only to legal impatryents

on tt* ability ofDFM to perform ifthe Transition Period arises as a result of a Debilitating

Event. provided, however, in no event shall ttre Transition Period extend beyond the

expiration of the term of ttris Agreernent. The obligations of the County set forth in this

ngfrc*rnt shall continue, to thJsxtent applicable, notwithstanding the termination of this

o llis a 3 is n s slthc "Q.P t*ilgAt . Ex p igl3ls a B[ Jrp n *ilio"n Jb-riod'

(a) Immediately upon the termination of ttris Agreemen! the County shall return to

DFM uny uni alt tangible manifestations of any DFM Software previously delivered by DFM

to the Cognty, and any copies, duplicates or reproduetions thereof;, whether authorized or not'

(b) In the event of the occurrence of a Debilitating Event, the County shall be

permitted io'continue to use any Specified DFM Software during the Transition Period;

provided, however, DFM will not provide any Softrrare Maintenance, Softrvare

bnh*.ments or Software Releases during such period of time; and, provided, further, the

obligation of the County to pay the Monthly Fee shall be reduced to an arnount equal to

eigh-ty percent (80%) ofthe apiticaUte Monthly Fee which would otherwise be applicable

during such period.

10.6 Qption tUfurclElge the Speqified$fM $oftW-are. In the event of the

tennination of iltit egt**t*nt at ieiaieO tc any Specified DFM Software, where such

termination is as the result of a Debilitating Event, but only in s.y,ch event, the County shall

havc the right and optioir to purchase the copy of the $pbcified SItN4 software (including a

Agreement.

10.5

18



copy of the source code) which it has installed on its Cornputer Hardware ("Software

Purchase Option") on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Section:

(a) In order to exercise its option pursuant to this Section, the County must deliver
to DFM written notice ("Option Notice") of its intent to exercise the Softrvare Purchase

Option, speciffing the Specified DFM Software which it desires to purchase, and it must
deliver the Option Notice to DFM prior to the expiration of the Transition Period.

(b) The Purchase Price (as that term is defined bclow) is payable in cash in full not
later than thirly (30) days after receip by DFM of the Option Notice.

(c) The Purchasc Price shall be equal to sixty (60) tirnes the then applicable
Mon*rly Fee for the Specified DFM Software which is the subject of the Software Purchase

Option ifthe termination is during the first year afterthe commencencnt ofthe initial tenn of
this Agreement as it is rclated to such $pecified DFM Softrvare, forfy-eigl$ (48) times the
then applicabls Monthly Fee if the terminatiou is during the second year of the initial term,

and thirfy-six (36) times the then applicable Monthly Fee if thc termination is at any other
time.

(d) The Softrvare Purchase Option is personal to the County and may not bc sold or
assigned. Shict compliance by the County with atl of the provisions of this Section is
required. Failure to strictly comply with the tirne frames shall cause the Software Purchase

Option to terminate.

ARTICLE 11.
NO JOINT VENTURE

Nothing contained in ttris Agrcement, or in any Addenda, shall be deemed or
construed as creating a joint venture or partnership betrveen the parties. Except as expressly

set forth herein, no party by virtue of this Agreement or any Addenda is authorized as an

agent, employee or legal repre$entative of any other perty, and the relationship of the parties

is, and at all times will continue to be, that of independent contractors.

ARTICLE 12.
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

' Nonvithstanding any provision of this Agreement or ofarif'Addenda to the contrary,

either pafiy shall have the right to seek and obtain injunctive relief against the other party

19



frorn any judicial or administrative aurhority having jurisdiction, including any municipal or

supe.ioi court of the State of California or any federal district court'

ARTICLE 13.

MISCE LI-ANEOUS PROVI$ION$

13.1 Permile" and..Licenqgs, DFM and all of its employees and agents shall

secure and maintai" i" f** *u*tt ti*.** and permits as are required of DFM by law in

connection the furnishing of equipment, malerials or services necessary for DFM's

performance under this APeement.

13.2 l,lotiCqg. All notices, requests, demands and other communications

required or conternffihereunder shalt be in writing, shalt be penonally delivered or sent

by registered or ceriified mail, postage prepai4 return ieceipt requcsted and shall be deemed

to frie been given upon the earlier of (a) the date of personal delivery to the person to

receive such notice ut *, address indicated below or (b) if mailed to the person to receive

sush notice at the address indicated below, four (4) br.lsiness days after the date ofposting by

the United States post gffice as evideaced by the execution of the rehm receipt" The parties

addressss, for all purposes herco{, sre as follows:

lf to DFM: DFM Associates
l0 Chrysler
Irvinc, California 92618
Attn: Thomas G. Diebolt, President

lf to the CountY:

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice but shatl not be deemed effective

until it has been given in the manner detailed in this Section.

13.3 Not uged.

13.4 Nq---"
1g.5. 

. " Ag5ignmed., The County and DFM shall nbt be entitled to assign this

Agreement or any rf i6 rtghtr or interest in this Agreement, including any rights or interests

2A



in any Addenda. This Agreement contemplates a license between DFM and the County
without any right to license, sublicense, assign or sublease. Except as providcd herein, thil
Agreernent shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

13"6 Lantion,s. The captions ofthe sections and subsections ofthis Agreement
are included for reference purposes only and are not intended to be a part of this Agreement
or in e$y way to define, lirnit or describe the scope cr intent of the particular provision to
which they refer.

13.7 qerden Singglar endPlura"f NtllnhpJ. The neuter gender inctudes rhe
feminine and masculine, the masculine includes the feminine and neuter, and the feminine
includes ths masculine and neutcr, and each includes a corporation, parhrership or other legal
cntity when ths conte $ so reguires. Also, the singutar shall include the plural number where
the context so requires and visa versa.

13.8 lntergUpffltiog. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each has
been given thc opportunity to independently review this Agreement with tegal counsel, and
has the requisite experience and sophistication to undsrstand, intcrprct and agree to the
particular language of the provisions hereof. In the event of any ambi$dty in or dispute
regarding the interpretation of this Agreement, or any provision hcreof, the interpretation of
this Agreement shall not be resolved by any rule providing for interpretation against thcparfy
who causes the uncertainty to exist or ogainst the parly who is the draffsman of this
Agreement.

13.9 Farti*l lnva$di,tyend Sgjt?tabilig. If any provision of this Agrccmcnt
shall be held or deemed to be, or shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in
any particular case because if conflicts with any other provision or provisions hereof or any
constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other rcason, such circumstances
shall not have the cffect ofrendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable
in any other csse or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein
contained invali4 inoperative or unenforceable to any exitent whatsoeyer; provided, however,
if any provision of this Agreement relating to the payment of monies to DFM or any
provision of Articles 6,7,11 or 13 is found to be inoperative or unenforceable for any
reason, then in such event, such provision shall not be severed from or read out of this
Agreement. The invalidity of any one or more pluases, sentences, cleuses, sections or
subsections of this Agreement shall not afflect the remaining portions thereof except as
provided in the preceding sentence. 

,.st*

21



l3.l0EtjrthglAsgr;rqnpeq.,Eachpartyagrl$tocoCIperatcfullywiththeOtlrer
narry a'cr ro **.rutffiTililir'*stru'rents, aocurrrcnts ^;;;;;"*ents' 

and to give such

-rrr*r*, 
v*,$en *r-r-*-, u, nroy u* l*r*n*rrry rcquest; uy t!: otlrlr fl*v' 

t* hetter

eviclc*ce and r*flect;-;;;-*rion,,i***rJu** 
in oo., *,rn,*'ipiir*J uy this Agree'msnr'' utd

to carry into effect tf" ini** and purposes of this Agreement'

13.11NolrrplipdWaiv"'erg...fr,failureelfeltlrer.partyatallyliT.*u'^fr.omtimet*
time to require p*rroffiEuy tt * otrr*, iurr'y of any .et..::";;;ereof 

shall not affect in any

way rhe righr ro rr;;;;;;h'purfo'o*i** *t uny t*t*' ti*tino' trtu' the waiver by either

perry of a breach "l;l;il#il;;il;;.d 
or haitr ;;;;;; *-iver of such pr*vision'

l3.l2ApntiSablefaW"T'iuAgteeRr*nfshallbegovernedtry'interpreicdunqfer'anel
c*nsrruetr *d *ndffifr?*ou*unr*Tiii';;';;;;;.r 

d;;, Jr ooi *'* taws pertai'ins tt:

confli*ts nr ch'ice,,traws, of trr" s,*J-r*uio*iu uppl;;bil- esre€menr$ rnaer* atr<tr to

be performert wholil;t'ltitt the State of California'

13.13 C,o-unlerppfts' 
'This Agreement and any Adclenda may bc executed

simulraneousry inffi or more ro*,*#fl1,"#il;ffi#Le-tilrtrati 
constitute one and

the same instrumcnt'

13'14 ' Tt' Agreement *{ tll Addenda

incorporated hereil, and alr other ugffiffi-*,qyr;;ft;F*q"ired to be delivered

in connection herewith, conrain trr* Jti*.*lrot rrai,,e^i,dffi" *,* n111rs hereto with

,,up *,* ro the *o: [i,i,-i* t -***;;$X*,yff* t-ffi'1{!fr:ff q-l1
*#rrn or oral negotiations and "trt-tT::r:'"T:i;;;ff;*ir provision of this

ffiik;1Tf$#j*#r.w::*xt_ffi ;xffi ,llH-ll#lnin*i,ineuna

;ifr;d bY all of the Parties hereto'

22

'*a



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly exccuted this Agreement as of the

date fint above mentioned,

DFM ASSOCIATES, a California COUNTY OF INYO, a political subdivision of
the $tate of California

Cha{

Thomae . Diebolt
President

Its

)

?

23

drG. r.



EIM$TM for Windows SOFTWARE ADDENDUM

WHEN SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY ANO DFTII

THIS ADDE}IDUII' SHALL BECOIIE A PART OF THAT

CERTAIN rulASTE R AGREEIIiENT' DATED AS OF

("MASTER AGREEMENT'}

4 1 l*p.adTapJs, I-{n*fis,J'issnse: $600'

50 l*iti*l h&rrthly"lisp: $ I 000'00'

g[Ms*isanacronymforgl.ectionlnformationlvlanagementSystemandmeansthe

cornputer roft*ur, ,t-r*;a by-DFM il; il the various f'**t**t used to register and

rnarra&s vorefs, 
"r.*tioiiomcials 

and pofiing nlacelS;1ell as the eleetion process itself"

E114SrM includes the EIMS rnr Sot*i "ur'u nIry '" Suhsystems' any F'IMS rF{

Enhancement and any EIMS * sonwa," R*t"tt'' EIMS N is proprietary to DFM and

;fb;t is made ta Article 6 of the Agreement"

l0Corefunptiqn:ThecorefunctionoftheElMswistogathcrandmaintaindata
for use in the prscess -f r-eil;;i;;;;*;t ancl the prncersing of elections' The

ability of thc EIMS'* t* purfono,itl* *ot* funstions is dependent tlp'on' emong

otherthings, all sf the following: {l} *recuracy andcrmpltieotst of the Cowrty's

Dstr; ana (z) cclnrinual "-iff."*i.n 
by the carurty of the accuracy aRd

comploteness of the County's Data'

z0 RM ru: EIMS n is more particularly described on Exhibit A

attachedheretoandincorporatedhereinbythisreference.

30 l4sXnllaliog: The DFMSoftrvare shall be deemed tohavebeen instelled when the

County is able to perform'dlt;*it- rnaintenance of the Voter File' the

Precinct District Fi[e and the $fieet Guide'

sr zao?

60lsiXiglleagsJprrn: Sixty (60) months from the installation of the EIMS ru and

conrinuing therJfter uniil th* n"*r rJro*ing June 30th (subject to extension as

pi*iata In ettittt 9 of the Master Agreement)'

24



j

70 lnco$or€lion of Ma,pterAqrcefirqfrj. The provisions ofthe MasterAgreemenr?
including, without lirniation, Article 3, are incorporated herein by this rcference
as ifset forth in full.

DFM A$SOCIATES, a Califomia
Corporation

Thomas G. Diabolt
President

COUNTY OF INYO, a political subdivision of
the State of Califomia

lls

1i

aon

,*tt('r

25



EXHIBIT A

ElMs@forWndowsincludeethefollowingfunctionalModules:

--t#ifil 
rnaintain precinc,ts, distric-ts and the rerationship between those

entities.

"**ffi and maintain street segments and their relationship te precincts"

Etr-ffitr?#maintain office types, office definitions, and incumbent data.

Y%Hate 
and maintain voter registration records. A*ows for rnaintaining active,

canceledandinactivevoterrecords.Providesduplicatechecking,customertape

generation, and other reporting features'

ffisofaffidavitsprovidedtothirdpartiesandtracksthose

subsequentlY roturned

ffillingplaces,electionofficersandelect!onnightworkers.

Maintain history'

ffiefinitionsincludingcontests,candidatEsandmeasures.Provides

Ballot typing, consolidation, election officer and polling place management for the

election. P.ro{g99,election related maillngs and reports' Maaage Absentee/Mailed

ballot voters.

26



.

Petition Ghecklnq
@information.definenewpetitions,setectrandomsample,provldes

system dlrected signature checking.

Reso-uf..c-gs

--Msnage 
county epecific information and options"

lI

*..y|
27

''+4,



Uill nogwv4^ I bv

,/

."' W'$
F.d.HoYft*tffil

Rcqueri for'frxPaYrr-.- 
^,

ldcntlltcrtloil f unrUcr and Gartlllcltlon
Gltr lcill lo iltr
|tSxh(. Oo mtt
rrrdto h. fi&

$ll
d

t
}I
il*T

l
T

Lrrl rcirlir(,rrbttitw *pfis{t.l

Purpra of

A 5,5o<tfr T€

H Corrattlgr fl ruarnr*rr fl Anll "" '"'""''
R.{r+(h.r ll.na r{t&*

I b g

rdtn r'ilh th.
aurnbd

t.tl atrlr
o,

o{ doil. or

13(

gJrlraaa i.rr, r Fadr -trqs H
b{lr1cldg€L;ri*g(

a1 b*rfl irrn b'arq
LJ ifr{rd4{11

Chrdr ..a.!dtf* 1-r

,o**r tsnb., J* rro)

Ctt, ta.. r'!C
t'r'A, ffi

ilrlt

3.
a

e rn hdrldlrl trilro b rclthcn r t*lderlt ol h. uoltad

I

fr
1. c.dfv h* lhe T!{ fotJ fm dvim L cst'ol &t ygu r'

wri{fr'tor'r nrtnor to bc lilffid}'
llfit rly e't* yo, n tnt sbFA lo brrlcp wtll*told*q' r
i Cn* **lrbn lrorn b'€hp witl*roldlnc f yo{ rr 

'
U.& urnPt PrPa-'ft i *"*"'ff '.ppti€Ult yo$ rt atro crlify'lng thrl o r
u.U- 

"#l"irfiiocraii 
itr" ol ry-prrlncrufiio h€ortrc

Fqn i u,s, tndc or *ng|$ lff?Tng**rltlltold'r.tc ur od fsrle'r I

corrr**rd hcorno'

Hmr ll I r.qrnltr"Cttfl you r frm othc.thrr.F*m W"e lo

;.i;;'il,;}tN. trJ "**i 
il *r rqu;tt/r to'rn r n b

;Uilfit *mi*rto 6'a P6n $r"o'

Fc fud*rl ltr pvoall, you n rondderd r p*ron il yoql

$r/rllnt

;*f Wf'fr f iltli:,ffiJ#H''*"
sl tr ttr*tid Bild*r' or

ffi'mH'Sfi.3,'Sqr$#tiiil'..
s*mnffirdfftE&iffifri:,ffiffiffiffi&*'
Ffin Vr'g hrr no( t -,..rc'.ivoU' t-nrtnr*rq b r?kod to

ffisiffi Hlr"lJffi'1ryfib. H#s n,

:*

fh. t'f,aotl ttro g'lvrr Fofi $l-S la lt{ prtnrlhlp fs

ffi*;trsH'Hlil;ffiffifs-'.
#tn'Hfi A,xil<tx-. t-ii * trt'nrrxr h hr unltod

htrtx tr h tt!. tsm*rn! rilF:
i fn U.S. orvn( d r dhrrErrdad infy rfid not hr d'ty'

t{arl* ts rnsr..t cal

F,rl I

J'v' ll

I;*r,f ra

l'fi
ci, H!, lOAltI l*1i F. rr.rfiS



;

TNYO COTINTY VOTER REff}S1]IA:nON SYSTEM DATABASE PROJECT

STATEMENTOF WORK

The spccific objective for DiiM and lnyo County is to replace-the current softwarc

.ppli&i-; .uricntly in usc i* lnya County with thc saftwsre from DFM Associates'

The projcct will bc in full productign { Junc 30, 200?. DFM will ossist lnyo County

w ith'thc following high-lcvel fun*llonal components:

0 tnitiel rollout of thc conrputer hnrdw$s and software infrastructure

deliverable to the Inyo founry Clerk's Qffiee'

nlrrsgllttionoftheDFMsoftwarerpplicationontothchardwale.

0 Data conversir:n ot'existing lnyo coilnty voter Registration datn into the new

databus* *fr:ri*rtu* "itf,I 
nfftf applicetion. Thii ccneiss of bnthdata and

images (nf se*nned documents or signrlures if any)'

n Training of Inyo County staffin the use ofthe new softrrare'

Dellvcnbler (InYo CountY)

Inyo County is recporuible for the following deliverables and will work in conjunAion

wim nfM on f*edback where rpprupriare:

, Inyr County wiil ensurc that fhE atrpropriatc stajf and rcsouses rrc assigrred and

uo*tatlte to thi. projcct. nese iniua*, bt* tt* rlot lirnited to, olections pcrsonnel'

technicst $upport spcoialisl networkadmlnistraton, and rnanagemont ss needed'

' Inyo Counry will ensurs that the data that is providcd t's the Conhactor is sufficient

for convcrsion nceds.

r Inyo County wiu be responsible for the inslrllation of nctwotk in&ashttcturc'

fl Inyo County will bo responsible for providing an appropriatc lscstion for thc

hatdware and appropriatc power/network connections and acc€ss'

O lrryo County wliiUe'responsible far Eeceivirtg the hardwarc inspoating t1e shipment

and documenting any tlarnaged enntaincrs along with the shipping compsfiy's

assnt/driver.

I liyo county will bc responsible for all equipment stsrage in n ssfc {nd securr

tocation r:ntil DFM As$ocistcs personnct a.rive *n-site to in$tall the hardware

C lnyo County will bc responsibti for forwarding coples of the packing lists of each

shipment as theY anive to DFM.

Deliverrbler (Dnl$

DFM is rcsp6nsitrle far the fcllowing delivcrables and will work in conjunction with lnyo

Counry on input and feedbask where nppropriate:

artft



a

DFM will bc responsibl: n:#ffifrllih ** rhe c'rrenr $ysrem.

31il ;lii fi; *il*lill ;;; *"u'.g tlrc server h*c*u,* in coLr'tv speciried

ffiltlu be re.*poruible for server and apprication software insratation onto

hardware.
DFMwinberesponsibleforensuringallscannersandprintersworkwiththeinstalled

Sft'llifit responsihle for inresration t::lgiTlltins instaIlation of thc

;;;;l*i;"-n a ncw set of hardtarq functional testirtg'

DFM will bc resporurot"Hh;;ffi;g ;i** to ileetions perxonnel

I

I

I

rF effiilv
ApR CI8 fiffirg

iityLi LuLl{lty

tiu

al..*t'



County of Inyo

Coroner
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of payment to Southern Inyo Hospital
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve prior year payment to Southern Inyo Hospital in the amount of $16,526.15.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This invoice was received in the Administrative Office on June 24, 2022. Since the amount is over the $10,000 
and needed Board approval this was the soonest that it could get onto an agenda.

The services provided for this invoice for the Coroner are required under his purview and the invoice needs to be 
processed and paid. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve payment, however, this is not recommended as the services were 
required and need to be paid for.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient funding in the Coroner Budget (023500) in Professional Services (5265).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. SIH Invoice 
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 6/24/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/24/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 6/24/2022



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/27/2022



11 SEX 16 DHF I 7 STAT

01

SOUTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

501 E LOCUST

LONE P|NE CA 935451009
7608765501

8 PATIENI NAIIE

. 
SOUTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
PO BOX 1009

LONE PINE cA 935451009

9 PATIENT ADORESS I INYO CORONEL

to

42 FEV CD 43 OESCRIPTION

12 DATE TYPE 15

1

61 HEALTH PLAN IO

l)

l9

44 HCPCS / FATE / BIPPS CODF

70450

70450 26

72125
7212526
71250

71250 26

74176

74176 26

60 INSURED'S UNIOUE ID

1 22A'tsl

,:artrl. I ir !t j-tl
21

OTHER

OIHER

2573:35

643 34

3063:41

765:95

2757:39

689 35

482s77
1208 69

25

3

.91

7lr'--n-
vltv':tu

il-
VALUE CODES

_1!r.!S-!,!N.I

c

d

47 TOTAL CI]ARGES

I

48 NCN COVER€D CHARGES

a:

0351

0s72
0350

0972

0352

0s72
0350

0972

CT SCAN/HEAD

PRO FEE/RAD/DX

CT SCAN

PRO FEE/RAD/DX

CT SCAN/BODY

PRO FEE/RAD/OX

CT SCAN

PRO FEE/RAD/DX

45 SERU DATE 46 SERV UNITS

051722

051722

051722

051722

051722

051722

051722

051722

t.

0001 PA 001 oF
50 PAYEF NAi,4E

COUNTY OF INYO CORONERS

58 JNSURED'S NAME

63 TREATMENT AUTHORIZATJON CODES

Bo REMABKS COUNTY OF INYO CORONERS

P O BOX 1175

BrsHoP CA 935141176

CBEATION DATE 0s3122 16526:15
54 PFIOR PAYMENTS 55 EST' AMOUNT DUE :56 NPI 1 831 1 28602AEN

Y rY

I

I

I

81 GROUP NAME

57

OTHEB

PRV ID

FIL;

al

76 ATTENDING

L-qsrMISC

: 65 EMPLOYEB NAME

lNrl

62 INSUFANCE GFOUP i{O

DOCTOR

,i

64 DOCUMENI CONTROL NTJMAEF

-17 
OPFFl]ING

LAST

I
I

LAST

! i..il It t';r4I lt )i]:; (iit r r r, r ti:rr ir-r riiil-ilt

R930 R9389 20289

Rg30HEAsON @DE

a

b

c7t1[R t!tt()C[ur-.1]rE
trI

()r.ti H tr[,r:]1. rJrlilr(ii)LL -ul I

UBO4L NUBC TFP24394485 Irl! !r l 4rt' I 11!a.



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Advertising County 
Resources

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Leslie Chapman
 
SUBJECT:  Film Commissioner Contract Amendment 1
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Chris 
Langley for provision of Film Commissioner services, extending the term to September 30, 2022 at a total 
amount not to exceed $12,700, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Film Commissioner Chris Langley has served as Inyo County's Film Commissioner since 2007, most often as a 
sole-source provider and also as the successful respondent to a Request for Proposals (RFPs) issued in 2013. It 
has become practice to revisit every 4-6 years whether to issue RFPs or continue sole-source contracting. The 
Board declined to have staff prepare and issue an RFP for Film Commissioner services in 2018, and instead 
approved a three-year sole-source contract with Mr. Langley.

Mr. Langley's FY 21-22 contract expired June 30. It was approved on May 25, 2021 after discussion among the 
Board about reexamining the Film Commissioner position - a discussion prompted by members of the Board 
expressing interest in a one-year contract for FY 21-22 instead of the new three-year contract.

As such, your staff prepared a new RFP for Film Commissioner services, which it hopes to release this week. 
Proposals are due in mid-August. To ensure continuity in service until a proposal is selected and a new contract 
awarded, staff has prepared an amendment to extend the term of Mr. Langley's contract through September 30.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose not to approve the contract extension, or could extend the term even longer. The former 
option is not recommended, as the County should avoid an interruption in service. Your Board could also direct 
staff to not issue an RFP and enter another year-long contract with Mr. Langley.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Clerk of the Board, County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract amendment is available in the Advertising County Resources budget (011400), Object 
Code 5535.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Chris Langley Contract Amendment 1
2. FY 21-22 Film Commissioner Contract
3. FY 18-19 through FY 20-21 Film Commissioner Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/27/2022
Leslie Chapman Approved - 6/30/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/30/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/30/2022
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 6/30/2022



AMENDMENT NUMBER      1     TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

     Chris Langley  
FOR THE PROVISION OF INYO COUNTY FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and
   Chris Langley   of   Lone Pine, California (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an 
Agreement for the Provision of Independent Contractor Services dated   May 25, 2021__, on County of 
Inyo Standard Contract No.   117, for the term from      July 1, 2021__ to   June 30, 2022  .

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below.

WHEREAS , such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. Paragraph 2. TERM is amended to read as follows:

“The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022 unless sooner 
terminated as provided below.

2. Paragraph 3.D. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement is amended to read as 
follows: 

“The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work 
performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem, if any, shall not exceed 
$12,700.00 (hereinafter referred to as “contract limit”).  County expressly reserves the right 
to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed, including incidental expenses which is in excess of the contract limit.”

                                                 ///NOTHING FOLLOWS\\\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1, 2023.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. __117__
Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER      1      TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

     Chris Langley
FOR THE PROVISION OF INYO COUNTY FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

____ DAY OF ___________________________________________,  _________.

COUNTY OF INYO                                             CONTRACTOR

By:   ___________________________ By:    ______________________________ 
               Signature

Dated:  _________________________ __________________________________
Type or Print

Dated:  ____________________________    

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

________________________________
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

________________________________
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

________________________________
Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

________________________________
County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No.__117__
Page 2



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 25'h day of May 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO-Advertising
County Resources

- Film
Commissioner
Contract

The Board was being asked to approve a contract between Christopher Langley and the
County of lnyo for provision of Film Commissioner services, for the period of July 1,2021 Io
June 30, 2024 in an amount not to exceed $109,400 (Year'1 = $37,800; Year 2 = $35,800;
Year 3 = $35,800). Supervisor Kingsley asked that the agenda item be pulled from the Consent
Agenda to Departmental for discussion. He said he believes a one-year contract is more
appropriate, and the Film Commissioner agrees. Supervisor Kingsley said this will allow the
Board to revisit the role and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner going fonrvard.
Supervisor Roeser agreed, saying a whole discussion of the bigger picture of the County's
Advertising County Resources program is warranted through a Board workshop and
presentations from Langley. CAO Quilter said it might be wise not to get tied into a three-year
contract considering changes within the film industry and the retirement of the staff member
who is most engaged with the Advertising County Resources program.

Supervisor Totheroh suggested postponing approval of the contract until additional information
was available. He then asked for clarification as to the contract amount Supervisor Kingsley
was proposing for the single year, since different amounts were listed on the agenda for years
1 and 2-3. Langley said he was in agreement with one year, and only signed the three-year
contract because he needed to get paperwork back to the Assistant Clerk of the Board to make
today's agenda. Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to
approve a contract between Christopher Langley and the County of lnyo for provision of Film
Commissioner services, for the period of July 1,2021 to June 30,2022 in an amount not to
exceed $37,800, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget,
and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Pucci
absent. Chairperson Griffiths commented that it is unusual for Board members to negotiate
contracts outside of the normal avenues, but suggested that discussion could come later.

IWTNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 25tt'

Day ofMav, 2021

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO Advetising Co. Resources
Other:
DATE: Mav 26,2021

By:

*kA*;



?

County of Inyo

County Administrator - Advertising County
Resources

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIREI)

MEETING: May 25,2021

FROM: Assistant Clerk of the Board

SUBJECT: lnyo County Film Commissioner Contract

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve a contract between Christopher Langley and the County of lnyo for provision of Film
Commissioner services, for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30,2024 in an amount not to exceed $109,400
(Year 1 = $37,800; Year 2 = $35,800; Year 3 = $35,800), contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets,
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU M MARY/J U STI FICATION :

Three years ago, your Board reviewed the history of the lnyo County's Film Commission structure and
considered whether it wanted to issue a Request For Proposals for the continuation of contracted Film
Commissioner Services. Your Board expressed its satisfaction with the existing structure for provision of Film
Commissioner Services, and indicated its desire to have an opportunity to consider a new contract with Chris
Langley rather than undertake an RFP process. The attached contract, presented today for consideration by your
Board, implements the direction provided by the Board of Supervisors. The current contract is scheduled to
expire June 30, 2021; the new one would expire June 30, 2024.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS :

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENGES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board may choose to not approve the contract, modify the contract, or direct staff to issue a Request for
Proposals for Film Commissioner services.

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The cost of the Film Commissioner Services contract is funded through the County General Fund without
assistance from other local agencies.

FINANGING:
lf approved, the contract will be subject to funding being appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 County



Page 2

Budget in Advertising County Resources (011400), in the lnyo County Film Commission object code (5535), and
in subsequent County Budgets.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Film CommissionerContract FY21-22toFY23-24
2. 20180626CAO-FilmComm. - ChrisLangleyContract

APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis
Denelle Carrington
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Clint Quilter

Created/lnitiated - 5l I 1 12021

Approved - 511112021

Approved - 511112021

Approved - 511212021

Final Approval - 51 1212021



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND CHRIS LANGLEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the
Film Commissioner services of Chris Lanolev of Lone Pine,

CA (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants,
terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in

Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Clint Quilter whose title
is: Countv Administrative Officer . Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed
under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no
guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested
of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from
sooner terminated as provided below.

Julv 1,2021 to June 30,2022 unless

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Contractor for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to Clint
Quilter whose title is: Countv Administrative Officer . Travel and per diem expenses will
be reimbursed in the same amount and to the same extent as County reimburses its permanent status
employees for such expenses. County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for travel or
per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County's permanent status
employees, or which are incurred by the Contractor without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page'1 05t21t2019



D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem
expenses, if any, shall not exceed Thirtv-seven eiqht-hundred dollars and no/'100 Dollars
($ 37,800 ) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any
payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including travel or per
diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.
Contractor's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Contractor during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.
(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal

or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be repoded annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the
County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by Gounty under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set fotth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenruise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 '17

(lndependent Contractor)
Page 2 0512112019



services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation
of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
paftial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment G and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 05t21t2019



C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Gontractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenuise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section'12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide bythe Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 4

15. DEFAULT.

05t21t2019



lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, Gounty may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 5

21. FUNDING LIMITATION

05t21t2019



The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Countv Administration
P.O. Drawer N

Department
Address

lndeoendence. CA 93526 City and State

Contractor:

Chris Lanolev Name
AddressP.O. Box 99

Lone Pine. CA 93546 City and State

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the pafties hereto.

lill ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 6 0512112019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
CHRIS LANGLEYAT{D

FOR TIIE PROVIOION OF FILM

IN WITNESS THEREOF, TI.IE PARTIES HERETO
TH|S ?sth DAY OF Mav

SERVICE8

HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
2021

COUNTY OF INYO

Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson
Typt or Prlnt Namr

05t25t2021

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENT$r

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

CONTRACTOR

Slgnalurc

Dated:_
or

-dMWercoungRiikMaiqg

Co0nty of lnyo Slandsrd Conlrect - No, 1 1 7
(lnd6pendsnt ContractoO

Page 7 o6t21t2015



AGREETENT BETWEEN COUI{TY OF INYO
CHRIS LANGLEYAND

FORTHE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER

IN WITNESS THE PARTIES HERETO
THIS '? DAYOF

COUNTY OF INYO.

Slgnaturc

Type or Print Nams

Dated: Dated

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREIIIENTS:

P€'lonnel SeMcer

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREIVIENTS:

Counly Rirk Manager

SERVtCES

HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
z@e) .

coNrFAcToR

lF {,4
Signabrc

Type or Print Name

. c, rtvsron-l€A LAN 6 LEr'

County of lnyo Sbndad Contraci - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contrec'tor)

Page 7 05n1t2019



ATTACHMENT A

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRIS LANGLEY
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIO NER SERVICES

TERM

FROM: JULY 1,2021 JUNE 30, 2022

SCOPE OF WORK:

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of lnyo County Film Commissioner. As the lnyo County Film
Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for County to maintain a formal
relationship with the California Film Commission, and ensure the County's continued participation in the
California Film Commission's Film Liaisons ln California, Statewide (FLICS) Program. These duties
include, but are not limited to:

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of the County;
B. Responding to production requests in a timely manner, not to exceed one week from the date of

initial inquiry; and,
C. Serving as a liaison between the film industry and the County and the community, including

public and private landowners and other public agencies in the region.

ln carrying out these duties, the Contractor shall regularly and routinely publicize contact information for
the Office of the County Adminstrator as the venue where members of the film industry and the
community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film Commissioner services
At a minimum, this information shall be included in the local crew lists, production guide, and resources
database that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain, and distribute (in paper and electronic form
acceptable to the County), and on any web site the Contractor develops, maintains, or operates
in conjunction with these services.

ln performance of these duties, the Contractor shall:
. Maintain a working knowledge of the County and local business and government practices;
. Stay informed on production issues in lnyo County communities and convey this information to

producers;
. Serve as an experienced trouble shooter for producers and the communities in which they work;
. Know how to secure permission to film on a variety of properties within the County;
. Be familiar with potential filming locations within the County;
. Remain sensitive to the needs of the communities within the County;

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8 05121t2019



. Never solicit or accept fees, payments, donations, or other contributions for the provision of Film
Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless so authorized pursuant to
and in conjunction with the County's film permit requirements;

. Adhere to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between the official duties and services provided and private financial interests, as well as
the provision of:

/ location scouting assistance;
J relerral and liaison services with industry facilities and services;
/ liaison services to and among communities, production companies, and government agencies;
/ augmented outreach; and,
./ timely and accurate information to production companies, the local community, governmental

entities, and the California Film Commission;

. Provide film liaison and location services, including photography of locations;

. Provide service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the close
of the production, including problem solving on film related matters;

. Act as a liaison between production companies and all levels of government, including the

facilitation of permitting;
. Network with regional and state organizations related to filming;
. Only use the title of lnyo County Film Commissionerwhen acting in an official capacity pursuant

to this agreement, and never for personal gain; and,
. Refrain from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary to the

established polices of the County of lnyo or which might otherwise bring discredit to the County.

ln addition, the Contractor shall:

1. Develop, maintain, and distribute local available crew lists in written and electronic form;
2. Develop, maintain, and distribute a local resources database, including photography of locations

throughout all regions of the County, in written and electronic form;
3. Develop, maintain and distribute a current local production guide in written and electronic

form; and,
4. Create and have published at least four (4) articles for the local and/or national and/or

international media.

With regard to the crew lists, resources database, and production guide noted above, the Contractor will be
required to provide these materials in an electronic format acceptable to the County so that the material may
be hosted on the County website. ln addition, if the material is to be hosted on anotherwebsite, the website
must utilize software approved by the lnyo County lnformation Services Director.

Section ll. Administrative Services

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all administrative functions necessary to support the lnyo
County Film Commission, including:

1. Maintaining physical otfice space, including a telephone line and answering machine or service,
and payment of all utility costs;

2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing:
a. a physical mailing address or Post Office Box;
b. a cellular telephone;
c. an e-mail account; and,
d. an internet-based photo hosting service

3. Arranging for clerical support, and any other personal contract services that may be necessary to
support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner

4. Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal services

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No
1 17 (lndependent Contractor)

Page 9



ln addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between two (2)
and four (4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. Attendance may be in person or via
teleconference. The Contractor is responsible for preparing, maintaining, and administering all notifications
and paperwork to the California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film
Commissioner.

Furthermore, as directed during the course of this contract, the Contractor may be required to research and
work with County staff to evaluate and make a recommendation to the lnyo County Board of Supervisors
regarding the feasibility of modifying the County's film permit requirements, including the levying of fees
to support the lnyo County Film Commission.

lf the County's film permit requirements are modified, the Contractor will be expected to implement and
administer the County film permit process for non-County facilities and properties, as directed. lf adopted,
implementation and administration of the modified film permit may include but not be limited to:

. Publicizing the need for a County film permit;

. Determining the applicability of the County film permit requirements and associated fee schedule to
specific filming activities;

. Ensuring all filming activities subject to the film permit requirements apply for a County film permit;

. Working with film permit applicants to ascertain the information necessary for the Film Commissioner
to prepare a film permit, including the appropriate(s) fee for the filming activity in question, for submission
to the County;

. Promptly notifying the County office responsible for finalizing film permits when a film permit has been
prepared for submission; and,

. Preparing a monthly compilation of all film permits prepared by the Film Commissioner, to be
submitted to the County with the Contractor's monthly invoice for payment of services.

Section lll. Reporting

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the Agreement. At a
minimum, the Contractor shall:

1. Within 30-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,
the Contractor shall prepare all notifications and papenrvork required by the California Film
Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film Commissioner. These documents
shall be transmitted to the Office of the County Adminstrator for review and approval in advance of their
submittal to the California Film Commission and, if necessary, for submittal to the California Film
Commission by the County. Any subsequent modifications that may be required to this documentation
will be processed in the same manner.

2. As soon as practicable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall
transmit to the Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the
Contractor receives from the California Film Commission.

3. Within 60-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,
the Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Administrator, in paper and electronic form,
the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations
throughout all regions of the County, that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain and distribute
under the terms of this agreement. These products will become property of the County, and must be
submitted in an electronic format acceptable to the County for viewing, reproduction and posting to a
County web site. As part of their submittal, the Contractor must identify all physical and electronic locations
where these resources are available.

4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (1) month prior to the expiration of the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall update the local crew
lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations throughout
all regions of the County, and transmit this information to the County as required in item 3 above.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 10



5, Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local and/or national and/or
international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with the Contractor's
next monthly invoice for services;

6. Make at least two (2) Verbal Reports a year, once in April and once in October, to the Board of
Supervisors during the course of this contract. The Contractor is encouraged to make additional
Verbal Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based on filming activity
in the County. The Contractor will be responsible for contacting the Assistant Board Clerk to
make arrangements to be placed on the Board of Supervisors' agenda.

7. ln addition to the two (2) Verbal Reports required in item 6 above, the Contractor shall
prepare and present, in person, two (2) Written Reports a year to the Board of Supervisors.
The Written Reports shall be submitted to the County Administrator, to be agendized for an upcoming
Board of Supervisors' meeting, no later than June 1st and January 1st of each year during the term
of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services.

8. During the last year of the Agreement, the Written Reports shall be prepared and submitted
no later than November 1st in lieu of the January 1st deadline, and May 1st in lieu of the
June 1st deadline to facilitate the County's consideration of any contract extension or renewal
At a minimum, the Written Reports must include:

a. A summary of the Contractor's activities and accomplishments relative to carrying-out
the duties and responsibilities of lnyo County Film Commissioner;

b. A tally, by type of production (e.9., major motion picture, minorfilm, commercial, still
photography or other categories deemed meaningful by the Film Commissioner) since
execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report of:

i. production requests received by the Contractor;
ii. production contacts initiated by the Contractor; and,
iii. (if applicable) County Film Permits prepared by the Contractor;

c. ldentification and itemization, by category, of all productions filmed in lnyo County
since execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report. For each
production identified, the Contractor shall provide their best estimate as to:

i. The number of out-of-county personnel involved in the production;
ii. The number of hotel/motel room nights encumbered by the production, and the

estimated value;
iii. The number of local residents directly employed by the production, and the

estimated aggregate compensation of those employed; and,
iv. The number and types of local businesses providing goods or services to the

production, and the estimated aggregate value of the goods or services;

d. Discussion of specific marketing efforts including copies of tear sheets, copies of
web-pages, identification of events attended, and, photos of any Contractor exhibits or
displays at attended events;

e. Copies of the current local crew list, current local production guide, and current local
resources database, including photography of locations throughout all regions of the
County; and,

f. Copies of all Contractor-generated articles published since the last written report.

The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of actual
damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirements. Therefore, the parties agree that,
in the event that Contractor fails to comply with these reporting requirements and associated deadlines,
Contractor shall pay County, as liquidated damages, the amount of Contractor's monthly fee, as established
in the Fee Schedule of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to
comply, which amount will be deducted from amounts due the Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 1 I



Section lV. Additional Marketing Activities

ln addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and its
California Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, and/or international media,
the Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional marketing activities identified in

the Contractor's proposaland associated budget, and agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services. Separately compensated marketing activities
may include but are not limited to:

lf the Film Commission web content will be hosted on the County website, the Contract may be
asked and compensated to develop content beyond the crew lists, local resources database,
location photographs, production guide, articles described in Section L

2. lf the web content will not be hosted on the County website, the Film Commissioner may be asked
to and compensated for developing and maintaining an interactive lnyo County Film Commission
website. ln developing and maintaining any such website, the Contractor must:

a. Register lnyo County as the owner of the domain name for the web site, and provide the
County's lnformation Services Directorwith the information necessary to maintain the
registration;

b. Develop the web site using software specified by the County's lnformation Services
Director;

c. Host the web site on a server to specified or approved by the County's lnformation Services
Director and to which the County's lnformation Services staff has access; and,

d. Provide back-up electronic copies of all web site content to the lnformation Services
Director. Electronic copies of all subsequent updates to the web site must be transmitted to
the County's lnformation Services Director within 14-days of implementation.

Any payment for such website development and maintenance services performed by the
Contractor is dependent on the Contractor's adherence to these requirements.

Attend appropriate industry events, and maintain a professional and attractive presence at industry
trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral material ( e.9., artwork,
hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of Film
Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show.

All resource materials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with this Scope of Work,
including but not limited to the lnyo County Film Commission web-site, domain name, artwork and
hand-outs distributed at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and local resources
database (including photography of locations throughout all regions of the County), in written and
electronic form, shall:

A. ldentify the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film industry
and the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film
Commissioner services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail address for the Office
of the County Administrator for this purpose.

B. Become the property of the County of lnyo.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.
1 1 7 (lndependent Contractor)

Page 12

3



ATTACHMENT B

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRISIANGItrV
FORTHE PROVISION OF Flt tM cor\/lt\iil IUtrD SERVICES

TERM

FROM: July 1,2021 June 30 2022

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities, Administrative Senices, Reporting

ln consideration for the services and work identified in Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities,
Section ll. Administrative Services, and Section lll. Reporting of AttachmentA: Scope of Work, the
contractor shall be paid a flat fee of:

. $2,500.00 per month for the period of July 1 , 2021 through June 3Q 2022

Section ll. Marketing Activities

For the specific marketing activities the Contractor is required to perform, and identified in Section lV.
Marketing Activities of Attachment A; Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid the actually cost of the
specific activity, documented by paid receipts, in an amount not to exceed the amount identified below for
each activity;

1. lf, the Film Commission web content is not hosted on the County website, and the Film Commissioner
is asked to develop and maintain an interactive lnyo County Film Commission web-site pursuant to
Attachment A: Section lV. 2.:

. $3,000.00 for the development of the website and $1,000 per year for its maintenance.

2 Attend appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive presence at industry
trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral material (e.g.,artwork,
hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of
Film Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show:

. $1 ,200.00 for the period Julv 1,2O21 through June 30, 2022

Section lll. Travel & Per Diem

The Contractor's travel and per diem expense shall be paid in accordance with Section 3. Paragraph B.
of this Agreement. These costs include all mileage, lodging and food expenses associated with all of the
general services and work requested by the County in this Agreement, as well as the specific marketing
activities requested by the County in this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 13 05t21t2019



The Contractor's travel and per diem expense reimbursement shall not exceed

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30,2022

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. '117

(l ndependent Contractor)
Page 14



AND

ATTACHMENT G

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
CHRIS LANGLEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1,2021 TO .[JNtr 30 2022

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. I 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 10 0512112019



Specifications 1

Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts
(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Gommercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office (lSO) Form
CG 00 01 12 07 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),
or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor.

Other fnsurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

Additional lnsured Sfafus

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Contractor's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 1 1 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 il a later edition is
used).



Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation

Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Acceptability of Insu rers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Verification of Coverage

Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Special Bisks or Circumstances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRIS LANGLEY
FOR THE PROVISI SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "Countt'') may have the need for the
Film Commissioner services of Chris Langley

of Lone Pi4e. Q4 (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the
mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Clint Ouilter whose
title is: coun$ ndrinistratl Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be
performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County
makes no guarantee or wananty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor lhe performance of any services or work at all, even if
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under lhis Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and Coun$ laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

Julv 1,2021 to June 30,2024

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compe.nsation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Aftachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travgl and p.er diem, County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Contractor for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to

Clint Quilter whose title is: Counlv Administrative Oflicer Travel and
per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the same extent as County reimburses its
permanent status employees for such expenses, County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to
Contractor for lravel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to
Countfs permanent status employees, or which are incurred by the Contractor without the prior approval of
the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Speciflcally, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 a5n1nals



retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Agreenent, The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem
expenses, if shall not exceed one hundred nine thousand rr hrrndrcd
Dollars (hereinafier referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or
work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and oavment. Contractor shall submit to lhe County, once a month, an iiemized
statemenl of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the Count/s request. This
statement will be submitted to the Coun$ not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.
Contractor's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Contractor during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.
(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal

or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2, County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhotd any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the
County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the Coung. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUTRED LICENSES, CERT|FICATES, AND PERM|TS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No, 't 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2 45t21t2Q19



permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B, Contractor wanants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http:/lwww.sam.gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such offlce space, supplies, equipmenl, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incuned by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation
of Contractor.

7, COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. PersonalPrope.rtv.gf Qo_Vntv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by Coun$ pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at lhe termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be flnancially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Ppdugt$ of ,9oqg,faoto/s Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,

designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment G and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of lhe Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor;

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 05t2112019



B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
controlwith respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconducl
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Recordq^ Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the terminalion or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnsoections qnd Au.dits. Any aulhorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has lhe right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 tP.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel, Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreernent for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of Coung.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4 05t21t2419



15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) betow.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential. privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibili$ of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 1410A.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. coNFLtcTs.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19, POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreernent, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20, SEVERABILITY,

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of compeient jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
coun$ statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

page S 05t21t2019



21. FUNDINGLIIITITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its noti$ing
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

29. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Countv Administration Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer N

Contractor:

Chris Langley Name
Address
City and State

lndenendence CA 93526

P.O. Box 99
Lone Pine, CA 93545

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no represenlations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ltil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6 a5t21t2019



AGREEi,IENT BEflVEEltl COUNTY OF INYO
AITID GHRIS

FOR TI{E PROVI$ION OF FILM COMM SERVICES

IN WITNESS TI.IEREOF. TI.IE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
THIS. DAYOF ,

cout{TY oF trllYo qoNrRAcToR

Slgnature Sigrtaturu

Typa or Print Nnmt Type or Print Name

APPRO\ED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

AS TO FERSONNET REOUIREMENTST

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

-fi*,M',UCounty Rtrt< tdanq5f

County of lnyo Slandard Conltact - No, 1 17
( lnd6p6ndoni Contra6{or)

PegE 7 a6n1na1s



AGREETENT BETWEEiI COUI{TY OF INYO
AiID CHRIS

FORTHE PROI,ISION OF FIt M COMM SERV|CES

THIS
THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS

z@?) .

cg-uNw oF rNYo

By;
$lgnatum

Type or Pdnt Namc

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

CountyAudllor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REOUIREMENTS:

PerconnElScMer

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Gounty Rlrk Manager

eF {,4
CONTRAqTOR

Signature

Typc orPrint Name

Dated: c, rcMsTofrrA LAN6 LEy'

County of lnyo Shndad Conlnd - No. 117
(lndcpsndcnl Gonlractor)

Page 7 05t2r12010



ATTACHMENT A

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRIS LANGLEY
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVTCES

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1,2021 JUNE 30,2024

SCOPE OF WORK:

Section L General Duties & Responsibilities

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of lnyo County Film Commissioner. As the lnyo County Film
Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for County to maintain a formal
relationship with the California Film Commission, and ensure the County's continued participation in the
California Film Commission's Film Liaisons ln California, Statewide (FLICS) Program. These duties
include, but are not limited to:

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of the County;
B. Responding to production requests in a timely manner, not to exceed one week from the date of

initial inquiry; and,
C. Serving as a liaison between the film industry and the County and the community, including

public and private landowners and other public agencies in the region.

ln carrying out these duties, the Contractor shall regularly and routinely publicize contact information for
the Office of the County Adminstrator as the venue where members of the film industry and the
community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film Commissioner services"
At a minimum, this iniicrmation shall be included in the local crew lists, production guide, and resources
database that the Contractor is required to develop, maintiain, and distribute (in paper and electronic forrn
acceptable to the County), and on any web site the Contractor develops, maintains, or operates
in conjunction with these services.

ln performance of these duties, the Contractor shall:
. Maintain a working knowledge of the County and local business and government practices;
. Stay informed on production issues in lnyo County communities and convey this information to

producers;
. Serve as an experienced trouble shooter for producers and the communities in which they work;
. Know how to secure permission to film on a variety of properties within the County;
. Be familiar with potential filming locations within the County;
. Remain sensitive to the needs of the communities within the County;

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117

{lndependent Contractori
Page I a5t2112019



. Never solicit or accept fees, payments, donations, or other contributions for the provision of Film
Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless so authorized pursuant to
and in conjunction with the County's film permit requirements;

. Adhere to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between the official duties and services provided and private financial interests, as well as
the provision of:

"/ location scouting assistance;
J referral and liaison services with industry facilities and services;
/ liaison services to and among communities, production companies, and government agencies;
/ augmented outreach; and,
/ timely and accurate information to production companies, the local community, governmental

entities, and the California Film Commission;

. Provide film liaison and location services, including photography of locations;

. Provide service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the close

of the production, including problem solving on film related matters;
. Act as a liaison between production companies and all levels of government, including the

faci litation of permitting 
;

. Network with regional and state organizations related to filming;

. Only use the title of lnyo County Film Commissioner when acting in an official capacity pursuant

to this agreement, and never for personal gain; and,

. Refrain from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary to the
established polices of the Coung of lnyo or which might otherwise bring discredit to the County.

ln addition, the Contractor shall:

1. Develop, maintain, and distribute local available crew lists in written and electronic form;
2. Develop, maintain, and distribute a local resources database, including photography of locations

throughout all regions of the County, in written and electronic form;
3. Develop, maintain and distribute a current local production guide in written and electronic

forrn; and,
4. Create and have published at least four (4) articles for the local and/or national andlor

international media,

\Mth regard to the crew lists, resources database, and production guide noted above, the Contractor will be
required to provide these materials in an electronic format acceptable to the County so that the material may
be hosted on the County website. ln addition, if the material is to be hosted on another website, the website
must utilize software approved by the lnyo County lnformation Services Director.

Section I L Administrative Services

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all administrative functions necessary to support the lnyo
County Film Commission, including:

1. Maintaining physical office space, including a telephone line and answering machine or service,
and payment of all utility costs;

2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing:
a. a physical mailing address or Post Office Box;
b. a cellular telephone;
c, an e-mailaccount; and,
d, an internet-based photo hosting service

3. Arranging for clerical support, and any other personal contract services that may be necessary to
support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner

4, Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal services

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)
Page I



ln addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between two (2)

and four (4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. Attendance may be in person or via
teleconference. The Contractor is responsible for preparing, maintaining, and administering all notifications
and paperwork to the California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film
Commissioner.

Furthermore, as directed during the course of this contract, the Contractor may be required to research and
work with County staff to evaluate and make a recommendation to the lnyo County Board of Supervisors
regarding the feasibility of modifying the County's film permit requirements, including the levying of fees
to support the lnyo County Film Commission.

lf the County's film permit requirements are modified, the Contractor will be expected to implement and
administer the County film permit process for non-County facilities and properties, as directed. lf adopted,
implementation and administration of the modified film permit may include but not be limited to:

. Publicizing the need for a Coun$ film permit;

. Determining the applicability of the County film permit requirements and associated fee schedule to
specifl c fi lmin g activities;

. Ensuring all filming activities subject to the film permit requirements apply for a County film permit;

. Working with film permit applicants to ascertain the information necessary for the Film Commissioner
to prepare a film permit, including the appropriate(s) fee for the filming activity in question, for submission
to the County;

. Promptly notifying the County office responsible for finalizing film permits when a film permit has been
prepared for submission; and,

. Preparing a monthly compilation of all film permits prepared by the Film Commissioner, to be
submitted to the County with the Contractor's monthly invoice for payment of services,

Section lll. Reporting

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the Agreement. At a
minimum, the Contractor shall:

1. \A/ithin 3O-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,
the Contractor shall prepare all notifications and paperwork required by the California Film
Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film Commissioner. These documents
shall be transmitted to the Office of the County Adminstrator for review and approval in advance of their
submittalto the California Film Commission and, if necessary, for submittal to the California Film
Commission by the County. Any subsequent modifications that may be required to this documentation
will be processed in the same manner.

2. As soon as praeticable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall
transmit to the Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the
Contractor receives from the California Film Commission.

3. Within 60-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,
the Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Administrator, in paper and electronic form,
the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations
throughout all regions of the County, that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain and distribute
under the terms of this agreement. These products will become property of the County, and must be
submitted in an electronic format acceptable to the County for viewing, reproduction and posting to a
County web site. As part of their submittal, the Contractor must identify all physical and electronic locations
where these resources are available.

4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (1) month priorto the expiration of the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall update the local crew
lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations throughout
all regions of the County, and transmit this information to the County as required in item 3 above.

County of lnyo $tandard Contract - No. 117
( I ndependent Contractor)

Page 10



5. Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local and/or national andlor
international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with the Contracto/s
next monthly invoice for services;

6. Make at least two (2) Verbal Reports a year, once in April and once in October, to the Board of
Supervisors during the course of this contract. The Contractor is encouraged to make additional
Verbal Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based on filming activity
in the Gounty. The Contractor will be responsible for contacting the Assistant Board Clerk to
make arrangements to be placed on the Board of Supervisors' agenda.

7. ln addition to the two (2)Verbal Reports required in item 6 above, the Contractor shall
prepare and present, in person, two (2) Written Reports a year to the Board of Supervisors.
The Written Reports shall be submitted to the County Administrator, to be agendized for an upcoming
Board of Supervisors' meeting, no later than June 1st and January 1st of each year during the term
of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,

8. During the last year of the Agreement, the Written Reports shall be prepared and submitted
no later than November 1st in lieu of the January 1st deadline, and May 1st in lieu of the
June 1st deadline to facilitate the County's consideration of any contract extension or renewal.
At a minimum, the Written Reports must include:

a. A summary of the Conhactor's activities and accomplishments relative to carrying-out
the duties and responsibilities of lnyo County Film Commissioner;

b. A tally, by type of production (e.9., major motion picture, minor film, commercial, still
photography or other categories deemed meaningful by the Film Commissioner) since
execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report of:

i. production requests received by the Contractor;
ii. production contacts initiated by the Contractor; and,
iii. (if applicable) County Film Permits prepared by the Contractor;

c. ldentification and itemization, by category, of all productions filmed in lnyo County
since execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report. For each
production identified, the Contractor shall provide their best estimate as to:

i. The number of out-of-county personnel involved in the production;
ii. The number of hotel/motel room nights encumbered by the production, and the

estimated value;
iii. The number of local residents directly employed by the production, and the

estimated aggregate compensation of those employed; and,
iv. The number and types of local businesses providing goods or services to the

production, and the estimated aggregate value of the goods or services;

d. Discussion of specific marketing efforts including copies of tear sheets, copies of
web-pages, identification of events attended, and, photos of any Contractor exhibits or
displays at attended events;

e. Copies of the current local crew list, current local production guide, and current local
resources database, including photography of locations throughout all regions of the
County; and,

f. Copies of all Contractor-generated articles published since the last written report.

The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of actual
damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirements. Therefore, the parties agree that,
in the event that Contractor fails to comply with these reporting requirements and associated deadlines,
Contractor shall pay County, as liquidated damages, the amount of Contractor's monthly fee, as established
in the Fee Schedule of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to
comply, which amount will be deducted from amounts due the Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No, 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 1



Section lV. Additional Marketing Activities

ln addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and its
California Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, andlor international media,
the Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional marketing activities identified in
the Contractor's proposaland associated budget, and agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services. Separately compensated marketing activities
may include but are not limited to:

1. lf the Film Commission web content will be hosted on the County website, the Contract may be
asked and compensated to develop eontent beyond the crew lists, local resources database,
location photographs, production guide, articles described in Section l.

2. lf the web content will not be hosted on the County website, the Film Commissioner may be asked
to and compensated for developing and maintaining an interactive lnyo Coun$ Film Commission
website. ln developing and maintaining any such website, the Contractor must:

a. Register lnyo County as the owner of the domain name for the web site, and provide the
County's lnformation Services Director with the information necessary to maintain the
registration;

b. Develop the web site using software specified by the County's lnformation Services
Director;

c. Host the web site on a server to specified or approved by the County's lnformation Services
Director and to which the County's lnformation Services staff has access; and,

d. Provide back-up electronic copies of all web site content to the lnformation Services
Director. Electronic copies of all subsequent updates to the web site must be transmitted to
the Coun$'s lnlormation Services Director within 14-days of implementalion.

Any payment for such website development and maintenance services performed by the
Contractor is dependent on the Contractor's adherence to these requirements.

3. Aftend appropriate industry events, and maintain a professional and attractive presence at industry
trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral material ( e.9., artwork,
hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of Film
Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show.

All resource materials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with lhis Scope of Work,
including but not limited to the lnyo County Film Commission web-site, domain name, artwork and
hand-outs distributed at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and local resources
database (including photography of locations throughout all regions of the County), in written and
electronic form, shall:

A. ldentify the Otfice of the Copnty Administrator as the venue where members of the film industry
and the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film
Commissioner services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail address for the Office
of the Coun$ Administrator for this purpose.

B. Become the property of the County of lnyo.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No.
1'1 7 (lndependent Contractor)

Page 12



ATTACHMENT B

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

NHRIR I ANGI trV
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIO SERVICES

TERM

FROM: Julv 1,2Q21 TO June 2024

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities, Administrative Senices, Reporting

ln consideration for the services and work identified in Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities,

Section ll. Administrative Services, and Section lll. Reporting of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the

contractor shall be paid a flat fee of:

' $2,500.00 per month for the period of July 1,2A21 through June 30' 2024

Section ll. Marketing Activities

For the specific marketing activities the Contractor is required to perform, and identified in Section lV.

Marketing Activiiies of Aftachment A: Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid the actually cost of the

specific activity, documented by paid receipts, in an amount not to exceed the amount identified below for
each activity:

1. lf, the Film Commission web content is not hosted on the County website, and the Film

Commissioner is asked to develop and maintain an inleractive lnyo County Film Commission web-site
pursuant to Attachment A: Section lV. 2.:

. $3,000.00 for the development of the website and $1,000 per year for its maintenance.

2. Attend appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive presence at

industry iride shows by engaging lhe use of creative booth space and collateral material (e.9.,

artwork, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of
Film Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show:

. $1,200.00 for the period July 1 ,2021 through June 3A,2422;

. $1,200.00 for the period July 1,2022 through June 30, 2023;

. $1,200,00 for the period July 1,2023 through June 30, 2024.

Section lll. Travel& Per Diem

The Contractols travel and per diem expense shall be paid in accordance with Section 3. Paragraph B

of this Agreement. These costs include all mileage, lodging and food expenses associated with all of the

general services and work requested by the County in this Agreement, as well as the specific marketing

activities requested by lhe County in ihis Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No" 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 13 05t21t2019



The Contractor's travel and per diem expense reimbursement shall not exceed:

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30,2422;

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2022lhrough June 30, 2023;

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30,2024.

The provisions of Section 3. Paragraph B. of this Agreement notwithstanding, due to the often times
spontaneous nature of the services and work being performed, the Contractor is pre-approved to incur
travel and per diem expenses in an amount not to exceed:

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1 , 2021 through June 30,2Q22;

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1 , Zl22lhrough June 3A,2023;

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2023 through June 3A,2024.

Coun$ of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 14



AND

ATTACHMENT C

AGREEITfrENT BETWEEN COUNTV OF INYO
CHRIS LANGLEY

FORTHE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVtCES

TERM:

FRO|U: .lljt Y,l 2421 TO .[tNF 30 2024

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

Coung of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10 a5l21nug



Specifications I
Insurance Reauirements for Most Contracts

(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liabitity (CGL): lnsurance Services Office (lSO) Form
CG 00 01 12 A7 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),

or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher lirnits maintained by the contractor.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions;

Additional Insu red Sfafus

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behali of the Contractor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Contractor's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 1 1 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 if a later edition is
used).



Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

Natice of Cancellatian

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation

Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said

Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such

insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waiver of subrogation endorseffIent from the insurer.

Deductibles and S eIf-I ns ured. Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Acceptability of Insurers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Verification of Coverage

Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Special Bisks or Circumslances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



In the Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Ceater in Independence on the 26th day of June 201.8 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO-Film
Commissianer-
Chris Langley
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Superuisor Pucci to approve a contract
between the County of lnyo and Chris Langley for the provision of Film Commissioner eervices
on behalf of the County, for the period of July 1, 2A1A through June 30, 2A21 in a total amount
not to exceed $109,400, subject to the Board's approval of future County budgets, and
authorize the County Administrator to sign contingent on all appropriate signatures being
obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

I{ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Soard this 2dh

oay aS ,lutre, 20lB

KEVIN I}, CARUNCHICI
Clerk oJ the Board aJ &ryewisor

Rauting

cc
Purchasing
Persannal
Auditor
cAo x
Ather
DATE: July 8, 24fi

By:



fl -f-.
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COLINTY OF INYO

X Consent I Departmental [Correspondence Action

fl Scheduled Time for fl Closed Session

For Clark's Use Qnly:
AGENDA NUMBER

I'l
E Puotic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: CountyAdministrator-FilmCommissioner

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 26, 2018

SUBJECTT Film CommissionerServices

D E PA RTME NTAL R EC O M M E N DATI O N :

Request your Board consider a contract between the County of lnyo and Chris Langley for the provision Film

Commissioner on behalf of the County, for the period of July L, 2A1.,8, June 30, 2A2! in a total amount not to
exceed $109,400 subject to the approval of future County Budgets, and authorize the County Administrator
to sign contingent on all signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

On January L6,7QL8, your Board reviewed the history of the lnyo County's Film Commission structure and
considered whether it wanted to issue a Request For Proposals for the continuation of contracted Film

Commissioner Services. Your Board expressed its satisfaction with the current structure for provision of Film

Commissioner Services, and indicated its desire to have an opportunity to consider a new contract with Chris

Langley rather than undertake an RFP process, The attached contract, presented today for consideration by
your Board, implements the direction provided by your Board in January, and reflects minor modifications
requested by the Contractor, or recommended by staff.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT :

The cost of the Film Commissioner Services contract is funded through the County General Fund without
assistance frorn other local agencies.

ITINANCING:

lf approved, the contract will be subject to funding being appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 County
Budget in Advertising County Resources {011400}, in the lnyo County Film Commission object code (5535}, in
subsequent County Budgets, The Fiscal Year 2018-20L9 Preliminary County Budget, adopted by your Board
last week, includes funding for this contract until the Fiscal Year 20L8-2019 Final Budget is approved later this
summer.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGN AIURE:
(Not to bs signed until all approvals are
(The Original plus 20 copies of this document are required)

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approved by county caunsel prior to submisslon to the board alerk.)

AND REI TED ITEMS (Must be

Approved

(Must bo revlewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to
lo lhe

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

l\{ fu

pERSdNfiEL'Atff neufe o'lTEMrf, (Musibo reviewed and approvod by the dlrector of personnel sorvlc€E prior lo

eubmissisn to thp[oard olerk )

Approved:-Date-

API'II(}VAI,S

d6-/ 0r/



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

Chris Langley

FORTHE PROVISION OF Film Commissioner SERV|CES

services of
of Lone Pine, Galifornia (lrereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration sf the
mutual promises, covenants, terms, and condilions hereinater contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requesta by the Coun$ to the
Contractor to pedorm under this Agreement will be made by Kevin'Carunchio whose
1;11s ;s' Codnty Administrative Offilar Requests to ifr to Oe
pertormsedupontheCounty'sneedforsuchservices.TheCounty
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. Coun$ by this Agreement incurs no
obligation or requirement to reguest from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Conlractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those whieh are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo
Film Commissioher

The term of this Agreement shall be lrom
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

INTRODUCTION

(hereinafter referred to as "County") the need for the

to June 30, 2021July 1, 2018

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the Coung's request.

B. Jrqvel .a.nd per diem. County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diern
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requesis
by Contractor for approval to' Kevin Carunchio

incur travel and
whose title is:

per diem exoenses shall be' County Administrative Officer
submitted to

Travel and
per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the same extent as Coun$ reimburses its
permanent status employees for such expenses. County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to
Contractor for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to
County's permanent status employees, or which are incurred by the Contractor without the prior approval of
the Coun$.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117

{lndependent Contractor)
Page 1 a7202417



C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensalion, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. l-imit upon amouqt pavable under Aglegnelt. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for
expenses, if any, shall

services and work oerformed under this Aoreement. includinq travel and per diem
nOt gXCeed $10b,400.00.itrinHr**trrrx"i**rrrr*ie***t**r**5*errr*rtr**trL***r***rr

Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reeerves the right to deny any payment
or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including travel or per diem,
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinc and pavmenl. Conlractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachmenl A, which were done at the County's request, This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month, The statement to be
submifted willcoverthe period from the first (1st)day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.
Contractor's statement to the Coung will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Contractor during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifih (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal an-d State taxes.
(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will nol withhold any federal or state

income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the lerms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent con{ractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other asses$ments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submil to the County an
lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Aftachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange hislher own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

?age2 47242Q17



5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Aftachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such lieenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect, Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and Coung as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement,

B. Contractor wanants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: hllp;{SA/v1ry.Sgrnggy.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Atlachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incuned by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation
of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Pqrs.onal Prooerlv of Countv. Any personal proper$ such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, idenlification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Selriceg. Any and allcompositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to Coun$.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION

Contraclor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 07202A17



9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment G and wilh the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Atachment A, Contractor has no authori$ or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the Coung. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractofs agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to
defend, indemnifo, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or
alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible prope(y, including the loss
of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or
other cosis which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or
omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnifu, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

.2. RECORDS AND AUDIT"

A. Becords. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4 a72020a7



this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnsoectisns and Auditg. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, ineluding, but not limited to, flnancial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the wark
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

{3. NONDtSCRtililNATtON

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or pergon receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seg.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P,L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

.4. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by Coun$ without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel, Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days wriften notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor, County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontracl this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
wriften consent of County.

16. DEFAULT

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or lails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Coniractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below.

{8. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 5 47202417



Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,

or confidenliat. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express vwitten
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Conhactor without the County's wt1tten

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confldential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,

and Sections 10850 and *1AA.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant

thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. coNFLlcTs

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acguire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POST AGREEIUIENT COVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained

from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement, Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years afier the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVER^ABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable,

22. FUNDING LIMITATION,

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the ,event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, Coun$ has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or rnodification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
three (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreemenl to maintain continuity.

24. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Conltactor or County shall be

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6 47242417



requirod, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as followsr

Countv of lnvo
County Admlnistration
ffi Department

Address
City and Statelndependence, cA 93526

Contractor:

Chris Langley Name
Address
City and State

r,v. sux vv
Lone Pine, CA 93545

25. ENTIREAGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, orterminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil llll

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 7 47202017



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

Chris Langley

FOR THE PROVISION OF

TH

COUNTY OF INYO

By 7
P,vru D (*cr<..*v
Type or Print Name

Dated: O6-->6 -2zt&

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APP AS TO

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

THEREOF. THE PARTIES HERETO
}rrtl- s[ifl 

rHErR HANDS AND sEALs

SERVICES

CONTRAGTOR

c{te LAL)dLL',l

Film Commissioner

Dated

Type or Prigt Name

olaltr

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1'17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8 47202017



AOREETUIEITIT BETWEEI{ COUNW OF II{YO
AltD Chda Lrnglcy

FORTHE pROVtSlOX OF Fllm commlcsloncr SERVTCES

THEREOF,
, \rr lAa

THE PARTIES HERETO

qouNIY oF |NYO

Bv:- 2
PS n.- D (ctu..rc
Typc or Pdnl Nrmc

Datad: 06 - -2 6 -?z / A(

APPROVEDASTO FORM AND LEGALITY:

l^-^..-t.-
Counu Councol

ASTO

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

THEIR HANDS AND SEALS

COiITRACTOR

Dabd: b

ts

2
APdLtL'/

ot Namer

HAVE SET

e'rg_

$ac
Prini

tlt

\

County of lnyo 9tandad Contnc{. No. 117
(lndep€ndcnt Contnrs{o0

Page 6 072A2U7



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Chris Lansley

F'OR THE PROVISION OF rilm Commissioner SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1 2478 T0: June 30 2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

Section I" General fluties & $esnorrsibilitics

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of [nyo County Film Comrnissioner. As the lnyo County Film
Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for County to maintain a fbnnal
relationship with the California Filn: Cornnrission, and ensure the County's continued participaticn in the
California Film Commission's Film Liaisons In California, Statewlde (FLICS) Program. These duties
include, but are not limited to:

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of the County;
B. Resporrding to production requests in a timely mannel', not to exceed one week frorn the date of

initial inquiry; and,
C. Serving as a liaison between the film industry and the Counfy and the community, including

public and private landowners and other public agencies in the region.

In carrying out these duties, the Contrastor shall regularly and routinely publicize sontact information for
the Office of the County Adtninstrator as the venue lvhere members of the film industry and the
community oan register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film Commissioner
services. At a minirnum, this infcrrmation shall be included in the local crew lists, prodriction guide, and
resoultes database that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain, and distribute (in paper and
electronic fonn acceptable to the County), and on any web site the Contractor develops, maintains, or
operates in conjunctiur with these services.

In performance of these cluties, the Contractor shalll

e Maintain a working knowledge of the County and local business and government practices;
. Stay informed on pri:duction issues in Inyo County communities and convey this infonnation to

producers;
r Serve as an experiensed trouble shooter fbr producers and the communities in which they work;
I Know haw to sectre permission to film on a variety of properties within the County;
o Be farniliar with potential filming locations within the Coun$;
r Remain sensitive to the needs of the communities within the County;

County ol lnyo Standard Contract - No. I l7
(lndcpcndent Contractor)

Page 9



. Never solicit or accept fees, payments, donations, or other contributions fbr the provision of Film
Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless so authorized pursuant to
and in conjunction with the County's film permit requirenrents;

r Adhere to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between the official duties and services provided and private financial interests, as well as

the provision of:
./ location scouting assistance;
/ referral and liaison services with industry facilities and seruices;
,/ liaison selices to and among communities, production companies, and government agencies;
r' augmented outreach; and,
I timely and accurate information to production companies, the local community, govemmental

entities, and the California Film Commission;
r Provide fihn liaison and location services, including photography of locations;
r Provide service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the close of the

production, including problem solving on film related matters;
r Act as a liaison between production companies and all levels of govemment, including the

facilitation of perm itting;
r Network with regional and state organizations related to filming;
o Only use the title of hryo County Film Commissioner when acting in an official capacity pursuant

to this agreement, and never for personal gain; and,
r Refrain from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary to the

established polices of the County of Inyo or which might otherwise bring discredit to the County.

In addition, the Conlractor shall:

1, Develop, maintain, and distribute local available crew lists in written and electronic form;
2. Develop, maintain, and distribute a local resources database, including photography of locatiotts

throughout all regions of the County, in written and elechonic form;
3, Develop, maintain and distribute a current local production guide in written and electronic

form; and,
4. Create and have published at least four (4) articles for the local and/or national andlar

international media.

With regard to the crew lists, resotirces database, and production guide noted above, the Conlractor will be

required to provide these materials in an electronic fbrmat acceptable to the County so that the material may
be hosted on the County website. In addition, if the material is to be hosted on another website, the website
must utilize software approved by the Inyo County lnformation Services Director.

Section IL Administr.qlive Services

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all adrninistrative functions necessary to supporl the Inyo
County Film Commission, including:

County ol Inyo Slandard Contract - No. I 17
(lndcpcndent Contractor)

Page l0



l. Maintaining physical office space, including a felephone line and answering machine or service,
and payment of all utility costs;

2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing:
a. a physical mailing address or Post Office Box;
b. a cellular telephone;
c. an e-mail account; and,
d. an internet-based photo hosting seruice

3, Ananging for clerical support, and any other personal contract seruices that may be necessary to
support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissicner

4. Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal services

In addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between two (2) and
four (4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. Attendance may be in person or via
teleconference. The Contractor is responsible for preparing, maintaining, and administering all notifications
and paperwork to the Califomia Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the Inyo Fihn
Commissioner.

Fufthermore, as directed during the course of this contract, the Contractor rnay be required to research and
work with County staff to evaluate and make a recommendation to the lnyo County Board of Supervisors
regarding the feasibility of modiffing the County's film permit requirements, including the levying of fbes

to support the Inyo County Fihn Commission.

If the County's film permit requirements are modified, the Contractor will tre expected to implement and
administer the County film permit pl'ocess for non-Counq, facilities and properties, as directed. If adopted,
implementation and administration of the modified film pennit may include but not be lirnited to:

e PubliEizing the need for a County film permit;
o Determining the applicability of the Counfy film permit requirements and associated fee schedule to

specific filming activities;
r Ensuring all filming activities subject to the film permit requirements apply for a County filnr

permit;
r Working with film permit applicants to asceftain the information necessary for the Film

Commissioner to prepare a film permit, including the appropriate(s) fee for the fihning activity in
question, for submission to the County;

r Promptly notiSing the County office responsible for finalizingfilm permits when a film permit has
been prepared for submission; and,

o Preparing a monthly compilation of ali film permits prepared by the Film Commissioner, to be
submitted to the County with the Conkactor's monthly invoice fcrr payment of services.

Section IIl. Ilenorting

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the Agreement. At a
ninimum, the Contractor shall:

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. I l7
(lndependent Contractor)

Page I 1



Within 30-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Fihn Commissioner Services,
the Contractcr shall prepare all notifications and paperwork required by the California Film
Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the Inyo Film Cornmissioner. These
documents shall be transmitted to the Office of the County Adminstrator for review and approval
in advance of their submittal to the California Film Commission and, if necessary: for submittal
to the California Film Cornmission by the County. Any subsequent modifications that may be
required to this documentation will be processed in the same manner,

2. As soon as pracficable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall transmit to
the Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the Contractor
receives frorn the California Film Commission.

3, Within 60-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Seruices,
the Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Adrninistrator, in paper and electronic
tbrm, the local crew lists, local production guide and local rcsources database, including
plrotography of locations throughout all regions of the County, that the Contractor is required to
develop, maintain and distribute under the terms of this agreement. These products will become
propefi of the County, and must be submitted in an electronic format acceptable to the County
for viewing, reproduction and posting to a County web site. As part of their submittal, the
Contractor rnust identif all physical and electronic locations where these resources are available,

4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (l) month prior to the expiration of the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall update the local
crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of
locations throughout all regions of the County, and transmit this information to the Counfy as

required in item 3 above.

5. Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local andlor national andlor
international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with the
Contractor's next nronthly invoice for services;

6. Make at least two (2) Verbal Reports a year, once in April and once in October, to the Board of
Supervisors during the course of this contract. The Contractor is encouraged to make additional
Verbal Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based on filming activity in the
County. The Contractor will be responsible fbr contacting the Assistant Board Clerk to make
arangements to be placed on the Board of Supervisors' agenda.

7. In addition to the two (2) Verbal Reports required in item 6 above, the Contractor shall prepare
and present, in person, two (2) Wriffen Reports a yeff to the Board of Supervisors. The Written
Reports shall be submitted to the County Administrator, to be agendized tbr an upcoming Board
of Supervisors' nreeting, no later than June l*' and January l'r ofeach year during the term ofthe
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissiorrer Services,

County of Inyo Standard Contracl -No. I 1?

(lndependent Contractor)
Page l2



L During the last year of the Agreement, the Written Reports shall be prepared and submitted no
later than November lst in lieu of the January lst deadline, and May l't in lieu of the June l"
deadline to facilitate the County's consideration of any contract extension or renewal At a

minimum, the Writterr Reports must include:

a. A summary of the Contractor's activities and accomplishments relative to carrying-out
the duties and responsibitities of Inyo County Film Commissioner;

b. A tally, by type of production (e.9., major motion picture, minor film, commercial, still
photography or other categories deemed meaningful by the Film Commissioner) since
execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report of:

i. production requests received by the Contractor;
ii. production contacts initiated by the Contractor; and,
iii. (if applicable) County Film Permits prepared by the Contractor;

Identification anel itemization, by category, of all productions filmed in lnyo County
since execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report. For each
production identified, the Contractor shall provide their best estimate as to:

i. The number of out-of-county personnel involved in the production;
ii. The number of hotel/motel room nights encumbered by the production, and the

estimated value;
iii. The number of local residents directly employed by the production, and the

estimated aggregate compensation of those employed; and,
iv. The number and types of local businesses providing goods or services to the

production, and the estimated aggregate value of the goods or services;

d. Discussion of specific marketing efforts including copies of tear sheets, copies of web-
pages, identification of events attended, and, photos af any Conkactor exhibits or
displays at attended events;

e. Copies of the curent local uew list, current local production guide, and current local
resources database, including photography of locations throughcut all regions of the
County;and,

f. Copies of all Contractor-generated articles published since the last written repo*,

The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of acfual
damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirernents. Tlrerefore, the parties agrce that, in
the event that Contractor faiis to comply with these reporting requirements and associated deadlines,
Contractor shali pay Counf, as liquidated damages, the arnount of Contractor's monthly fee, as established
in the Fee Scheclule of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to
comply, which amount will be deducted from amounts due the Contractor.

County ol Inyo Standard Contract - No. I I ?
(lndcpcndent Contractor)

Pagc 13



S*ction [V. Aclditional Marketins Activities

In addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and its
Califomia Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, andlor international media,

the Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional marketing activities identified in
the Contractor's proposal and associated budget, and agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the
Agreement for the provision of Fihn Commissioner Services" Separately compensated marketing activities
may include but are not limited to:

If the Film Commission web content will be hosted on the County website, the Contract may be

asked and compensated to develop content beyond the crew lists, local resources database, location
photographs, production guide, articles described in Section I.

2, If the web content will not be hosted on the County website, the Film Commissioner may be asked

to and compensated for developing and maintaining an interactive lnyo County Film Commission
website. In developing and maintaining any such website, the Contractor must:

a. Register Inyo County as the owner of the domain name fbr the web site, and provide the
County's lnformation Services Director with the information necessary to maintain the
registration;

b. Develop the web site using software specified by the County's Information Services
Director;

c. Host the web site on a server to specified or approved by the County's Information Services
Director and to which the County's Information Services staff has access; and,

d. Provide back-up electronic copies of all web site content to the Information Services
Director. Elecffonic copies of all subsequent updates to the web site must be transmitted to
the Counfy's Infonnation Services Director within 14-days of implementation.

Any payment for such website development and rnaintenance services performed by the Contractor
is dependent on the Contractor's adherence to these requirements.

3. Attend appropriate industry events, and maintain a professional and attractive presence at industry
trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral niaterial(e.g,, artwork, hand-
outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show andlor the Association of Film
Commissions International (A!'Cl) Locations Show.

All resource maferials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with this Scope of Work,
including but not limited to the Inyo County Film Commission web-site, domain name, artwork and hand-
outs distributed at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and local resources database
(including photography of locations throughout all regions of the County), in written and electronic form,
shall:

A. Identif the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film industry
and the community can register complirnents or complaints regardirrg the provision of Film
Cornmissioner services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail address for the Office of the
County Administrator fbr this purpose.

B. Become the prcperty of the County of Inyo.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. I l7
(lndependent Contractor)

Pagc 14



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Chris Langley

FOR THE PROVISION OF Filrn Commissioner SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1 2A78 TO: June 30, 202L

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Section I. General Duties & Rcsnonsibilitie.s, Adnrinistrative SieFvices, Reportins

In consideration for the services and work identified in Section I. Ceneral Duties & Responsibilities,
Section IL Administrative Services, and Section IIt. Reporting of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the
contractor shall be paid a flat fee ot':

r $2,500.00 per month for the period of July l, 2018 through June 30, 2021

liecfion ll. Marketine Activitic.c

For the specific rnarketing activities the Contractor is required to perform, and identified in Section IV.
Marketing Activities of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid the actually cost of the
specific activity, documented by paid receipts, in an amount not to exceed the amount identified below for
each activity:

L If; the Film Commission web content is not hosted on the County website, and the Film
Commissioner is asked to develop and maintain an inleractive Inyo County Film Commission web-
site pursuant to Aftachment A: Section lV .2.:

. $3,000.00 for the development of the website and $1,000 per year for its maintenance,

Z. Atterrd appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive pl€sence at
industry trade shows by engaging the use of meative bor:th space and collateral material (e.g.,
a$work, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of
Film Cornmissions Intemational (AFCD Locations Show:

. $1,200.00 for the period July l, 2018 through June 3A,2Al9;

. $1,200.00 for the period July 1, 2019 through June 3A,2A2A;

. $ 1,200.00 for the period July l, 2020 through June 3A,2A2l .

Section III. Travel & Per Diem

The Confractor's travel and per diem expense shall be paid in accordance with Seclion 3. Paragraph B. of
this Agreement. These costs include all mileage, lodging and food expenses associated with all of the
general services and work requested by the County in this Agreement, as wellas the specific marketing
activities requested by the Counly in this Agreement.

Clounty of lnyo Standard Contract - No. I l7
(lndependcnt Contractor)

Page 15



The Contractor's travel and per diem expense reimbursement shall not exceed:

r $3,600.00 forthe period July 1, 2018 through June 30,2A19;
. $3,600.00 for the period July l, 2019 through June 30, 2020;
. $3,600.00 for the period July 1,2020 through June 30, 2021.

The provisions of Section 3. Paragraph B. of this Agreement notwithstanding, due to the often times
spontaneous nature of the services and work being performed, the Contractor is pre-approved to incur
travel and per diem expenses in an amount not to exceed:

. $3,600.00 for the period July I , 20 I 8 through June 3A,2A$;
r $3,600.00 for the period July l, 2019 through June 3A,2A2A;
. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2020 through June 30,2A21.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. I l7
( Independent Contractor)

Page 16



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND_ Chris Langley

FOR THE PJoYlsI

TERM:

FROM: July 1, 2018 June 30, 2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 11 7
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 1

SERVTCES

a7202417



Specifications L

lnsurance Requirempnts for Most Contracts
(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office (lSO) Form
CG 00 01 n A7 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projeetllocation or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automsbile Liabllity: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),

or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher lirnits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor.

0ther Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

Add itla nal I nsu red Slalus

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Contractor's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 1 1 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 il a later edition is

used).



Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunleers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

Notlce of Cancellation

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Walver of Subrogatlon

Conractor hereby grants to Enrif a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such

insurance, Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer,

Deductible s and Self-I nsured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Aceeptab i I tty of lnsu rers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Verlflcation of Coverage

Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsernents or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, lailure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Special flisks ar Clreumsfances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirernents, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



















































County of Inyo

County Administrator - Personnel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Keri Oney
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract for Legal Services-General Labor and Employment Advice and Representation
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 
for the provision of Legal Services-General Labor and Employment Advice, in the amount of $320,000 for the 
term of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract and HIPPA Business Associate Agreement, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The firm provides the County with advice and representation in specialized employment and labor law matters. It 
is recommended that the County contract with Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo for these legal services.

The County previously had utilized the services of their partner Irma Rodriguez Moisa to provide advice and 
representation in other employment and labor law matters.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The County could decline to approve the Agreement with Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo and attempt 
to find other legal counsel to assist the County in these matters, or could seek to provide these services through 
in-house lawyers. Neither alternative is recommended because of the specialized nature of the legal services 
required.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
This Contract is budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Requested Personnel Budget (010800) in Professional 
Services (5265).
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo Contract
2. HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/29/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/29/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/29/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/29/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/30/2022



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 1 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

    AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

               FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 

 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter referred to as "County")  may  have  the  need  for  the 
legal services of _________________________________________________________________________ 
of ____________________________ hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the 
mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 

Attachment A,   attached   hereto  and by reference  incorporated  herein.    Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made  by _________________________________ 
_________________________________________ whose title is __________________________________. 
Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon 
the County's need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any 
minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this 
Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the 
performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work 
during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

 

2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from _______________________to _____________________ 
unless sooner terminated as provided below. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation.    County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 

(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  
 B. Travel and per diem.    County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem 
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses.  Requests 
by Contractor for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to 
___________________________________________________, whose title is 
_________________________. Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the 

rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C). County reserves the right to 
deny reimbursement to Contractor for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts 

that may be paid to under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Contractor without 
the prior approval of the County.  
 C. Incidental Expenses.    County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the Schedule 

of Fees (Attachment B) for those Incidental Expenses which are specifically identified in the Schedule of 
Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work requested by 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 2 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

County under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such Incidental Expenses will be limited to 
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor in 
obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies.  Reimbursement for actual costs will not exceed the 
amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees. 
 D. No additional consideration.    Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 E. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.   The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem 
expenses, if any, shall not exceed $__________________________________________________________ 
Dollars and ________________________________________ cents ($_____________________________) 
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or 
reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including travel or per diem, which is 
in excess of the contract limit. 
 F. Billing and payment.    Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 

statement of all hours spent by Contractor in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which 
were done at the County's request.  This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth 
(5th) day of the month.  The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the 
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the 
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. 
Contractor's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any incidental expenses, or travel or 
per diem expenses which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Contractor during that 
period.  The itemized statement for incidental expenses, travel expenses and per diem will include receipts 
for lodging, meals, and other incidental expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures 
and rules.  Upon timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make 
payment to Contractor on the last day of the month.  
 G. Federal and State taxes. 
 
 (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state 
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 
 (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
 (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from 
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on 
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Contractor's taxes or assessments. 

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State 
Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete  and submit to the County an  
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form upon executing this Agreement. 
 

4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 3 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 
 A.  Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits 
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's 
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits 
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide 
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and 

permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute 
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the 

services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of 
this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving 
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement 
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 

telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment 

B),  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in 
procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in 

providing and maintaining items not specifically set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B), is the sole 
responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Personal Property of County.    Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective 
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. 
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.   Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the 
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 

 

8. INSURANCE. 
 
For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 

and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 

 

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 
 
 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 

http://www.sam.gov/


 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 4 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 

County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be  
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 
 
 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of  this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.   Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 

 

12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

 

13. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent 
to cancel to County.  

 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 5 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

14. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 

 

15. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by  
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   
 

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 
 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 

18 CONFLICTS. 
 
 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 
 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,  
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 

 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 6 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

20. SEVERABILITY. 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or  modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification 
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment). 
 

22. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

 

23. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 
 

   COUNTY OF INYO: 
   __________________________________________ Department 
   __________________________________________ Address 
   __________________________________________ City and State 
 

   CONTRACTOR: 
   ___________________________________________  Name 
   ___________________________________________  Address 
   ___________________________________________  City and State 

 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.   

 
 
 

 
#     # 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 7 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

 

    AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

               FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 
  
 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
________ DAY OF                                              ,                   . 
 
 

COUNTY OF INYO    CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
                             Signature  
 

Dated:                                                     _______________________________________________            
                                                                                                             Type or Print Name  

   
      Dated:___________________________________ 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND      
LEGALITY: 
                 
 
                                               
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
 
                                              
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
  
 
                                              
Personnel Services 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
                                              
County Risk Manager 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 8 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

 ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

    AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

               FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 
 
    
 

 TERM: 
 
 

 FROM:______________________________ TO: ______________________________  
 

 SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 9 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

               FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 
   
 

 TERM: 
 
 

 FROM:______________________________ TO: ______________________________  
 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

  



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 10 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

 

ATTACHMENT C 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

               FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 
    
 

 TERM: 
 
 

 FROM:______________________________ TO: ______________________________  
 

 SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 123 
 (Independent Contractor - Schedule of Fees Including Incidental  
 Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem) 
 Page 11 of 11     
                 05/29/2019 

         

  

ATTACHMENT D 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

               FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 
 

 TERM: 
 
 

 FROM:______________________________ TO: ______________________________  
 

 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  



 
 

ATTACHMENT A-1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES 
 
 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: July1, 2022 TO: June 30. 2023 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 
HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 
This Business Associate Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between the County of Inyo, referred to 
herein as Covered Entity ("CE"), and IRMA RODRIGUEZ MOISA of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 
referred to herein as Business Associate ("BA"). This Agreement is effective as of July 1, 2022 (the "Agreement 
Effective Date"). 

 
 

RECITALS 
 

CE wishes to disclose certain information to BA pursuant to the terms of the contract between BA and the 
California Institute of Mental Health ("CIMH"), herein referred to as ("Contract"), some of which may 
constitute Protected Health Information ("PHI") defined below. 

 
CE and BA intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI disclosed to BA pursuant to the 
Contract in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191 ("HIPAA"), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Public Law 
111-005 ("the HITECH Act"), and regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services (the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws. 

 
As part of the HIPAA Regulations, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule (defined below) require CE to 
enter into a contract containing specific requirements with BA prior to the disclosure of PHI, as set forth in, 
but not limited to, Title 45, Sections 164.314(a), 164.502(e) and 164.504(e) of the Code of Federal 
Regulations ("C.F.R.") and contained in this Agreement. 

 
In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this 
Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Definitions 

 
a. Breach shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act [42 U.S.C. Section 

17921]. 
 

b. Business Associate shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, the 
Security Rule, and the HITECH Act, including but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17938 and 45 
C.F.R. Section 160.103. 

 
c. Covered Entity shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule and the 

Security Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 160.103. 
 

d. Data Aggregation shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, 
but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501. 

 
e. Designated Record Set shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, 

including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501. 
 

f. Electronic Protected Health Information means Protected Health Information that is maintained 
in or transmitted by electronic media. 

 
g. Electronic Health Record shall have the meaning given to such term in the HITECT Act, 

including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17921. 
 

h. Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, 
including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501. 

 



 
 
 

i. Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPM Regulation that is codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, 
Subparts A and E. 

 
j. Protected Health Information or PHI means any information, whether oral or recorded in any 

form or medium: (i) that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an 
individual, the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present or future  payment  for 
the provision of health care to an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect to 
which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual , 
and shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited 
to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501. Protected Health Information includes Electronic Protected Health 
Information [45 C.F.R. Sections 160.103, 164.501]. 

 
k. Protected Information shall mean PHI provided by CE to BA or created or received by BA on 

GE's behalf. 
 

I. Security Rule shall mean the HIPM Regulation that is codified at.45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, 
Subparts A and C. 

 
m. Unsecured PHI shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act and any 

guidance issued pursuant to such Act including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17932(h). 
 

2. Obligations of Business Associate 
 

a. Permitted Uses. BA shall not use Protected Information except for the purpose  of performing 
BA's obligations under the Contract and as permitted under the Contract and Agreement. Further, 
BA shall not use Protected Information in any manner that would constitute a violation of the 
Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act if so used by CE. However, BA may use Protected Information (i) 
for the proper management and administration of BA, (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities of 
BA, or (iii) for Data Aggregation purposes for the Health Care Operations of CE (45 C.F.R. 
Sections164.504(e)(2)(ii)(A)and164.504(e)(4)(i)]. 

 
b. Permitted Disclosures. BA shall not disclose Protected Information except for the purpose of 

performing BA's obligations under the Contract and as permitted under the Contract and 
Agreement. BA shall not disclose Protected Information in any manner that would constitute a 
violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act if so disclosed by CE. However, BA may disclose 
Protected Information (i) for the proper management and administration of BA; (ii) to carry out the 
legal responsibilities of BA; (iii) as required by law; or (iv) for Data Aggregation purposes for the 
Health Care Operations of CE. If BA discloses Protected Information to a third party, BA must 
obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable written assurances from such third 
party that such Protected Information will be held confidential as provided pursuant to this 
Agreement and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for which was disclosed to 
such third party, and (ii) a written agreement from such third party to immediately notify BA of any 
breaches of confidentiality of the Protected Information, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of 
such breach (42 U.S.C. Section 17932; 45 C.F.R. Sections 164.504(e)(2)(i), 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B), 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(A) and 164.504(e)(4)(ii)]. 

 
c. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures. BA shall not use or disclose Protected Information for 

fundraising or marketing purposes . BA shall not disclose Protected Information to a health plan 
for payment or health care operations purposes if the patient has requested this special 
restriction, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI 
solely relates (42 U.S.C. Section 17935(a)]. BA shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration 
in exchange for Protected Information, except with the prior written consent of CE and as 
permitted by the HITECH Act, 42 U.S.C. section 17935(d)(?); however, this prohibition shall not 
affect payment by CIMH to BA for services provided pursuant to the Contract. 

 
d. Appropriate Safeguards. BA shall implement appropriate safeguards as are necessary to 

prevent the use or disclosure of Protected Information otherwise than as permitted by  the 
Contract that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of 
the Protected Information, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. Sections 164.308, 164.310, and 164.312. 
(45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(B);45 C.F.R. Section 164.308(b)]. BA shall comply with the 
policies and procedures and documentation requirements of the HIPAA Security Rule, including, 
but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.316. (42 U.S.C. Section 17931]. 

 
e. Reporting of Improper Access, Use or Disclosure. BA shall report to CE in writing of any 

access, use or disclosure of Protected Information not permitted by the Contract and Agreement, 
and any Breach of Unsecured PHI of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in 
no case later than ten (10) calendar days after discovery (42 U.S.C. Section 17921; 45 C.F.R. 
Section 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C)4; 5 C.F.R.Section 164.308(b)]. 

 
f. Business Associate's Agents. BA shall ensure that any agents, including subcontractors, to 

whom it provides Protected Information, agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions  



 
 
 
 

that apply to BA with respect to such PHI and implement the safeguards required by paragraph c 
above with respect to Electronic PHI (45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(D); 45 C.F.R. Section 
164.308(b)]. BA shall implement and maintain sanctions against agents and subcontractors that 
violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation (see 45 

C.F.R. Sections 164.530{f) and 164.530(e)(1 )). 
 

g. Access to Protected Information. BA shall make Protected Information maintained by BA or its 
agents or subcontractors in Designated Record Sets available to CE for inspection and copying 
within ten (10) days of a request by CE to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy 
Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524 [45 CF.R. Section 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(E)]. If BA maintains an Electronic Health Record, BA shall provide such 
information in electronic format to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, 
including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(e). 

 
h. Amendment of PHI. Within ten (10) days of receipt of a request from CE for an amendment of 

Protected Information or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, BA 
or its agents or subcontractors shall make such Protected Information available to CE for 
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the 
Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.526. If any individual requests an 
amendment of Protected Information directly from BA or its agents or subcontractors, BA must 
notify CE in writing within five (5) days of the request. Any approval or denial of amendment of 
Protected Information maintained by BA or its agents or subcontractors shall be the responsibility 
of CE (45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(e}(2)(ii)(F)]. 

 
i. Accounting Rights. Within ten (10) days of notice by CE of a request for an accounting of 

disclosures of Protected Information, BA and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to 
CE the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable CE to fulfill its 
obligations under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.528, and 
the HITECH Act, including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(c), as determined  by CE. 
BA agrees to implement a process that allows for an accounting to be collected and maintained by 
BA and its agents or subcontractors for at least six (6) years prior to the request. However, 
accounting of disclosures from an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment or health care 
operations purposes are required to be collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to 
the request, and only to the extent that BA maintains an electronic health record and is subject to 
this requirement. At a minimum, the information collected and maintained shall include: (i) the  
date of disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who received Protected Information and, if 
known, the address of the entity or person; (iii) a brief description of Protected Information 
disclosed and (iv) a brief statement of purpose of the disclosure that reasonably informs the 
individual of the basis for the disclosure, or a copy of the individuals' authorization, or a copy of the 
written request for disclosure. In the event that the request for an accounting is delivered directly 
to BA or its agents or subcontractors, BA shall within five (5) days of a request forward it to CE in 
writing. It shall be CE's responsibility to prepare and deliver any such accounting requested. BA 
shall not disclose any Protected Information except as set forth in Sections 2.b. of this Agreement 
[45 C.F.R. Sections 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(G) and 165.528]. 

 
j. Governmental Access to Records. BA shall make its internal practices, books and records 

relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Information available to CE and to the Secretary of 
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the "Secretary") for purposes of determining 
BA's compliance with the Privacy Rule [45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(H)]. BA shall provide to 
CE a copy of any Protected Information that BA provides to the Secretary concurrently with 
providing such Protected Information to the Secretary. 

 
k. Minimum Necessary. BA (and its agents or subcontractors) shall request, use and disclose only 

the minimum amount of Protected Information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the 
request, use, or disclosure. (42 U.S.C. Section 17935(b}; 45 C.F.R. Section 164.514(d)(3)) BA 
understands and agrees that the definition of "minimum necessary" is in flux and shall keep itself 
informed of guidance issued by the Secretary with respect to what constitutes "minimum 
necessary." 

i. Data Ownership. BA acknowledges that BA has no ownership rights with respect to  the 
Protected Information. 

 
m. Notification of Breach. During the term of the Contract, BA shall notify CE within twenty-four (24) 

hours of any suspected or actual breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or disclosure of 
PHI of which BA becomes aware and/or any actual or suspected use or disclosure of data in 
violation of any applicable federal or state laws or regulations. BA shall take (i) prompt corrective 
action to cure any such deficiencies and (ii) any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure 
required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

n. Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity.  Pursuant to 42 U.S.C.  Section 17934(b),  if the  
BA knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the CE that constitutes a material breach or 
violation of the GE's obligations under the Contract or Agreement or other arrangement, the BA 
must take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation. If the steps are unsuccessful, 
the BA must terminate the Contract or other arrangement if feasible, or if termination Is not 
feasible, report the problem to the Secretary of DHHS. BA shall provide written notice to CE of any 
pattern of activity or practice of the CE that BA believes constitutes a material breach or violation 
of the GE's obligations under the Contract or Agreement or other arrangement within five (5) days 
of discovery and shall meet with CE to discuss and attempt to resolve the problem as one of the 
reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation. 

 
o. Audits, Inspection  and Enforcement.  Within ten (10) days  of a written request  by CE, BA and 

its agents or subcontractors shall allow CE to conduct a reasonable inspection of the facilities, 
systems, books, records, agreements , policies and procedures relating to the use or disclosure of 
Protected Information pursuant to this Agreement for the purpose of determining whether BA has 
complied with this Agreement ; provided, however, that (i) BA and CE shall mutually agree in 
advance upon the scope, timing and location of such an inspection, and (ii) CE shall protect the 
confidentiality of all confidential and proprietary information of BA to which CE has access during 
the course of such inspection. The fact that CE inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to 
inspect, BA's facilities, systems, books, records, agreements, policies and procedures does not 
relieve BA of its responsibility to comply with this Agreement, nor does CE's (i) failure to detect or 
(ii) detection, but failure to notify BA or require BA's remediation of any unsatisfactory practices, 
constitute acceptance of such practice or a waiver of CE's enforcement rights under the Contract 
or Agreement. BA shall notify CE within ten (10) days of learning that BA has become the subject 
of an audit, compliance review, or complaint investigation by the Office for Civil Rights. 

 
3. Termination 

 
a. Material Breach. A breach by BA of any provision of this Agreement, as determined by CE, shall 

constitute a material breach of the Contract and shall provide grounds for immediate termination 
of the Contract, any provision in the Contract to the contrary notwithstanding. [45 C.F.R. Section 
164.504(e)(2)(iii)]. 

 
b. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. CE may terminate  the Contract,  effective immediately, 

if (i) BA is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIPAA, the HITECH 
Act, the HIPAA Regulations or other security or privacy laws or (ii) a finding or stipulation that the 
BA has violated any standard or requirement of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA Regulations 
or other security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which the 
party has been joined. 

 
c. Effect of Termination. Upon termination of the Contract for any reason, BA shall, at the option of 

CE, return or destroy all Protected Information that BA or its agents or subcontractors  still 
maintain in any form, and shall retain no copies of such Protected Information. If return or 
destruction is not feasible, as determined by CE, BA shall continue to extend the protections of 
Section 2 of this Agreement to such information, and limit further use of such PHI to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction of such PHI infeasible. [45 C.F.R. Section 
164.504(e)(ii)(2(I)]. If CE elects destruction of the PHI, BA shall certify in writing to CE that such 
PHI has been destroyed. 

 

4. Disclaimer 
 

CE makes no warranty or representation that compliance by BA with this Agreement, HIPAA, the HITECH 
· Act, or the HIPAA Regulations will be adequate or satisfactory for BA's own purposes BA is solely 
responsible for all decisions made by BA regarding the safeguarding of PHI. 

 
5. Amendment 

 
The parties acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to data security and privacy are rapidly 
evolving and that amendment of the Contract of Agreement may be required to provide for procedures to 
ensure compliance with such developments The parties specifically agree to take such action as is 
necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule, the 
Security Rule, and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality of PHI. The parties 
understand ad agree that CE must receive satisfactory written assurance from BA that BA will adequately 
safeguard all Protected Information. Upon the request of either party, the other party agrees to promptly 
enter into negotiations concerning the terms of an amendment to this Agreement embodying written 
assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule, 
the Security Rule or other applicable laws. CE may terminate the Contract upon thirty (30) days written 
notice in the event (i) BA does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend the Contract or Agreement 
when requested by CE pursuant to this Section or (ii) BA does not enter not enter into an amendment to 
the Contract or Agreement providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of PHI that CE, in its sole 
discretion, deems sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of applicable laws. 

 



 
 
 

6. Assistance in Litigation of Administrative Proceedings 
 

BA shall make itself, and any subcontractors, employees or agents assisting BA in the performance of its 
obligations under the Contract or Agreement, available to CE, at no cost to CE, to testify as witnesses, or 
otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced against CE, its 
directors, officers or employees based upon a claimed violation of HIPAA by the BA, the HITECH Act, the 
Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, or other laws relating to security and privacy, except where BA or its 
subcontractor, employee or agent is named adverse party. 

 
7. No Third-Party Benefich!11 ries 

 
Nothing express or implied in the Contract or Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein 
confer, upon any person other than CE, BA and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, 
remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. 

 
8. Effect on Contract 

 
Except as specifically required to implement the purposes of this Agreement, or to the extent inconsistent 
with this Agreement, all other terms of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
9. Interpretation 

 
The provisions of this Agreement shall prevail over any provisions in the Contract that may conflict or 
appear inconsistent with any provision in this Agreement. This Agreement and the Contract shall be 
interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPM, the HITECH Act, the Privacy 
Rule and the Security Rule. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in 
favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with HIPM, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the 
Security Rule. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the Agreement 
Effective Date. 

 

COVERED ENTITY 
 

County of Inyo 
 
By: __________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________ 
 
Title: _________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 
 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 
 

 
 
By: __________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________ 
 
Title: _________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - First 5
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Serena Johnson
 
SUBJECT:  First 5 and Altrusa International of Eastern Sierra collaboration on the Dolly Parton Imagination 
Library program
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo and Altrusa 
International Foundation of Eastern Sierra, Inc. of Bishop, CA for the provision of Dolly Parton Imagination 
Library program in an amount not to exceed $4,538 for the period of July 5, 2022 through July 6, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the First 5 Director to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Reading aloud is an important way for a parent to help a baby learn vocabulary and to stimulate a baby’s brain 
cells to grow stronger and develop more fully. Studies of the Dolly Parton Imagination Library program indicate 
that is promotes change in home literacy environments, children’s attitudes towards reading, and early literacy 
skills. Research shows that children who have access to books in the home have a more positive attitude about 
reading; this also encourages increased interactions between caregivers and children. This leads to promotion of 
emerging literacy skills and learning to read in the early grades, which therefore supports future academic 
success.

Each month, Dolly Parton’s Imagination Library mails a high quality, age appropriate book to all registered 
children, addressed to them, at no cost to the child’s family. Dolly Parton’s Imagination Library provides the 
infrastructure of the core program including managing the secure central database for the Book Order System 
and coordinating book selections and wholesale purchasing. It also incurs the cost of the program’s 
administrative expenses and coordinates the monthly mailings.

The Affiliate Partner, Altrusa International Foundation of Eastern Sierra, is the not-for-profit service association 
will enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with Dolly Parton’s Imagination Library for the purpose of being 
the entity qualified by the United States Postal Service for non-profit mailing rates. First 5 Inyo County will 
manage the administrative and financial aspects of the book program.

On November 3, 2020, the Board approved an MOU with Bishop Friends of the Library. Since the book program 
launched March 2021, 394 children have been registered. Currently, 315 children are active, and 79 have 
graduated out after age five. Bishop Friends of the Library notified First 5 Inyo County in May 2022 they are 
terminating their non-profit status. Altrusa International Foundation of Eastern Sierra offered to step up as the 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

non-profit affiliate to keep the program continuing. Altrusa has been a strong partner since the beginning of the 
program, promoting registrations at community events, in little-free libraries, and at preschools.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this MOU, thereby preventing the implementation of Dolly Parton's 
Imagination Library program in Inyo County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Altrusa International of Eastern Sierra Inc. as an Independent Affiliate Partner (501c3)
 
FINANCING:
This expense will be paid out of the First 5 budget (643000) in General Operating (5311). No County General 
Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County - Altrusa MOU
 
APPROVALS:
Serena Johnson Created/Initiated - 6/3/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/3/2022
Serena Johnson Approved - 6/7/2022
Anna Scott Approved - 6/8/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/9/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/30/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/30/2022
Anna Scott Final Approval - 6/30/2022









6.7.2022



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Anna Scott
 
SUBJECT:  Contract between the County of Inyo and Dwayne's Friendly Pharmacy
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Sabrina Enterprises, Inc., dba 
Dwayne's Friendly Pharmacy of Bishop, CA, for the provision of pharmaceutical services in an amount not to 
exceed $650,000.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
As the providers of health care to the Inyo County Jail, the Health and Human Services Public Health and 
Prevention division is responsible for assuring the medications are available to the inmate population as directed 
by medical and behavioral health needs. The developed system has been well integrated into procedures of both 
facilities.

This contract is a result of a competitive process that solicited Request for Proposals (RFP) from interested and 
qualified entities. Dwayne’s Friendly Pharmacy was the sole respondent to the RFP and met the criteria 
established for providing pharmaceutical services to Inyo County. Dwayne’s has been working effectively with 
Health and Human Services staff both in our Public Health & Prevention and Behavioral Health divisions to 
provide pharmaceutical services for the past several years.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract. Doing so would mean that the HHS Department would 
purchase medications on a case-by-case basis, which would be extremely costly and would require a restructure 
of the custody delivery system.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Sheriff and Probation Departments
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Health and Mental Health Realignment dollars. This expense will be budgeted in the Health budget (045100), in 
Professional Services (5265) and in the Mental Health budget (045200), in Support & Care (5501)
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo HHS - Dwayne's Pharmaceutical Contract 
 
APPROVALS:
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 6/17/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2022
Genoa Meneses Approved - 6/20/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/20/2022
Anna Scott Approved - 6/21/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/21/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/21/2022
Anna Scott Final Approval - 6/23/2022



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 1     05/21/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 
AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 
  

INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for  
the ___________________________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 
of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, 
whose title is: __________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM. 

 The term of this Agreement shall be from                           to                                      
unless sooner terminated as provided below.  

3. CONSIDERATION. 

 A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  
 B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per 
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  
 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 
________________________________________________________________________________ Dollars  



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 2     05/21/2019 

($______________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly 
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 3     05/21/2019 

 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA. 

 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 
 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 4     05/21/2019 

 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of ev
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

13. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 5     05/21/2019 

15. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 6     05/21/2019 

20. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two 
(22) (Amendment). 

22. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
                                                                          Department 
                                                                          Address 
                                                                          City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                                          Name 
                                                                          Address  
                                                                          City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

  ////       //// 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 7     05/21/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 
 
 IN  WITNESS  THEREOF,  THE  PARTIES  HERETO  HAVE  SET  THEIR  HANDS  AND  SEALS 
THIS                DAY OF                                           ,         . 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:                                                                   By:                                            
  Signature                      Signature 
 
 _________________________________  _______________________________________       
  Print or Type Name              Print or Type Name  
 
Dated:  ___________________    Dated:          
       
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
                                                                                      
  
County Counsel  
 
_________________________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
   
                                                                           
Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
   
                                                                                      
County Risk Manager 
 
 
  
 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 8     05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 TERM: 

           FROM:                          TO:       

 SCOPE OF WORK: 



ATTACHMENT A
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND _______________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF________________________________________________ SERVICES 
 

TERM: 
FROM: July 1, 2022      TO: June 30, 2027 

ATTACHMENT A, PAGE 2 

 

SCOPE OF WORK (CONTINUED): 

7. An Emergency stock of the following medications needs to be available at the facility for immediate 
use: 

 Mild alcohol withdrawal protocol: 

      Ativan 1mg BID X 3 days    
       Thiamine 100mg (PO) QD X 7 days 
        Multi Vitamin (PO) QD X 7 days 
 

 Moderate alcohol withdrawal protocol: 

     Ativan 1mg TID X 3 days    

     Then decrease to:    

      Ativan 1 mg BID X 3 days    
     Thiamine 100mg (PO) QD X 7 days 
      Multi Vitamin (PO) QD X 14 days 
 

 Severe alcohol withdrawal protocol: 

     Ativan 1 mg (#2) TID X 3 days   

     Then decrease to:      

     Ativan 1 mg TID X 3 days   

     Then to decrease to: 

     Ativan1 mg BID X 3 days      
    Thiamine 100 mg (PO) QD X 7 days 
      Multi Vitamin (PO) QD X 14 
 

 Ery tab 333mg TID X 7days 
 Clindamycin 300mg TID X 7 days 
 Doxycycline 100mg BID X 10 days 

Each emergency stock packet will need to be appropriately labeled and placed in a medication 
dispenser.  The inmate’s name will be blank and the nurse will fill in the inmate name. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 9     05/21/2019 

 ATTACHMENT B 

  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 

TERM: 

   FROM:                              TO:    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 10     05/21/2019 

 

ATTACHMENT  C 
 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

TERM: 
 

   FROM:                              TO:     
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Pharmaceutical Services 
 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1, custom 
Professional Services; Page  

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries 
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury 
and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a general 
aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 
occurrence limit. Comprehensive business liability insurance may satisfy the CGL requirement 
provided endorsements and other provisions referenced below are met.  

2. Pharmacist Liability insurance, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$2,000,000 aggregate.  

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury 
or disease.  

4. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision waived unless 
delivery or inspection services are provided onsite at county facilities.  

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, Inyo 
County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the 
contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an 
endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later 
edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, 
its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Pharmaceutical Services 
 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1, custom 
Professional Services; Page  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying 
Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional Insureds, 
whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to 
contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss 
under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has received a 
waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability 
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. 
The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be 
satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess liability 
policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 unless 
approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole responsibility of 
Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the Indemnified 
Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund 
the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) provision that limits the 
satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense costs, including the 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County reserves the right to 
obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of 

contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with 

a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase “extended 
reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Pharmaceutical Services 
 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1, custom 
Professional Services; Page  

a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and Endorsements 
pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, failure to obtain 
the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide 
them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo County reserves the 
right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, 
insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all 
the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured on 
insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not 
limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for 
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance 
must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 
-end- 



County of Inyo

Treasurer-Tax Collector
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Alisha McMurtrie
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract for Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Carolynn Phillips for the provision of 
professional services as the Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector at Range 84, Step C, $8,012 per month, effective 
July 7, 2022, and authorize the County Administrator to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector position became vacant as a result of the employee transitioning to 
another County position. The Department initiated the recruitment process and following interviews, selected 
Carolynn Phillips. The Department respectfully requests your Board approve the contract for personnel services 
and authorize the County Administrator to sign.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Department would continue to recruit to fill the vacancy should this contract not be approved.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this position is included in the 2022/2023 annual budget and is included in the department's 
authorized manpower listing.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Carolynn Phillips -- Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector Contract
 
APPROVALS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/29/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/29/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/29/2022
Alisha McMurtrie Approved - 6/29/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/29/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/29/2022



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 1 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND CAROLYNN PHILLIPS  

 FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 
 AS ASSISTANT TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR   
 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, CAROLYNN PHILLIPS (hereinafter referred to as "Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector") 
has been or will be duly appointed as an Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector for Inyo County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Assistant Treasurer-Tax 
Collector desire to set forth the manner and means by which Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will be 
compensated for performance of duties. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions 
hereinafter contained, County and Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector hereby agree as follows: 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector shall furnish to the County those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  
 
 Services and work provided by Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, resolutions, and directions. 
 
2. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT.  
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will report directly to and shall work under the direction of the 
Treasurer-Tax Collector. As the County’s Personnel Director, the County Administrative Officer will administer 
this contract and exercise its provisions in consultation with the Treasurer-Tax Collector. 
 
3. TERM.  
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from July 7, 2022 until terminated as provided below.    
 
4. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation.  County shall pay Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees (set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are 
performed by Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector.  
 
 B. Travel and Per Diem.  County shall reimburse Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector for the 
travel expenses and per diem which Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector incurs in providing services and work 
under this Agreement.  Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set 
forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C).  County reserves the right to deny 
reimbursement to Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector for travel or per diem expenses which are either in 
excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by 
the Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector without the proper approval of the County. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 2 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

 C. No Additional Consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Assistant 
Treasurer-Tax Collector shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, 
compensation, salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.   
 
 D. Manner of Payment.  Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will be paid in the same manner and 
on the same schedule of frequency as other County officers and employees. 
 
 E. Federal and State Taxes.  From all payments made to Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector by 
County under the terms and provisions of this Agreement, County shall withhold all appropriate federal and 
state income taxes (resident and non-resident). 
 
5. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector’s obligation is to perform the services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are needed within the County.  It is understood by Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector that 
the performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Assistant Treasurer-Tax 
Collector, in arranging her schedule, will coordinate and make arrangements to fulfill the requirements of the 
services and work which is necessary. 
 
6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal governments 
for Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be 
procured by Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector and be valid at the time Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 
enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and 
effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, and 
professional licenses or certificates.  Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will provide County, at County's 
request, evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to perform the 
services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector and 
County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
7. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 County shall provide Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector with such supplies, reference materials, 
telephone service, and staff as is deemed necessary by the County for Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector to 
provide the services identified in Attachment A to this Agreement.   
 
8. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Supplies, Equipment, etc.  All supplies, equipment, tools, protective or safety devices, 
badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, appliances, etc. provided 
to Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this 
Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will use 
reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Assistant Treasurer-Tax 
Collector’s possession. 
 
 B. Products of Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 's Work and Services.  Any and all 
compositions, publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, 
photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, 
soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 3 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, 
assembled, compiled by, or are the result or product of, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector’s services or work 
under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of 
the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will convey possession 
and title to all such properties to County. 
 
9. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
 
 County shall provide workers' compensation coverage to Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector for all 
acts performed in the course and scope of providing the services described in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  In the event a claim is made by Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector for injuries received in the 
course and scope of providing such services, County's liability shall be limited to workers' compensation 
benefits payable under the California Labor Code.   
 
10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 In the event the Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector is sued for acts performed within the course and 
scope of providing services and work described in Attachment A of this Agreement, County shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold the Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector harmless from any and all liability arising from such 
acts as required by law. 
 
11. TERMINATION AND DISCIPLINE. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector’s services under this Agreement may be terminated by County 
without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector ninety (90) days 
written notice of such intent to terminate.  Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector may terminate this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
terminate to County.    
 
12. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the personal services of Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector.  County has 
relied upon the skills, knowledge, experience, and training of Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector as an 
inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector shall not assign or subcontract 
this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of the County.  
 
13. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and 
county statutes, laws, and ordinances applicable to the County prohibiting discrimination against any person 
on specified grounds. 
 
14. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and 
county laws and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by the 
County, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential.  Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected 
information shall be made by Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector only as allowed by law. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 4 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

15. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector agrees that Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector has no interest, and 
shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of the work and services under this Agreement. Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector agrees to 
complete and file appropriate conflict of interest statements. 
 
16. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged 
information which is gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this 
Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or enhancement.  Further, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 
agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, not to seek or accept any 
employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term of this Agreement, has 
had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse party in litigation with the 
County, and concerning such, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector by virtue of this Agreement has gained 
access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 
17. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
18.   NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, amendments, or additions to this Agreement, including change of address of either party 
during the term of this Agreement, which Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector or County shall be required, or 
may desire, to make shall be in writing and shall be sent by prepaid first-class mail to the respective parties 
as follows: 
 
   County of Inyo 
   County Administrator    Department 
   P.O. Drawer N    Mailing Address 
   Independence, CA 93526  City and State 
 
   Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector   
   CAROLYNN PHILLIPS                     Name 
   P.O. Box 392                                       Street 
   Big Pine, CA 93513                                City and State 
 
29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto. 
 
  ////       //// 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 5 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND CAROLYNN PHILLIPS 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 
 AS ASSISTANT TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR    
 

 
  
 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
   5th   DAY OF    July                ,   2022  . 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     ASSISTANT TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR  
 
 
By:       By:                                    
              Print  or Type Name 
 
Dated:             
         Signature  
           
       Dated:       
 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND  
  LEGALITY: 
        
      
County Counsel  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING  
  FORM: 
 
      
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL  
  REQUIREMENTS: 
 
      
Personnel Services 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 6 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

 
           ATTACHMENT A 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND CAROLYNN PHILLIPS 
 FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

 AS ASSISTANT TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR   
 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: July 7, 2022  TO:  TERMINATION 
 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK: 
 

Upon commencing employment, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector shall perform the duties and 
responsibilities as identified in the job description for Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 7 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

 
ATTACHMENT B 

 
 
 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND CAROLYNN PHILLIPS 
 FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 
 AS   ASSISTANT TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR    
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM July 7, 2022 TO:  TERMINATION 
 
 
 
 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
 

1. After commencing employment, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector shall be compensated at 
Range 84 Step C and be paid $8,012 per month and shall be paid every two weeks on County 
paydays and be eligible for Merit Advancement as outlined in the Personnel Rules and 
Regulations.  
 

2. The Treasurer-Tax Collector will review Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector performance annually.  
 

3. To the extent not inconsistent with any other provision of this contract, the terms and conditions of 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector’s employment shall also be covered by the County’s Personnel 
Rules and Regulations and by the County’s Memorandum of Understanding with the Elected 
Officials Assistants Association (which represents Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector’s position).  
 

4. County will provide a $250.00 per month vehicle allowance. 
 

5. The provisions of this Attachment B shall prevail over any contrary provision in any applicable 
County personnel policy or rule. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 208 
Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector 

Page 8 

            5/11/22 
 
  
 
 
 
   
    

 
ATTACHMENT C 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND CAROLYNN PHILLIPS 
 FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

 AS ASSISTANT TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR   
 
 

TERM: 
 
 
         FROM:  July 7, 2022 TO:  TERMINATION  
 
 SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT: 
 
 
   
1. Subject to Paragraph 2 below, County will reimburse Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector for travel and 

per diem expenses in the same amount and to the same extent as County reimburses its permanent 
status merit system employees.    

 
2. Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector will not be reimbursed for intra-county travel by private automobile 

to destinations less than seventy-five (75) miles from Independence, California.  
 
 
 
 

\\\\ NOTHING FOLLOWS//// 
 

 
 



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment to the Post Implementation Agreement concerning funding of the Lower Owens River 
Project (LORP)
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to  the “Agreement Between the County of Inyo and City of Los 
Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River Project," 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 18, 2009 your Board approved the “Agreement Between the County of Inyo and City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power (LADWP) Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River 
Project” (Agreement).  The Los Angeles Board of Water and Power Commissioners approved a corrected version 
on May 18, 2010, and your Board approved the same corrections on June 8, 2010.  The Background section 
below explains the purpose and provisions of the Agreement and the reason it was necessary to adopt  the 
corrections.  

The Agreement expires on July 11, 2022, but termination of the Agreement does not end the County’s obligation 
to operate and fund the Lower Owens River Project (LORP).  Operations, maintenance, and adaptive 
management of the project will continue beyond the expiration date.  Section XII of the Inyo/Los Angeles Water 
Agreement and certain provisions of the LORP Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) require Inyo County 
and Los Angeles to adopt a policy setting out the responsibilities for each entity to manage and fund the LORP. 
 Inyo County and LADWP staff propose to extend the term of the existing Agreement another two years to July 
11, 2024. In addition, certain dates in Section J of the Agreement pertaining to the timing of adjustments to the 
LORP Credit and LORP Trust (explained below in Financing) also will be extended two years for consistency. 
 During the period of the extension, Inyo and LADWP will re-evaluate the Agreement as well as acquire a better 
understanding of the costs of the most significant adaptive management measure, the Blackrock Waterfowl 
Management Area Interim Plan.

It is requested that your Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the “Agreement Between the County of Inyo and 
City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens 
River Project” and authorize the County Administrator to sign.  The Los Angeles Board of Water and Power 
Commissioners will consider Amendment No. 1 on July 28, 2022.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The Agreement was developed by County and LADWP staff to satisfy the requirement of the Long-Term Water 
Agreement, Section XII, that, “Once the project has been constructed and completed, the Department and the 
County would jointly operate and fund the non-pumpback portions of the project.”  In order to provide for joint 
operation and funding of the LORP, the LORP Final Environmental Impact Statement, Section 2.2.2.2, states 
that, “After adoption of the LORP, the governing bodies of the County and LADWP will adopt a policy that sets 
forth each entity’s responsibilities for LORP funding during the implementation and post-implementation periods. 
 The policy will also describe the procedures for managing the LORP during the post implementation period.”

The Agreement contains those policies and procedures. Key provisions include:

Section II.A provides that the County’s obligation to jointly fund the LORP begins on July 11, 2007.  On that date, 
the parties entered into a Stipulation and Order in which they agreed that as of July 11, 2007, LADWP had 
established a permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the LORP.

Section II.B describes activities that are LADWP’s sole responsibility.  These activities include: operation and 
maintenance of the pump-back station, reconstruction of two temporary stations that the Standing Committee 
designated as permanent stations, maintenance of LADWP roads, funding for noxious weed control (as per the 
LORP FEIR), costs associated with the intentional introduction of special-status species in the LORP area, costs 
associated with livestock grazing, cost of water supplied to the LORP, costs resulting from the construction 
during the implementation of the project, payment of non-compliance penalties (unless they are attributable the 
County’s actions or failure to act), and LADWP’s administrative costs associated with developing the LORP 
Annual Work Plan.

Section II.C describes activities that are the County’s sole responsibility.  These activities include: development of 
the County’s recreational use plan, any campgrounds that are developed in the LORP area, maintenance of 
County roads, payment of any portion of a non-compliance payment that is attributable to an action or inaction by 
the County, and the County’s administrative costs associated with developing the LORP Annual Work Plan.

Section II.D describes activities and costs that are shared by LADWP and the County.  These include operation 
and maintenance of flow measuring stations; ditch and diversion structure maintenance costs that are above the 
pre-project baseline costs; habitat and water quality monitoring; consultant’s costs for LORP related activities, 
monitoring, treatment, and public education for mosquitoes; maintenance costs for structures in the Blackrock 
Waterfowl Area that are above the pre-project baseline costs; beaver control; saltcedar control; costs associated 
with preparation of an annual report; and costs of permits and environmental assessments associated with any 
activity described in an agreed-to work plan.

Sections II.E, F, and G describe the development and procedures to modify the LORP Annual Work Plan and 
Budget.  Development and approval of the Annual Work Plan allow your Board to specify what activities will 
occur and approve costs before each fiscal year.  While there is no cap on annual or long-term costs to the 
County, the Agreement specifies priorities for using funding that is available.  Each Annual Work Plan and 
Budget identifies tasks to be undertaken during the next fiscal year, how the work will be performed, and a 
budget. Certain tasks, specified in section II.D, are required to be included in the Annual Work Plan, while other 
tasks, such as adaptive management measures, are optional.  On June 28, 2022, your Board approved the 
LORP work plan for 2022-2023.

Sections II H. and II.I describe procedures for situations where unanticipated work is urgently needed and how 
the parties will jointly seek and utilize third-party funding for LORP activities.  

Section II.J describes how payments and adjustments will be made to fulfill each party’s obligation to share the 
operation and funding of the LORP.  Costs and obligations of each party are those delineated in the Annual Work 
Plan and Budget, and not subject to reconciliation for discrepancies identified in the annual accounting report 
between work planned and actual work performed which is usually provided to your Board each October.

The County’s LORP funding is held in the LORP Credit and LORP Trust Account (explained below in Financing). 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

 In the event that the annual expenditures result in the need for the County to pay LADWP, this section describes 
the procedure for using the LORP Credit to cover the County’s obligation, and, when the Credit is expended, to 
draw necessary funds from the LORP Trust Account.  If the LORP Credit and the LORP Trust are exhausted, the 
County is obligated to make any required payments to LADWP. This situation is not expected to occur within the 
term of the requested extension to 2024.  The Credit and Trust balances and the history of expenditures during 
the life of the project are provided in the Annual Work Plan.

Section II.K provides that resolution of disputes will be according to the dispute resolution process of the Long-
Term Water Agreement.  Disagreements over the content of work plans will submitted to the Technical Group.  If 
the Technical Group is unable to agree regarding an item in the work plan, the Standing Committee will resolve 
the dispute.  The Standing Committee’s resolution will be presented to each governing board for adoption.  If the 
Standing Committee is unable to resolve the dispute, it may submit the dispute to an impartial third party for 
advice.  The advice of the third party is not binding on the Standing Committee or the governing bodies.  The 
Standing Committee may also submit the unresolved issues directly to the governing bodies.  If the governing 
bodies cannot resolve the dispute, the task in dispute will not be jointly funded, although either party may fund 
the task and pay for additional maintenance costs that may be incurred.

Section II.N provides that the County may elect to reimburse itself from the LORP Trust Account for LORP 
related work conducted as part of an annual work plan.

Sections II.O and II.P describe how the Standing Committee will consult with California Department of Fish and 
Game on the amount, duration, timing, and ramping of seasonal habitat flows, and the amount of flooded 
acreage in the Blackrock Waterfowl Habitat Area.  These consultations are required under the MOU.

Section II.S provides for consultation with the LORP advisory committee, which is defined in the LORP 
Management and Adaptive Management Plan and consists of MOU representatives and LADWP lessees.

Section II.T provides that the Agreement will terminate on July 11, 2022 and allows that a determination will be 
made as to what ongoing obligations exist for operation and funding the LORP when the Agreement terminates.  

The LADWP Commissioners approved the original Agreement on October 6, 2009 prior to your Board’s approval 
on October 18, 2009.   Upon review of the document approved by LADWP, it was discovered that the exhibits 
attached to the version of the Agreement were incorrect (your Board approved the Agreement with the correct 
exhibits). On May 18, 2010, the LADWP Board approved the “Agreement Between the County of Inyo and City of 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River 
Project (With Technical Changes of May 18, 2010).” The Revised Agreement included the correct exhibits and 
several minor corrections and updates to the text to bring the provisions for consultation with the Department of 
Fish and Wildlife on setting seasonal habitat flows in the LORP into conformance with the requirements of a 
Stipulated Judgment arising from litigation referred to as LORP 4. Your Board subsequently approved the 
Revised Agreement.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Do not approve Amendment No. 1, and direct staff to continue working with LADWP to modify the Amendment to 
incorporate the Board’s desired modifications.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Extension of the term and related revisions of the Agreement is contingent on approval of Amendment No. 1 by 
the LADWP Board of Water and Power Commissioners.
 
FINANCING:
Funding for the LORP is provided for and circumscribed by a lengthy series of agreements and Court orders. 
Extending the Term of the Agreement will continue the procedures to establish the fiscal year work plan and 



Agenda Request 
Page 4

budget and the agreed upon accounting procedures that have been implemented for the past 15 years to pay the 
County’s LORP costs from the LORP Credit and Trust.

Details of the history of the agreements and litigation that provided funds for the LORP Credit and Trust are 
provided in the Annual Work Plan and associated agenda requests each year and are only briefly reviewed 
below for context for this item.  

Section XII of the Water Agreement provides that: (1) the County will fund one-half of the LORP initial 
construction costs up to a maximum of $3.75 million, (2) LADWP will fund the remaining initial construction costs 
of the LORP, and (3) LADWP and the County will jointly fund and operate the LORP after it has been 
implemented (except for the costs of operating and maintaining the pump station which will be funded by 
LADWP). In 2005, the County and LADWP entered into a settlement agreement that fully discharged the 
County’s obligation for the payment of $3.75 million for the LORP initial construction costs and provided 
$2,253,033 for a LORP Credit held by LADWP.  Each year, the amount of the Credit is annually adjusted upward 
or downward in accordance with the Los Angeles--Anaheim--Riverside All Urban Consumers Price Index and 
then reduced by the County’s share of the LORP post-implementation costs that were described in the Annual 
Work Plan.

Also in 2005, the Court sanctioned LADWP to pay $5,000 per day into an escrow account established by Los 
Angeles and Inyo County until Los Angeles established permanent baseflows of approximately 40 cfs throughout 
the Lower Owens River.  The proceeds of the account (initially $3,368,017) and accrued interest are used to pay 
the County’s share of post-implementation costs for the LORP. The escrow account is held by the County 
Treasury as Trust Account 504103, Sierra Club vs LADWP (“Trust Account”).

As of April 1, 2022, the LORP Credit had a balance of $718,111, and the LORP Trust balance as of June 3, 2022 
was $2,184,481. The sum of the Credit and Trust is $2,902,592; the balance of the two accounts at the beginning 
of the LORP post implementation period was $5.621,050.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment No. 1 to LORP Post Implementation Agreement
2. LORP Post Implementation Agreement - May 2010
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 6/23/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/24/2022
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 6/24/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/24/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/28/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/29/2022



1

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF 
WATER AND POWER CONCERNING OPERATION AND FUNDING OF THE LOWER 

OWENS RIVER PROJECT 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 to the Agreement Between the County of Inyo (County) and City of 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) Concerning Operation and Funding of 
the Lower Owens River Project (LORP) (Agreement) is made and entered into by and between 
LADWP and the County, who are referred to under this Amendment as “Party” and collectively 
as the “Parties”. 

WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, the Agreement was approved by your Honorable Board on May 18, 2010 

through Resolution 010106, effective until July 11, 2022; and

WHEREAS, operations, maintenance, hydrologic monitoring, and some adaptive 
management will continue in the LORP beyond the expiration of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, representatives of the LADWP and the County have prepared Amendment 
No. 1 to the Agreement to their governing boards for approval to extend the Agreement for a 
period of two years (until July 11, 2024) to allow for the continuation of joint funding of LORP 
post-implementation costs by LADWP and the County;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

AMENDMENT

Agreement No. 1 to the Agreement

Section II.A.  Commencement of Post Implementation Funding Obligations, currently 
reads:

The commitments of LADWP and the County to jointly fund and operate the post-
implementation costs and activities of the LORP commenced on July 11, 2007. ln this 
agreement, the Parties define their responsibilities for jointly funding and conducting 
post-implementation activities required to be undertaken during the 15-year period 
following July 11, 2007 (until July 11, 2022). After July 11, 2022, the required flows will 
continue to be maintained and the flow compliance monitoring required by the 
Stipulation and Order will continue to be conducted; however, the Parties will decide 
what level of operations, maintenance, habitat monitoring, and adaptive management 
will be conducted. The Parties do not intend by this agreement to redefine or reinterpret 
any provision of the MOU; however, by Section P of this agreement, the Parties intend to 
modify Section A.2 of the LORP Funding Agreement dated September 16, 2005.



2

Section II.A.  Commencement of Post Implementation Funding Obligations, is amended 
to read: 

The commitments of LADWP and the County to jointly fund and operate the post-
implementation costs and activities of the LORP commenced on July 11, 2007. ln this 
agreement, the Parties define their responsibilities for jointly funding and conducting 
post-implementation activities required. After July 11, 2024, the required flows will 
continue to be maintained and the flow compliance monitoring required by the 
Stipulation and Order will continue to be conducted; however, the Parties will decide 
what level of operations, maintenance, habitat monitoring, and adaptive management 
will be conducted. The Parties do not intend by this agreement to redefine or reinterpret 
any provision of the MOU; however, by Section P of this agreement, the Parties intend to 
modify Section A.2 of the LORP Funding Agreement dated September 16, 2005.

Section II.J.2.d. Debits and Payments, currently reads:

On each July 21 following July 21, 2009 through July 21, 2021 (or on the next business 
day thereafter if a July 21 is not a business day) for as long as sufficient funds remain in 
the Post Implementation Credit, LADWP shall annually reduce the credit by the County's 
cost obligation identified in that year's annual work plan and budget approved pursuant 
to Section II.F.

Section II.J.2.d. Debits and Payments, is now amended to read:

On each July 21 following July 21, 2009 through July 21, 2023 (or on the next business 
day thereafter if a July 21 is not a business day) for as long as sufficient funds remain in 
the Post Implementation Credit, LADWP shall annually reduce the credit by the County's 
cost obligation identified in that year's annual work plan and budget approved pursuant 
to Section II.F.

Section II.J.2.e. Debits and Payments, currently reads:

Once the balance in the Post Implementation Credit has been reduced to an amount that 
is insufficient to cover the amount of the required debit, LADWP will reduce the Post 
Implementation Credit to zero, and the County will make a payment to LADWP from the 
Trust Account in the amount of the difference. Thereafter, on or before July 21 of each 
year through July 21, 2021, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP from 
the Trust Account in the amount of the County's cost obligation identified in an annual 
work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F.

Section II.J.2.e. Debits and Payments, is now amended to read:

Once the balance in the Post Implementation Credit has been reduced to an amount that 
is insufficient to cover the amount of the required debit, LADWP will reduce the Post 
Implementation Credit to zero, and the County will make a payment to LADWP from the 
Trust Account in the amount of the difference. Thereafter, on or before July 21 of each 



3

year through July 21, 2023, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP from 
the Trust Account in the amount of the County's cost obligation identified in an annual 
work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F.

Section II.J.2.f. Debits and Payments, currently reads:

If, on or before November 1, 2021, the amount remaining in the Trust Account is 
insufficient to cover a required payment to LADWP, the County shall pay the remaining 
balance in the Trust Account to LADWP and shall make a supplemental payment in the 
amount of the difference to LADWP; on or before November I of each year through 
November 1, 2021, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP in the amount 
of the County's share of any post-implementation cost or activity (including adaptive 
management measures) identified in an annual work plan and budget approved 
pursuant to Section II.F.

Section II.J.2.f. Debits and Payments, is now amended to read:

If, on or before November 1, 2023, the amount remaining in the Trust Account is 
insufficient to cover a required payment to LADWP, the County shall pay the remaining 
balance in the Trust Account to LADWP and shall make a supplemental payment in the 
amount of the difference to LADWP; on or before November I of each year through 
November 1, 2023, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP in the amount 
of the County's share of any post-implementation cost or activity (including adaptive 
management measures) identified in an annual work plan and budget approved 
pursuant to Section II.F.

Section II.J.3. Annual Accounting Reports, currently reads:
 

Beginning on October 31, 2009 and on or before each October 31 thereafter through 
October 31, 2022, an annual accounting report that describes the work performed 
pursuant to the previous year's approved work plan, and the costs incurred by each 
Party in performing such work shall be submitted to the governing board of each Party or 
the Party's designee. The accounting report will identify the difference, if any, between 
the actual costs incurred by each Party and the actual work performed by each Party as 
compared to the costs and work for that Party that were identified in that year's approved
 work plan and budget. The costs will be documented by timesheets and other 
appropriate documentation. It is recognized that actual costs incurred by the Parties will 
likely be different than the amounts budgeted in the approved work plan(s). The 
accounting must be approved by the governing board of each Party or by the Party's 
designee.

Section II.J.3. Annual Accounting Reports, is now amended to read:
 

Beginning on October 31, 2009 and on or before each October 31 thereafter through 
October 31, 2024, an annual accounting report that describes the work performed 
pursuant to the previous year's approved work plan, and the costs incurred by each 



4

Party in performing such work shall be submitted to the governing board of each Party or 
the Party's designee. The accounting report will identify the difference, if any, between 
the actual costs incurred by each Party and the actual work performed by each Party as 
compared to the costs and work for that Party that were identified in that year's approved
work plan and budget. The costs will be documented by timesheets and other 
appropriate documentation. It is recognized that actual costs incurred by the Parties will 
likely be different than the amounts budgeted in the approved work plan(s). The 
accounting must be approved by the governing board of each Party or by the Party's 
designee.

Section II.T. Term, currently reads:

The provisions of this agreement will terminate on July 11, 2022; however, for the 
purpose of allowing for an audit to be conducted pursuant to Section II.J.3.d, and to 
allow time for the reconciliation of any accounting disputes that may arise under Section 
II.J.3.d the Parties agree that the applicable provisions of the agreement will be 
extended as necessary for those limited purposes. The Parties will make a determination 
of the obligations for any ongoing operation and maintenance activities and associated 
funding at the time of the effective termination of this agreement.  

Section II.T. Term, is now amended to read:

The provisions of this agreement will terminate on July 11, 2024; however, for the 
purpose of allowing for an audit to be conducted pursuant to Section II.J.3.d, and to 
allow time for the reconciliation of any accounting disputes that may arise under Section 
II.J.3.d the Parties agree that the applicable provisions of the agreement will be 
extended as necessary for those limited purposes. The Parties will make a determination 
of the obligations for any ongoing operation and maintenance activities and associated 
funding at the time of the effective termination of this agreement.  

Except as herein amended above, all other terms and conditions of Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect.



5

This Amendment No. 1 may be executed in one or more counterparts, and by the parties in 
separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of 
which taken together shall constitute one and the same amendment. The parties further agree 
that facsimile signatures or signatures scanned into .pdf (or signatures in another electronic 
format designated by LADWP) and sent by e-mail shall be deemed original signatures. This 
Amendment No. 1 consists of five (5) pages.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment No. 1 to the 
Agreement on the date indicated.

DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER
OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES BY

BOARD OF WATER AND POWER COMMISSIONERS 

By: ___________________________________________
MARTIN L. ADAMS

General Manager and Chief Engineer

Date: ___________________________________________

And: ___________________________________________
CHANTE L. MITCHELL

   Board Secretary

COUNTY OF INYO 

By: ___________________________________________
LESLIE CHAPMAN

Inyo County Administrator

Date: ___________________________________________





asteinwand
Highlight





























































































County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Michael Errante
 
SUBJECT:  Request for change in authorized strength in the Public Works Department and reclass of current 
employee
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the modified job description for the Engineering Technician I/II; and B) change the 
Authorized Strength in the Public Works Department by deleting one (1) Planning Technician at Range 63 
($4,184 - $5,091) and adding one (1) Engineering Technician I at Range 61 ($3,997 - $4,885) or Engineering 
Technician II at Range 66 ($4,489 - $5,464); and C) reclass a current Lead Equipment Operator to the 
Engineering Technician I, step E, effective July 7, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Department has not utilized the Engineering Technician classification for a couple of years. With the 
struggles the Department has experienced in recruiting for the higher-level positions in the professional and 
paraprofessional engineering track, we would like to bring this position back into the authorized strength. By 
bringing in an Engineering Tech I/II, it will allow someone with less experience and/or education to qualify for the 
position and grow in skill and knowledge and potentially qualify and promote into these hard-to-fill higher-level 
positions.

With the changes that have occurred over time, the duties of the Engineering Technician have changed. The 
Department no longer has a survey crew, which was one of the main duties specified in the outdated job 
description. The modified job description more accurately outlines the duties and expectations of the position. 
The qualifications for the job did not change.

The Department currently has a valued long-term employee that has been assigned duties that are not consistent 
with their job description/title. As a result of the meet and confer process with the ICEA Union, it has been 
identified that a reclass of this employee is appropriate. All parties have agreed upon the reclass, resulting in the 
request to reclass a Lead Equipment Operator to the Engineering Technician I, step E position. The employee 
meets the qualifications of the Engineering Technician I and is eager to continue some of the current duties they 
are performing, while taking on additional duties of the position. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the recommended action. However, this would result in the Department 
returning to the meet and confer process to address the employee currently working outside of his job 
description, as well as limit the Department's ability to grow the professional and paraprofessional Engineering 
track.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
This position is budgeted in the Public Works budget 011500 in the salaries and benefits object codes.  This 
position is included in the FY 22/23 budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Engineering Tech I-II 
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/29/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/29/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/29/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/29/2022
Breanne Nelums Approved - 6/30/2022
Michael Errante Approved - 6/30/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/30/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/30/2022



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN I/II 
 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works 
 
DEFINITION:  To perform a variety of paraprofessional engineering work on engineering projects and County 
facilities; perform drafting, simple design, and computations on engineering projects; and perform related duties 
as assigned. 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:  Under supervision, perform computer-aided drafting and design in preparing 
maps, cross-sections, profiles, and improvement plans; prepare engineering reports; prepare plans, 
specifications, and estimates for construction projects; perform traffic counts and prepare and submit findings; 
perform all aspects of pavement management; perform duties related to various lighting districts; obtain bids for 
purchasing and services; assist and support department staff with job related duties; and perform inspection and 
quality control monitoring of construction projects. 
 
OTHER EXAMPLES OF DUTIES:   

• Perform design calculations for determining alignment, quantities, and other engineering parameters 
• May be assigned to construction projects to perform various duties such as inspection of work for 

compliance to plans and specifications, quality control of construction materials and methods 
• Preparing records and reports for contract administration and other functions of the position 
• Acquire and maintain software and hardware in relation to the collection of data for conducting traffic 

studies and other duties of the position 
• Enter data into automated systems 
• Obtain permits needed to perform Department operations 
• Maintain positive working relationships with internal and external partners/agencies 
• Research projects and equipment used by the Department, obtain specifications, quantities and cost 

information 
• Oversee and make repairs as needed for various lighting districts  
• Identify and maintain timelines for projects 
• Other duties as assigned. 

 
PHYSICAL JOB FACTORS:  Frequent standing, walking, and driving; occasional lifting, shoveling, 
carrying, bending, and fine finger and hand dexterity.  Ability to lift and carry 50 pounds. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL JOB FACTORS:  Work in the road right of way under traffic conditions; work around 
moving machinery; exposure to fumes and dust; exposure to excessive noises created by moving heavy 
equipment; exposure to slippery or uneven walking surfaces.  The worker is subject to ambient weather 
conditions that include a high of 120 degrees and a low of –10 degrees Fahrenheit. 
 
EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 
Education/Experience: Tech I - High school graduate or equivalent with two years of paraprofessional 
engineering office and field experience.  Successful completion of 30 college semester units in drafting or 

 

INYO COUNTY  
PERSONNEL SERVICES 
P. O. BOX 249 
INDEPENDENCE, CA  93526  

(760)  878-0377 
FAX (760)  872-2712  

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY) 



engineering may be substituted for one year of the required experience.  Tech II – Additional year of 
experience required. 
 
Knowledge of:   

• Principles and uses of algebra, geometry, and trigonometry 
• Drafting and engineering principles used in the design and preparation of engineering plans 
• Engineering and surveying principles used in property location and topographic survey work 
• Properties and uses of materials employed in road and drainage construction, maintenance, and related 

engineering projects 
 
Ability to:   

• Use drafting and surveying equipment 
• Prepare maps, plans, cross-sections, and profiles 
• Use computer and specialized programs, software and hardware 
• Make complete and accurate field notes and to prepare clear and concise reports 
• Learn principles and practices of civil engineering as applied to road and drainage construction, 

including quality control testing and closely related construction activities 
• Use proper grammar and spelling in both written and verbal communication 
• Work cooperatively with those contacted in the course of work. 

 
Special requirements:  You may be required to drive a motor vehicle in the course of employment and must 
possess a valid operator’s license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.  Must successfully 
complete a pre-employment background investigation and physical examination. Your position may be required 
to serve as a Disaster Service Worker during a County emergency. 



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Minutes
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of June 28, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/29/2022
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 6/29/2022



County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

TIMED ITEMS - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  July 5, 2022
 
FROM:  Grace Chuchla
 
SUBJECT:  Purchasing policy update presentation
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive presentation regarding proposed updates to the Inyo County Purchasing Policy and 
provide direction to staff regarding the proposed updates. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
A working group of County employees, including Administration, the Auditor, and County Counsel, have been 
working over the past few months to update the Inyo County Purchasing Policy.  The Purchasing Policy was last 
updated in 2017.  The working group believes that the Purchasing Policy is in need of updates, both to bring it in 
line with current law and to make certain discretionary, policy changes that will smooth out the purchasing 
process and provide additional autonomy to department heads in purchasing the goods and services that they 
need for their department to function.

Attached is a draft of the updated Purchasing Policy that the working group has created.  This draft policy has 
also been circulated to department heads and fiscal staff from each department for comments and input.    

The working group will present this draft policy to your Board and explain the major changes from the County's 
current policy.  The working group will then receive any feedback your Board may have, edit the draft policy 
accordingly, and prepare an ordinance for your Board's consideration that will amend both the Purchasing Policy 
and Title VI of the Inyo County Code.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Purchasing Policy Revision (06.07.22)



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Grace Chuchla Created/Initiated - 6/9/2022
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/9/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/9/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/9/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/9/2022
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 6/9/2022



1

Inyo County Purchasing Policy

DRAFT REVISION
June 9, 2022



2

I. Introduction 

The purpose of this Purchasing Policy Manual, which has been approved by the Board of 
Supervisors pursuant to Ordinance No. 22-XXX, is to set forth how purchasing activities are to 
be conducted in Inyo County.  Specifically, this manual establishes the policies and procedures 
that govern the daily implementation of the County’s Purchasing and Contracting Ordinance, 
found in Title 6 of the Inyo County Code.  Nothing in this policy is intended to supplant or 
contradict the rules set forth in Title 6.  Rather, this policy is intended to assist County staff in 
properly implementing Title 6.  As long as they do not contradict the rules found within Title 6, 
any rules or procedures contained within this Policy are binding rules that carry the same force 
and effect as any rules found in Title 6.  

There are six different types of purchases that the County makes: goods, services, real property / 
leases, public works projects, road projects, and bridge projects.  The same rules and procedures 
apply to the procurement of personal property and services, so that means that there are five 
different sets of rules that County employees must be aware of when making purchases.  Each of 
these five sets of rules is handled in detail in the sections below.  

It is Inyo County’s goal is to provide autonomy to department heads and elected officials to 
spend their budgeted funds in whatever manner they think will best effectuate their policy goals.  
The Board of Supervisors trusts that department heads and elected officials will spend County 
funds responsibly and ethically and will exercise due diligence to price shop and obtain the best 
value for the County.    

All employees are encouraged to read the entirety of this Policy.  County Counsel, County 
Administration, the Budget Team, the Auditor, and your supervisor are also available to answer 
any questions that you may have regarding purchasing rules and procedures.  



3

II. General Procedures Applicable to All Procurements

A. Authority of Department Heads and the County Purchasing Agent 

The Board of Supervisors appointed the County Administrative Officer to serve as the 
Purchasing Agent for Inyo County.  Additionally, via both this Policy and Title 6 of the Inyo 
County Code, the Board of Supervisors and the Purchasing Agent delegated various purchasing 
powers to department heads.1  Department heads must carefully review this Policy, the Inyo 
County Code, and applicable state laws to determine who has the ability to authorize a purchase.  
Regardless of the delegated purchasing powers, for all purchases, the Purchasing Agent retains 
the power to overrule any purchasing decision made by a department head.  

B. Failure to Comply with the Purchasing Policy 

Compliance with this Policy and Title 6 is a serious matter.  The County understands that 
purchasing rules are complex, and employees often make good-faith mistakes when procuring 
goods, services, or property.  This section is not intended to apply to such good-faith mistakes.  
Rather, this section is intended to apply to County employees who knowingly circumvent 
purchasing procedures.  Such actions will not be tolerated in Inyo County.

Examples of noncompliance with this Policy or Title 6 may include, but are not limited to:

1. Knowingly exceeding delegated purchasing authority – e.g. entering into a contract for 
$55,000 without taking that contract to the Board for approval after you have been 
informed by County Counsel that such contracts require Board approval 

2. Dividing a single purchase order by utilizing multiple PO’s to avoid approval limits – e.g. 
dividing an order for office supplies into two orders of $26,000 to avoid the $50,000 
approval limit 

3. Displaying favoritism or nepotism in compiling quotations – e.g. directing a contract 
toward a family member’s business by purposefully seeking informal bids that are higher 
than the price provided by the family member’s business2 

4. Purchasing for personal use – e.g. an employee purchases extra cleaning supplies so that 
they may take some home for personal use 

Any failure to abide by this Policy or Title 6 may result in consequences for the individual 
employee and the department as a whole.  Per Government Code section 29121, any amount 
spent by a department head in excess of their authorized budget appropriation shall be a personal 
liability of the department head.     

In addition to personnel actions or civil/criminal liability, the Purchasing Agent and/or Auditor 
may also enforce this Policy or Title 6 by conducting random audits of a department’s 
purchasing activity and imposing consequences should the audits repeatedly reveal 
noncompliance with this Policy. 

1 Any reference to department heads also includes elected officials. 
2 Employees are also encouraged to familiarize themselves with Inyo County’s Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Policy.  
Many of the issues outlined in this section are also covered in the Fraud, Waste, and Abuse Policy.



4

C. Commitment to a Competitive Process

Inyo County is committed to always seeking the best value possible for any goods, services, or 
property that it might procure.  To that end, this Policy and Title 6 require procedures such as 
sealed bids or informal quotes for the vast majority of purchases.  However, the County also 
recognizes that the value of the time spent requesting bids or comparing prices for certain small 
purchases could exceed the savings that comes with the competitive process.  Accordingly, as 
outlined in more detail in the subsequent sections, some purchases do not require a competitive 
process.  Regardless, price shopping is always encouraged.  

D. Exceptions to the Competitive Process 

Situations may arise where an employee finds it impossible or unreasonable to comply with the 
competitive process.  These situations are described in more detail below.  County employees 
should keep in mind that these situations are the exception, not the norm.  Additionally, any 
purchase that will be conducted under one of the exceptions enumerated below must be 
approved by County Counsel, the Auditor, and the Purchasing Agent, regardless of the 
dollar amount of the procurement.

1. Sole Source Procurements.  

A sole source procurement may be justified in the following situations:

 The capability of the proposed contractor is critical to the specific effort and makes the 
contractor clearly unique compared to other contractors in the general field

 The proposed contractor has prior experience of a highly specialized nature that is vital to 
the proposed effort

 The proposed contractor has facilities, staffing, or equipment that are specialized and 
vital to the services being requested

 The proposed contractor has a substantial investment that would have to be duplicated at 
the County’s expense by another contractor entering the field

 A critical proposed schedule for the service and/or product that only one proposed 
contractor can meet

 A lack of competition because of the existence of patent rights, copyrights, trade secrets, 
and/or location

Sole source procurements are the exception, not the norm.  They are to be used sparingly and 
shall not be used in lieu of any competitive process simply because the department failed to allot 
sufficient time to engage in the competitive process or because the department finds the 
competitive process to be onerous.

2. Emergency Situations

Emergency situations are unforeseeable events that necessitate the immediate spending of money 
to remedy them.  Unforeseeable events do not include problems brought about by poor planning.  



5

In other words, a department’s failure to prepare a RFP/RFQ in time to solicit bids does not 
constitute an emergency.  Emergencies can arise in such vast and varied circumstances that 
providing comprehensive examples is almost impossible.  However, generally, when public 
health or welfare necessitates that a department immediately spend money, they may do so 
without any adherence to the competitive processes or approval limits set out in this Policy.  
Unless the purchase is made during a formally declared state of emergency (see Section VII), the 
department must seek retroactive approval of the purchase from the Board of Supervisors as soon 
as possible.          

3. Repair of cars or heavy machinery  

When a car or piece of heavy machinery breaks down, it does not make sense to tow that 
machinery from shop to shop to obtain quote from various mechanics to fix the machinery.  
Those towing costs generally negate the cost savings realized from obtaining bids.  Therefore, 
departments such as Motor Pool or the Road Department may dispense with the competitive 
process when it would be expensive and difficult to transport the broken car or machinery to 
multiple mechanics.  However, any department that utilizes this exception is encouraged to 
utilize vendors that are known to provide a good value to the County.  

4. Emergency repairs

Like all buildings and facilities, County facilities sometimes experience unexpected problems 
with crucial systems, like HVAC, electrical, appliances, or plumbing.  These problems need to 
be remedied immediately, as they often interfere with the ability of County employees to do their 
jobs.  Therefore, there is no time to obtain bids in these situations.  This exception also applies to 
County-operated utility systems, such as the County water system in Lone Pine, Independence, 
and Laws.   

Repairs performed pursuant to this section will often also qualify as emergency public works 
projects.  Review Section VII(B) of this Policy for more information on such purchases. 

5. Ongoing maintenance provided by a manufacturer  

Certain products or software require ongoing maintenance, updates, or trainings that can only be 
provided by the product manufacturer.  Departments may treat contracts for such services as sole 
source procurements.  When making the initial purchase of a product that will require ongoing 
maintenance from only one vendor, the Department is encouraged to try to negotiate a price for 
that ongoing service as part of the initial procurement.

6. “Piggyback” purchasing  

In situations where another government agency has already engaged in a competitive 
procurement process and the vendor is willing to offer the same contract terms to Inyo County as 
the other government agency, Inyo County is permitted to procure goods or services from that 
vendor without engaging in the competitive process.  This exception exists because, if another 
government agency has already taken the time to obtain competitive bids, then there is little 



6

value to be gained by having Inyo County repeat the same process.  Before engaging in 
“piggyback” purchasing, the department must review the purchasing and procurement policies of 
the original government agency to ensure that that agency’s standards are at least as rigorous as 
Inyo County’s and to ensure that the price of the good or service offered is at or below the 
market rate.

Piggyback purchasing is also permitted with non-governmental purchasing collectives, such as 
Sourcewell.  

E. Out of State Vendors

Purchasing from vendors or contractors located outside of California requires some extra 
paperwork, primarily related to state tax withholding issues.  Departments are encouraged to 
consult with the Auditor to ensure that they comply with all requirements.  However, at a 
minimum, out of state vendors generally require the following:

 A current W-9 on file with the Auditor
 A CA State Board of Equalization Tax Permit number, if the vendor charges sales tax
 Completed California withholding tax forms 

F. Local and Small Business Purchasing Preference

Inyo County wants to spend its money in a manner that encourages the growth of local and small 
businesses because such businesses contribute to the community and local economy.  These 
benefits often justify choosing a small and/or local company over a large and/or non-local 
company, even if the small / local company is slightly more expensive than other bidders.  
Accordingly, Inyo County applies a purchasing preference of 8% for local businesses or 5% for 
small businesses.  Inyo County also applies a 5% purchasing preference for primary contractors 
if the primary contractor will direct 10% or more of the value of the work to be performed under 
the contract to subcontractors that qualify as a small or local business.  

In practice, this means that, all other things being equal, if a department receives a bid from a 
local business that is up to 8% higher than non-local respondents, the department must consider 
the local business’s quote to be of an equal amount to the non-local business’s quote.  The same 
rule applies for small businesses, but in this situation, the preference is only 5%.3  

Note, however, that there is no requirement to accept a quote or bid from a local or small 
business if the non-local or non-small business will provide a higher value product or service to 
the County.  In other words, while the County will discount the prices quoted by local or small 
businesses in an effort to foster beneficial economic activity, nothing obligates the County to 
purchase a product or service that it knows to be subpar simply because that product or service 
comes from a local or small business.  

3 Bidders may not “stack” purchasing preferences.  In other words, a bidder who qualifies as both a small and a local 
business would not get a 13% preference. 



7

Finally, for purchases that are funded with non-County funds (e.g. state or federal grants), 
departments are cautioned to carefully review the rules associated with the grant or outside 
funds.  Some outside funds prohibit the application of small or local business preferences or they 
have their own rules regarding preferences (e.g. some federal funds require the application of a 
minority-owned business preference).  

G. Insurance Specifications for Contracts 

With some limited exceptions, the County generally requires all vendors or consultants who 
provide products or services to the County to maintain insurance.  This insurance is necessary to 
protect the County in the event that the vendor or consultant fails to perform under the contract 
or in the event that the vendor or consultant harms a third party in the course of providing 
products or services for the County.  

Before entering into a contract with a vendor or a consultant, you must consult with Risk 
Management to determine the level of insurance that Risk will require the vendor or consultant 
to carry.  The insurance that the County requires varies based on the risk inherent in the product 
or service that is being provided, the value of the contract, and many other factors.  You should 
consult Risk Management regarding insurance requirements early in the RFP/RFQ process so 
that you can inform potential respondents of the level of insurance that the County will require 
them to carry.  

H. Document Retention and Management 

All documents related to purchasing must be retained for a period of three years.  It is the 
responsibility of the department making the purchase to ensure proper document retention.  
Electronic retention is fine; there is no need to maintain paper copies of records so long as you 
have scanned a copy of the document to PDF.  

Note that certain purchases may require longer retention periods, but three years is the default 
rule in the absence of a more restrictive rule. 

In addition to legal retention requirements, departments are also advised to keep an organized 
file related to their purchasing activity so that the Purchasing Agent or Auditor can exercise their 
power to audit a department’s purchasing activity and so that the department can provide back-
up documentation as needed to pay their bills.  For example, a purchase of goods between $5,001 
and $10,000 requires three informal bids and department head approval.  If a department is 
making a purchase of $7,000 of goods, the department must retain copies of the three (or more) 
informal bids that it sought for at least three years.  These retention rules apply even when the 
department does not have to seek outside approval to make the purchase – i.e., when the 
department head is the sole approval authority and the purchase is made on a County credit card, 
not through the Auditor.  



8

I. Paying for Purchases

After choosing a vendor and complying with all of the various procedures outlined in this Policy, 
the department must memorialize and effectuate the purchase.  In the case of simple or relatively 
small purchases, this may require nothing more than swiping a County credit card.  

For vendors that do not take credit cards or for purchases that are more complex, a department 
has two options.  First, the department may obtain a purchase order from the Auditor.  A 
purchase order is essentially a “mini contract” and memorializes what the vendor is selling, how 
much the County will pay, and the terms of the sale.  Departments are encouraged to use 
purchase orders for situations that are too complex or expensive for credit cards, but not complex 
enough for a full-blown contract.  The Auditor will then prepare a check to the vendor pursuant 
to the purchase order.  Second, the department may use a standard County contract prepared by 
County Counsel and available on the intranet.  Contracts are necessary when the County is 
purchasing services or for situations where the County will be making defined payments over a 
period of time.  Departments are encouraged to consult with County Counsel if there is any 
confusion as to the use of a purchase order versus a contract.  

For all purchases, department should be prepared to provide documentation to demonstrate 
compliance with this Policy.  This documentation must be provided to departments such as the 
Auditor, the Purchasing Agent, County Counsel, and any other department that has a role in 
approving purchases or ensuring compliance with this Policy. 

J. Compatibility Issues When Purchasing

When departments work together to tap into each other’s expertise, the County enjoys greater 
efficiently and cost-savings.  This is particularly true in the purchasing realm when departments 
are buying specialized items that could have compatibility issues with existing items.  A good 
example of this is technology-related purchases; for example, certain tablets may not be 
compatible with the County’s current computers, so any department wanting to buy tablets 
would be well served to verify compatibility with Information Services before making any 
purchases.  Therefore, for all purchases in the following categories, departments must obtain the 
approval of the departments listed below:

Purchase Type Approval Required From
Technology (e.g. phones, tablets, computers, 
printers)

Information Services

Transportation (e.g. cars, car accessories) Motor Pool

Exceptions for IS approval for technology-related purchases include: Mouse, keyboard, 
disposable items (e.g., toner cartridges, inkjet cartridges for printers, etc.), printer cables, noise 
cancelling headphones, battery back-ups, privacy filters, and laptop cases. 



9

III. Procurement of goods and services (Inyo County Code Chapter 6.10)

The procurement of goods and services follow the same rules (with one exception, as detailed in 
section III(E) below) and will be both be described in this section.  The chart below summarizes 
the key rules with respect to the procurement of goods and services, and each section below 
describes each level of purchasing in more detail:

Amount Required Action Approval 
Authority

Less than or equal to 
$5,000

Compliance with the competitive process is not 
required, but price shopping is encouraged.

Department Head or 
designee 

$5,001 to $10,000 Three informal bids (e.g. printouts from 
websites showing prices or quotes solicited 
from vendors) must be obtained.

Department Head

$10,001 to $25,000 Three informal bids (e.g. printouts from 
websites showing prices or quotes solicited 
from vendors) must be obtained.

Department Head 
and Purchasing 
Agent 

$25,001 to $50,000 A formal RFP or RFQ must be prepared and 
publicized, with sealed submissions opened on 
a predetermined date.

Department Head 
and Purchasing 
Agent

Over $50,000.00 A formal RFP or RFQ must be prepared and 
publicized, with sealed submissions opened on 
a predetermined date.

Board of 
Supervisors

 
A. Less than or equal to $5,000

These purchases can generally be made without any specific competitive processes, but 
departments are encouraged to price shop to ensure that the County is getting the best value for 
its money.  That said, the County recognizes that for these lower value purchases, the cost of the 
employee time spent price shopping can often exceed the savings to be realized from price 
shopping.  Therefore, departments are encouraged to holistically consider all factors when 
determining how to obtain the best value for the County.   

At the discretion of individual department heads, these purchases may also be approved by 
designees within the department – for example, deputy directors or assistant directors.

B. Between $5,001 and $25,000

Purchases in this dollar range require three informal bids, but approval authority differs based on 
the amount of the purchase.  For purchases less than or equal to $10,000, the department head is 
the only approver necessary.  For purchases less than or equal to $25,000, both the department 
head and the Purchasing Agent must approve the purchase.  



10

An informal bid can consist of either a printout showing the price of an item or service or a quote 
prepared by a vendor.  All quotes must be in writing.  Verbal quotes are not sufficient.  If a 
vendor provides a verbal quote, the employee must request written confirmation via a 
confirmatory email or letter.  The employee soliciting the quotes may choose which vendors to 
contact, but all employees are encouraged to focus their requests toward local vendors, to the 
extent that a local vendor can provide the item or service needed.  

If an employee requests a quote from a vendor and the vendor does not respond within 72 hours, 
then the employee may still count that request toward the three quotes that they are required to 
obtain.  That vendor, however, may be eliminated from the selection process at the employee’s 
discretion.  If no vendors respond to a request for quotes, the department may make the purchase 
without complying with any further competitive processes.  

When assessing quotes, a department is not required to choose the lowest cost vendor.  In fact, 
departments are discouraged from looking only at cost and should assess vendors holistically to 
determine which vendor can provide the overall best value to for the County.  Factors that should 
be considered in addition to price include, but are not limited to, delivery time, the vendor’s 
willingness to use an Inyo County standard contract or purchase order, the vendor’s reputation in 
the industry, the quality of the vendor’s product, and the vendor’s return policy.

A department is never required to accept a quote, and when assessing quotes, a department may 
determine that none of the quotes obtained are responsive to their request or sufficient to meet 
their needs.  If a department rejects all quotes, then the department may proceed with the 
purchase as if they are making a purchase of less than $5,000.

C. Between $25,001 to $50,000

Purchases over $25,000 but below $50,000 require a formal Request for Proposals (“RFP”) or 
Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”).  These formal RFP/RFQs differ from informal quotes in that 
the department leading the procurement must prepare a written description of the item or service 
that it is seeking.  Vendors may then respond to the RFP/RFQ with a proposal.  The department 
will open all responses on a set date and time and will choose the vendor who provides the best 
overall quality and value to the County.  

Department have significant freedom to structure the RFP/RFQ process in whatever manner 
works for them, and the County encourages departments to be creative with their RFP/RFQs to 
ensure that they receive the maximum number of responses.  That said, there are some rules that 
all RFP/RFQs must follow:

 Cannot favor one brand over another.  For example, a RFP for a car may request a mid-
sized crossover vehicle that seats 5 people with all-wheel drive and that has a dealership 
within 60 miles of Independence, CA.  Conversely, the RFP may not specify that the 
County is seeking bids for a Honda CRV or a Toyota RAV4.  However, it may be the 
case, that in certain situations, only one brand is compatible with a department’s existing 
equipment.  In this case, the department may explain their existing equipment in the RFP 



11

and state that they are seeking bids only for brands that are compatible with the existing 
equipment.

 Must be published in specified sources.  RFP/RFQs best serve the purpose of increasing 
competition and ensuring unbiased procurements if the County receives multiple 
responses to the RFP/RFQ.  The County can only receive multiple responses if vendors 
and the general public are made aware of the RFP/RFQ.  Accordingly, at a minimum, all 
RFP/RFQs must be published on the County website and in a local printed newspaper of 
general circulation for at least 10 days.  Department heads are also encouraged to make 
efforts to publish the RFP/RFQ in industry-specific sources or send the RFP/RFQ to 
vendors who might be interested in responding. 

 Bids must be sealed.  All RFP/RFQs must instruct respondents to submit their proposals 
in a sealed envelope.  These sealed proposals must all be opened at a specified time with 
at least two employees observing the opening.  All RFP/RFQs must instruct respondents 
that they are not allowed to discuss the contents of their proposal with County employees 
before the opening date.  Any respondent who does so will be disqualified.  Respondents 
may ask the County employee managing the RFP/RFQ clarifying questions, but those 
questions should not reveal the contents of the bidder’s proposal.  Any questions that a 
County employee answers must be posted publicly (for example, online) so that all 
respondents have access to the same information when formulating their proposals.          

 Must include a copy of the contract that the department will ask the vendor to enter into.  
All RFP/RFQs must include a copy of the standard County contract that the department 
wants the respondent to enter into.  Departments should consult with County Counsel to 
determine the appropriate contract prior to releasing the RFP/RFQ.  Departments are also 
encourages to include a scoring rubric with the RFP/RFQ so that respondents know how 
their responses will be scored. 

 Must be reviewed by County Counsel.  All RFP/RFQs must be reviewed by County 
Counsel to determine compliance with all laws and legal requirements.  

 Must include an admonition that all responses are considered public records.  Due to the 
County’s obligations under the Public Records Act, all RFP/RFQs must warn respondents 
that any documents that they submit to the County—such as price lists, customer lists, or 
business plans—may by disclosed to any member of the public upon request.  

 Must include a statement that any bidder who wishes to challenge the bidding or 
procurement process must file a complaint in conformance with Chapter 6.30 of the Inyo 
County Code. 

As with informal bids, when assessing RFP/RFQ responses, departments are encouraged to 
consider the value of the whole package, rather than considering only price.  Additionally, if a 
department receives no responses to a RFP/RFQ or determines that none of the respondents meet 
the minimum standards set forth in the RFP/RFQ, the department may make the purchase or 
enter into a contract with no further compliance with the competitive process.



12

Once the department has selected a winning respondent and finalized negotiations over contract 
terms with the respondent, the department head must seek approval from the Purchasing Agent 
before executing the contract with the vendor.  Additionally, all contracts must be reviewed and 
approved by County Counsel, Risk Management, the Auditor, and Personnel.  When reviewing 
the procurement, all reviewers shall ensure that the department has complied with all Title VI of 
the Inyo County Code, this Policy, and any other purchasing requirement.  Departments are 
strongly encouraged to vet their RFP/RFQ with the reviewing departments before releasing the 
RFP to the general public.  This will allow reviewing departments an opportunity to correct any 
errors or problems with the RFP that could result in one of the reviewing departments refusing to 
approve the final contract.  

D. Over $50,001

The rules and process governing RFP/RFQs for procurements or contracts over $50,000 are the 
same as RFP/RFQs for purchases between $25,000 and $50,000.  However, the final step in the 
process differs, as procurements over $50,001 must be approved by the Board of Supervisors.  
Therefore, these contracts must be placed on the Board of Supervisor’s agenda through Civic 
Clerk.    

E. “Per Vendor” Versus “Per Purchase” Limits

There is one important way in which the purchase of goods and service differ.  When it comes to 
goods, the limits provided above apply only to each individual purchase.  The limits do not 
consider the aggregate total purchased from a single vendor in one year.  In other words, if a 
department buys $500 worth of tools on 100 occasions during a fiscal year from a single vendor, 
these purchases are assessed as 100 individual purchases.  Because each of these purchases is 
below $1,000, no competitive process is required.  This is a notable change from past practice, 
when this purchasing pattern would have required a blanket purchase order.  

On the other hand, per Government Code section 25502.3, dollar limits for the purchase of 
services must be considered on an aggregate basis.  Therefore, if a department were to purchase 
$500 worth of plumbing services on 100 different occasions during a fiscal year, that would have 
to be treated as a purchase for $50,000.  Per the limits set forth above, a $50,000 purchase would 
require a RFP/RFQ and Board approval of the contract.  In a sense, then, blanket purchase orders 
still exist, but only when it comes to the purchase of repeated services.  

F. De Minimus Contract Changes

For contracts that require Board approval, no aspect of the contract can be changed post-approval 
without a formal amendment.  However, occasions sometimes arise when a department needs to 
make a minor change to the dollar amount of a contract.  In these cases, where the change is de 
minimus, it is not a good use of the department’s or the Board of Supervisor’s time to have to go 
through the formal amendment process to make such a minor change.  Accordingly, for contracts 
that require Board approval, the Purchasing Agent may authorize an increase in the contract 
amount up to $5,000 on one occasion during the life of the contract.  For contracts below 



13

$50,000, the Auditor or the Purchasing Agent may authorize an increase in the contract amount 
up to $500 on one occasion.     



14

IV. Procurement of Real Property and Leases (Inyo County Code Chapter 6.24)

All purchases and leases of real property must be completed by the Board of Supervisors.  In 
other words, there is no delegated authority for a department or the Purchasing Officer to lease or 
purchase real property without Board approval.  Accordingly, leases and purchases of real 
property will be handled on a case-by-case basis, rather than being described in this Policy.  



15

V. Procurements Related to Public Works Projects (Inyo County Code Chapter 6.14)

A public works project is any purchase associated with the “construction, improvement, 
alteration, painting or repair of any public building or facility identified in Public Contract Code 
Section 20121 or 20150.2.”  Unlike the purchase of goods and services, where the County has 
significant freedom to set rules and dollar limits, public works projects are controlled by highly 
specific state laws.  These laws are primarily found in the Public Contract Code, Division 2, Part 
3, Articles 3.5 and 3.6 (section 20120, et seq.).  Additionally, because Inyo County has chosen to 
opt into the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, public works 
purchases must also comply with Public Contract Code section 22000, et seq.  

Because state law is so specific and detailed when it comes to public works projects, Title VI and 
this Policy provide less information regarding public works projects.  Therefore, any County 
employee engaging in a public works project must understand that this Policy does not provide a 
complete picture regarding the rules governing public works projects and should also review the 
relevant sections of the Public Contract Code.  

Per CUPCCAA, the bidding requirements for Public Works projects are as follows:4

Amount Required Action Approval 
Authority

Less than $60,000 No specific competitive process is required.  
The work may be performed by County staff, 
by a contract negotiated directly with a 
qualified individual, or by purchase order.

Public Works 
Director

Between $60,001 and 
$200,000

Three informal bids must be obtained per the 
procedure set forth in Public Contract Code 
section 22034

Public Works 
Director

Over $200,000 A formal bidding process is required per the 
procedure set forth in Public Contract Code 
section 22037

Board of 
Supervisors

As detailed in the above chart, for public works purchases less than $60,000, no specific process 
is required.  However, the Public Works Department must always endeavor to obtain the best 
value for the County.  Price shopping is always encouraged. 

For purchases between $60,000 and $200,000, the Public Works Department must comply with 
the procedures set forth in Inyo County Code section 6.14.070.  This section contains the 
informal bidding rules required by CUPCCAA.  Specifically, these rules require that the Public 
Works Department do the following:

4 Public Contract Code § 22032.



16

1. Maintain a list of qualified contractors for various categories of work.  Qualifications for 
admission to this list is determined by the California Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Commission.   

2. Prepare a notice inviting informal bids that describes the project in general terms and how 
to obtain more detailed information about the project.

3. Inform all contractors who have been placed on the list of qualified contractors of all 
informal bids for which they are qualified at least 14 days before the bid is due.  The 
notification to contractors must occur via whatever method the contractor chose when 
they signed up for the qualified contractors list. 

4. Provide a notice inviting informal bids to all construction trade journals specified in 
Public Contract Code section 22036.

If all bids received under the informal bidding process are over $200,000, the Board of 
Supervisors may still award a contract, but only if that contract is for less than $212,500.5  If a 
contract cannot be negotiated for less than $212,500, then the Public Works Department must re-
bid the project via the formal bidding process. 

For formal bids, the Public Works Department must do the following:6

1. Present plans, specifications, and working details to the Board of Supervisors for 
approval and adoption7

2. Prepare a notice inviting formal bids that states the time and place for the receiving and 
opening of sealed bids and distinctly describe the project. 

3. Publish the notice at least 15 calendar days before the date of opening the bids in a local 
newspaper and send the notice electronically to all construction trade journals specified in 
Public Contract Code Section 22036. 

After receiving bids, the Public Works Department may take one of the following actions:8

1. Award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder
2. Reject all bids received and, after reevaluation of the costs of the project, decide that the 

work can be performed more economically by County employees.  When taking this 
route, the Public Works Department must schedule a noticed public hearing before the 
Board of Supervisors, obtain 4/5 Board approval of the decision to reject all bids, and 
send notice of the hearing at least 2 days prior to the apparent low bidder.

If no bids are received, the Public Works Department may proceed as if the contract is below 
$60,000, regardless of the actual dollar amount. 

5 Public Contract Code § 22034(d).
6 Public Contract Code § 22037.
7 Public Contract Code § 22039
8 Public Contract Code § 22038.



17

VI. Procurements Related to Road and Bridge Projects (Inyo County Code Chapter 
6.16)

Procurements related to road projects are governed by Inyo County Code Chapter 6.16, Public 
Contract Code section 20390, et seq. (roads), and Public Contract Code section 20400, et seq. 
(bridges).  

A. Road Projects (Inyo County Code § 6.16.030)

Amount Required Action Approval 
Authority

Less than $25,000 Board must find that the estimate is less than 
$25,000; Road Commissioner may then 
contract for the work to be performed with no 
bidding 

Board; then Road 
Commissioner 

Between $25,001 and 
$50,000

Sealed, formal bids required Road Commissioner 

Over $50,000 Sealed, formal bids required Board of 
Supervisors

Procurements related to road projects have somewhat odd requirements in the sense that only the 
cheapest and the most expensive purchases require Board involvement.  For procurements less 
than $25,000, the Road Commissioner is empowered to contract for labor and materials with no 
competitive bidding process.9  However, the Road Commissioner may only do so after bringing 
an estimate to the Board of Supervisors and obtaining Board approval of the accuracy of the 
estimate.  There is no statutory authority permitting the Board to delegate its power regarding 
estimate approval; therefore, road project procurements of $25,000 or less will always require 
input from the Board.

For procurements between $25,000 and $50,000, the Board is empowered by Public Contract 
Code section 20394.5 to delegate the entire process to the Road Commissioner, and has done so 
via Inyo County Code section 6.16.040.  The Road Commissioner must obtain sealed formal bids 
for any projects that fall in this dollar range.  After opening these bids and choosing a winning 
bidder, the Road Commissioner is empowered to enter into a contract with the winning bidder 
without obtaining Board approval.

Finally, for procurements over $50,000, the process is the same as procurements between 
$25,000 and $50,000, except that the Road Commissioner must bring the contract to the Board 
for approval.

There are some additional requirements to keep in mind for all road project procurements:

9 Public Contract Code § 20394.



18

 For all road projects over $20,000, Public Contract Code section 20391 requires the 
preparation of surveys, profiles, cross-sections, plans, and specifications of the proposed 
work.  

 For any road project that requires formal bidding, notice of the call for bids must be 
published at least 10 times in a daily newspaper or 2 times in a weekly newspaper.10  

 The Road Commissioner has the following change order authority:11

o For contracts of $50,000 or less – up to $5,000
o For contracts between $50,000 and $250,000 – up to 10% of the original contract 

price 
o For contracts over $250,000 – up to $25,000, plus 5% of the amount of the 

original contract cost in excess of $250,000 
o No matter the price of the contract, no change order shall exceed $210,000

B. Bridge Projects (Inyo County Code § 6.16.080)

Amount Required Action Approval 
Authority

Less than $2,000 No formal bidding process or contract required Road Commissioner 

Between $2,000 and 
$10,000

No formal bidding process, but the goods or 
service to be purchased must be set forth in a 
contract 

Road Commissioner 

Over $10,000 Sealed, formal bids required Board of 
Supervisors

Bidding thresholds for bridge projects are much lower than road projects.  For bridge 
procurements less than $2,000, no bidding—or even a contract—is required.12  For bridge 
procurements between $2,000 and $10,000, no bidding is required, but the purchase must be 
memorialized in a contract that can be executed by the Road Commissioner.13  For bridge 
procurements over $10,000, a sealed, formal bidding process is required, with the Board 
approving the contract that comes out of that process.  Formal bids for bridge procurements must 
be noticed 10 times in a daily newspaper or 2 times in a weekly newspaper.14  

10 Public Contract Code § 20392.
11 Public Contract Code § 20395.
12 Public Contract Code § 20403.
13 Public Contract Code § 20402.
14 Public Contract Code § 20404.



19

VII. Emergency Purchasing (Inyo County Code Chapter 6.22)

Any employee making a purchase during an emergency event must first consider 1) which entity, 
if any, has declared a state of emergency and 2) where the funds to make the purchase come 
from.  The procedures and rules described in this manual relate to a County-declared state of 
emergency where County money is being spent to respond to the emergency.  However, larger 
emergencies that go beyond Inyo County’s borders often include state or federal-level 
emergency proclamations and state or federal-level funding to respond to the emergency.  Often, 
these non-County funds have their own procurement rules.  Describing all of these procurement 
rules is beyond the scope of this Policy, so any employee making a purchase during a state of 
emergency should pay careful attention to the source of the money that they are spending.

A. Emergency Purchases of Services and Goods (Inyo County Code § 6.22.010)

Whenever the Board of Supervisors has proclaimed a local emergency pursuant to Government 
Code section 8630, more lenient purchasing procedures apply for personal property and 
services.15  Procedures are more lenient in an emergency because emergencies often necessitate 
that unpredictable and potentially expensive purchases be made quickly to protect public health, 
safety, and welfare.  This situation makes it impossible to comply with procedures such as 
RFP/RFQs or taking purchases to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 

As set forth in section 6.22.010 of the County Code, when the Board has declared a state of 
emergency pursuant to Government Code section 8630, all limits on the Purchasing Agent’s 
delegated authority are removed.  In other words, the Purchasing Agent may make any purchases 
necessary to respond to the state of emergency without seeking the approval of the Board of 
Supervisors and without any competitive process.  However, the Purchasing Agent must 
endeavor—to the maximum extent possible and in recognition of the uniqueness of each 
emergency—to collect informal bids from at least three sources before making any purchase 
pursuant to this section.  

The Purchasing Agent is also authorized to further delegate purchasing authority to the Incident 
Commander if Inyo County stands up an Emergency Operations Center to handle the emergency.

B. Emergency Purchases for Public Works Projects (Inyo County Code § 6.22.020)

There are no monetary limits on the power of the Public Works Director to spend money to 
perform emergency repairs to any structure that constitutes a public work, nor is it necessary for 
there to be a declared state of emergency per Government Code section 8630.  Additionally, the 
Public Works Director is not required to collect any bids.  However, per Public Contract Code 
section 20134(a) and as set forth in section 6.22.020 of the County Code, there are specific 
procedures that the Public Works Director must follow before performing emergency work.  

These procedures are set out in Public Contract Code section 22050, and it is strongly advised 
that any employee performing an emergency repair on a public work both read section 22050 
and consult with County Counsel.  Generally, section 22050 requires that the Board of 

15 Gov’t Code § 25502.7.



20

Supervisors find, by 4/5 majority, that damage to a structure has created an emergency situation 
that necessitates such immediate action that bidding would be impossible.  There is a continuing 
obligation for the Board of Supervisors to renew its finding of an emergency situation every two 
weeks, and there are specific limits on how much a contractor may add to its materials costs to 
cover overhead and administration when performing emergency work.

If the Public Works Director determines that the repair must be made so quickly that the matter 
cannot be brought before the Board of Supervisors for an emergency finding, the Public Works 
Director may authorize such repairs to be performed.  The Public Works Director must then, at 
the next regularly scheduled Board of Supervisors meeting, bring the matter before the Board 
and seek authorization to continue the work.  

C. Emergency Purchases for Road Projects (Inyo County Code § 6.22.030)

The Road Commissioner may authorize the immediate expenditure of up to $25,000 to repair a 
road in the case of a landslide, flood, storm damage, or other emergency situation or to prepare 
for an imminent emergency (such as forecasted heavy rain that is likely to cause landslides on a 
county road).16  Emergency expenditures over $25,000 require Board of Supervisor approval.  In 
both situations—i.e. both over and under $25,000—there is no requirement to seek bids.

D. Emergency Purchases for Bridge Projects (Inyo County Code § 6.22.040)

Emergency repairs to a bridge cannot be made without Board of Supervisor authorization.  In 
other words, there is no ability in California law to delegate decision-making authority regarding 
emergency bridge repairs to the Public Works Director, like there is for repairs to structures or 
roads.  That said, if a situation arises where an emergency necessitates the immediate 
expenditure of funds on a bridge, the Road Commissioner is encouraged to consult with County 
Counsel, as there may be alternative avenues to legally spend funds to repair a bridge without the 
delay required by seeking Board approval.  

However, unlike structural emergencies, authorization to perform emergency work on a bridge 
requires only a 3/5 simple majority.17  Once the Board of Supervisors has made the emergency 
finding, the Road Commissioner or Public Works Director is free to immediately contract to 
repair the bridge without soliciting any bids. 

16 Public Contract Code § 20395(c).
17 Public Contract Code § 20407.



21

VIII. Dispute Resolution Procedures (Inyo County Code Chapter 6.30)

When a bidder is not selected as a winning bidder following an informal or formal quote or bid 
process, that unsuccessful bidder sometimes attempts to challenge the County’s decision to 
award the bid to someone else on the grounds that the bidding process was unfair or out of 
compliance with state law.  To address these situations, the County has created a mandatory 
dispute resolution process that any aggrieved bidder must use.  

This process is set out in Chapter 6.30 of the Inyo County Code.  It applies to all types of 
procurements—be it a public works project, a purchase of office supplies, or graphic design 
services.  If a department receives notice of a protest, they should contact County Counsel 
immediately for further guidance. 

Protests must be submitted within 10 days of the notification of award to bidders.  Thus, if you 
have not received any protests 10 days after you notified all bidders of the winning bidder, you 
can be fairly certain that your procurement will not be challenged on the basis of any alleged 
irregularities in the bidding process. 



22

IX. Sale and Transfer of Surplus County Personal Property (Inyo County Code 
Chapter 6.28)

When County property is no longer needed for County operations, the County will dispose of it 
either via an auction or by donation.  Generally, unneeded County property may be donated only 
to a nonprofit entity or another government entity.  If the property is going to be transferred to a 
for-profit entity or an individual, it must be sold at a public auction.  The major issue to pay 
attention to when disposing of unneeded County property is the required notice period.  The type 
of transfer (i.e. donation or auction) and the intended recipient of the property can alter the 
required notice period.  

Any department that is transferring a fixed asset to surplus must notify the Auditor.  
Additionally, if a department has declared an item surplus, that item must be secured and stored 
at a County facility until it is sold, donated, or disposed of.  

A. Sale of Surplus Property (Inyo County Code § 6.28.040)

The most common procedure to sell surplus property is a public auction.  Per the Government 
Code18 and the Inyo County Code, the following procedures apply to a public auction.

First, the department head must inform the Purchasing Agent that the department has surplus 
property to dispose of.  While there is no rule forbidding a department from holding its own 
auction, it often saves time and labor for multiple departments to consolidate their surplus items 
into one auction.  Thus, the Purchasing Agent will monitor the level of surplus goods and arrange 
a multi-department auction when appropriate.

Second, if the estimated value of any of the property to be auctioned exceeds $10,000, the 
Purchasing Agent must seek Board approval to dispose of it.  If none of the Property to be 
auctioned is worth more than $10,000, you may skip this step. 

Third, after the Purchasing Agent has arranged the logistics of the auction (which generally 
occur online via a third-party platform), notice of the auction must be given for five days prior to 
the start either by publication in a local newspaper or by posting notice in three public places in 
the County.

Exceptions to this process include:

The County is permitted to dispose of property worth less than $500 without a public auction if 
the Board of Supervisors unanimously votes that the property is worth less than $500.19  This 
rule also applies to products from a County farm.  Following the sale, the Purchasing Agent must 
report back to the Board the results of the sale.

The County is permitted to sell personal property to any road improvement, lighting, irrigation, 
waterworks, flood control, or other special district within the County whose affairs and funds are 

18 Gov’t Code § 25363.
19 Gov’t Code 25363.



23

under the supervision and control of the Board or for which the Board is ex officio the governing 
body without any auction.20

The County is permitted to donate or sell property to a community redevelopment agency, 
housing authority, community development commission, surplus property authority, federal 
agency, city, school district, County Board of Education, special district, joint powers agency, or 
any other public agency within the County without an auction.  However, a 4/5 vote of the Board 
of Supervisors is required and notice of the intended sale or donation must be posted at least one 
week before the matter is brought to the Board.21

B. Donation of Surplus Property 

The Board of Supervisors may vote to donate any County property to the following organizations 
on any terms that it deems appropriate:22

(1) A 501(c)(3) organization that is organized for the care, teaching, or training of 
children or developmentally disabled children.
(2) A 501(c)(3) organization that is organized for the care, teaching, or training of Native 
Americans.
(3) A school district or community college district.
(4) A county children and families commission established pursuant to the California 
Children and Families Act of 1998.
(5) A 501(c)(3) organization that is organized to provide health or human services.23  

Additionally, the Board may authorize the donation of surplus computer equipment to any 
individual who is receiving any of the following public benefits: CalFresh, CalWORKs, County 
Relief, General Relief, General Assistance, or Medi-Cal.  The transfer of this equipment must be 
managed by the public assistance division of Health and Human Services.  HHS must develop a 
list of eligible people who have requested computer equipment and develop a fair and impartial 
procedure to disburse the equipment.  Recipients of the equipment must sign an agreement 
stating that they agree not to resell it.  

Finally, it is possible to donate property to other community-focused organizations that are not 
on the list above.  However, this is a more complicated process that tends to be unique to each 
situation.  Thus, for any such donations, departments should consult with County Counsel.  

20 Gov’t Code § 25366.
21 Gov’t Code § 25365.
22 Gov’t Code § 25373.
23 This list represents the most common organizations that the County will donate surplus goods to.  However, this is 
not an exclusive list.  Departments are encouraged to contact County Counsel to determine if there is a method to 
donate to community-focused or governmental organizations not on this list. 


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) (Comments

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	Agenda Request Form


	 Open Session
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW
	5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)
	6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS

	 Consent Agenda
	7. Request Board cancel the regular Board of Supervis
	Agenda Request Form

	8. Request Board reappoint Ms. Suzanne Butler, Mr. Sc
	Agenda Request Form
	Michael Holland Request for Reappointment 06.24.22
	Scott Marcellin Request for Reappointment 06.24.22
	Suzanne Butler Request for Reappointment 06.19.22

	9. Request Board approve payment to DFM Associates in
	Agenda Request Form
	DFM Annual Invoice 2022-2023
	DFM Master Contract

	10. Request Board ratify and approve prior year paymen
	Agenda Request Form
	SIH Invoice 

	11. Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 1 t
	Agenda Request Form
	Chris Langley Contract Amendment 1
	FY 21-22 Film Commissioner Contract
	FY 18-19 through FY 20-21 Film Commissioner Contract

	12. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo Contract
	HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

	13. Request Board approve the Memorandum of Understand
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County - Altrusa MOU

	14. Request Board ratify and approve the contract betw
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo HHS - Dwayne's Pharmaceutical Contract 


	 Departmental
	15. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Carolynn Phillips -- Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector Contract

	16. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to  the “Agr
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment No. 1 to LORP Post Implementation Agreement
	LORP Post Implementation Agreement - May 2010

	17. Request Board: A) approve the modified job descrip
	Agenda Request Form
	Engineering Tech I-II 

	18. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	19. Request Board receive presentation regarding propo
	Agenda Request Form
	Purchasing Policy Revision (06.07.22)


	 Comment
	20. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)

	 Board Members and Staff Reports

	FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES:                                            ATKINSON, ANDLESON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO
	hereinafter referred to as Contractor and in consideration of the: IRMA RODRIGUEZ of Atkinson, Adelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo
	mutual promises covenants terms and conditions hereinafter contained the parties hereby agree as: Cerritos, CA
	whose title is: Keri Oney or her designee 
	Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon: 
	undefined: Deputy Personnel Director
	to: July 1, 2022
	undefined_2: June 30, 2023
	Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the: Keri Oney
	rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment Attachment C County reserves the right to: Deputy Personnel Director
	expenses if any shall not exceed: Three Hundred, Twenty Thousand
	Dollars and: Zero
	cents: 320,000.00
	Department: Personnel Department
	Address: P.O. Box 249
	City and State: Independence, CA 93526
	Name: Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo
	Address_2: 12800 Center Court Drive, Suite 300
	City and State_2: Cerritos, CA 90703
	FOR THE PROVISION  OF LEGAL SERVICES_2:                                          ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO
	FROM: July 1, 2022
	TO: June 30, 2023
	FROM_2: July 1, 2022
	TO_2: June 30, 2023
	FROM_3: July 1, 2022
	TO_3: June 30, 2023
	FROM_4: JULY1, 2022
	TO_4: JUNE 30, 2023
	Text1:                                          ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO
	Text2: Contractor shall provide general labor and employment advice and representation upon request of client. 
	Text3:                                          ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO
	Text4: 1. COMPENSATION 

Partners: $325 - $385
Associates: $245 - $295
Paralegals/Law Clerks: $200/hr.

Contractor shall reserve the right to increase these rates upon sixty (60) days' notice.

2. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

The Firm shall not be obligated to advance costs on behalf of Client; however, for the 
purpose of convenience and in order to expedite matters, the Firm reserves the right to 
advance costs on behalf of the Client with Client’s prior approval in the event a particular 
cost item exceeds $2,000.00 in the amount and without the prior approval of Client in the 
event a particular cost item totals $2,000.00 or less. Typical cost items include, by way of 
example and not limitation, document preparation and work processing, long distance 
telephone charges, fax/telecopy charges (at $.20 per page), appearance fees, messenger 
fees, travel costs, bonds, witness fees, deposition and court reporter fees, transcript 
costs, expert witness fees, investigative fees, etc
	Text5:                                          ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO                   
	Text6: Travel shall be at the County's request and billed at 50% rate of the hourly rate.

Per diem travel from portal to portal will be at the current IRS rate.


	Text7:                                         ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & ROMO 


